Nassau County, New York Department of Public Works
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Subject Date:
Construction Services H6200003E April 7, 2016
Department Vendor Name: Welsbach Electric Corp of L.I.
Public Works Address: 300 Newtown Road, Plainview NY 11803
Department Head Name Contract Number ‘
Shila Shah-Gavnoudias H6200003E
Departrw Signgtyure Personal Services ____ Blanket Res
Calendar Bid__ X Rules Comm,
Project Manager Name: Jeff P. Lindgren Contract Manager Name: Joseph Florio
Phone Number: (516) 571-6998 Phone Number: (516) 454-0023
Proposed Legislative Action Internal Approvals
To Date | Approval | Info Other Date & Approval | Date & Approval
Init, ; Init,
éﬁiﬁ}; / y ;/(5' Dept, Head | Counsel to C.E.
Rules Comm Budget Y g1 #47 | County Atty.
Full Leg Deputy C.E. |- County Exec,
Narrative
Purpose:

The purpose of this contract is to provide for day-to-day operation and maintenance of the County’s
traffic signal control system and communications to the Traffic Management Center in Westbury, NY.

Discussion:
The project will result in the improved updating and coordination of over 9oo traffic signals as well

as traffic surveillance cameras, along various roadways, connected to the Traffic Management
Center.

Impact on Funding: -

80% funding for this project will be reimbursed by the Federal Government resulting in 20% funding
that will come from the Public Works Operating Budget. The cost associated with this project is
included in the Public Works Operating Budget. The total proposed price for construction services is
$2,448,500.00 over a 3 year period. This equates to a County cost of $489,700 for the project.

Recommendation:

Given the overall benefit of this project and the impact on public safety, it is recommended that this
contract be approved.
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NIFA

Nassau County Interim Finance Authority

Contract Approval Request Form (As of January 1, 2015)

1. Vendor: Welsbach Elactric Corp, of L.I.

2. Dollar amount requiring NIFA approval: §  2,448,500.00

Amount to be encumbered: $ 816,166.67 //q (//Zg

Thisisa v New Contract Advisement Amendment
If new contract - $ amount should be full amount of contract
If advisement — NIFA only needs to review if it is increasing funds ahove the amount previously approved by NIFA
If amendment - $ amount should be full amount of amendment only

3. Contract Term: 36 Months

Has work or services on this contract commenced? Yes v No

If yes, please explain:

4. Funding Source;

_{q General Fund (GEN) L Grant Fund (GRT)

... Capital Improvement Fund (CAP) Federal % 80

. Other State %

County % 20
Is the cash available for the full amount of the contract? _ Yes No Ve / 7‘; / e dr
If not, will it require a future borrowing? _ Tes No A#7

Has the County Legislature approved the borrowing? Yes No ’/ N/A
Has NIFA approved the borrowing for this contract? Yes No A A

5. Provide a brief description (4 to 5 sentences) of the item for which this approval is requested:

This project will provide staff for the on street maintenance and operations of
County's Traffic Management signal and ITS communications infrastructure.

6. Has the item requested herein followed all proper procedures and thereby approved by the:

Nassau County Attorney as to form Yes No N/A
Nassau County Committee and/or Legislature Yes No N/A

Date of approval(s) and citation to the resolution where approval for this item was provided:

7. Identify all contracts (with dollar amounts) with this or an affiliated party within the prior 12 months:

{;( Ceecj/& %§OK







AUTHORIZATION

To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information contained in this Contract Approval
Request Form and any additional information submitted in connection with this request is true and
accurate and that all expenditures that will be made in reliance on this authorization are in
conformance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau County
Multi-Year Financial Plan, Iunderstand that NIFA will rely upon this information in its official
deliberations.

Signature Title Date

Print Name

COMPTROLLER’S OFFICE
To the best of my knowledge, I hereby certify that the information listed is true and accurate and is in
conformance with the Nassau County Approved Budget and not in conflict with the Nassau County
Multi-Year Financial Plan.

Regarding funding, please check the correct response:

I certify that the funds are available to be encumbered pending NIFA approval of this contract.

If this is a capital project:
1 certify that the bonding for this contract has been approved by NIFA.
Budget is available and funds have been encumbered but the project requires NIFA bonding authorization

Signature Title Date

Print Name

NIFA

Amount being approved by NIFA:

Signature Title Date

Print Name

NOTE: All contract submissions MUST include the County’s own routing slip, current
NIFS printouts for all relevant accounts and relevant Nassau County Legislature
communication documents and relevant supplemental information pertaining to the
item requested herein.

NIFA Contract Approval Request Form MUST be filled out in its entirety before being
submitted to NIFA for review,

NIFA reserves the right to request additional information as needed.






George Maragos
Comptroller

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER
240 Old Country Road
Mineola, New York 11501

COMPTROLLER APPROVAL FORM FOR PERSONAL,
PROFESSIONAL OR HUMAN SERVICES CONTRACTS

Attach this form along with all personal, professional or uman services contracts, contract renewals, extensions
and ainendments.

CONTRACTOR NAME: Welsbach Electric Corp, of L.1.

CONTRACTOR ADDRESS: _300 Newtown Road, Plainview, NY 11803

FEDERAL TAX ID #: _ 11-2354251

Instructions: Please check the appropriate box (&) after one of the following
roman numerals, and provide all the requested information.

I. ¥ The contract was awarded to the lowest, responsible bidder after advertisement

for sealed bids. The contract was awarded after a request for sealed bids was published in New York
Newsday and the Contract Reporter on February 17, 2016. The sealed bids were publicly opened on
March 22, 2016. Two (2) sealed bids were received and opened.

IL. 0O The contractor was selected pursuant to a Request for Proposals.
The Contract was entered into after a written request for proposals was issued on
[date]. Potential proposers were made aware of the availability of the RFP by

advertisement in [newspaper], posting on industry websites, via
email to interested parties and by publication on the County procurement website. Proposals were due
on [date]. [state #] proposals were received and evaluated. The

evaluation committee consisted of:

(list # of persons on
commitiee and their respective departments), The proposals were scored and ranked. As a result of the
scoring and ranking, the highest-ranking proposer was selected.







III. O This is a renewal, extension or amendment of an existing contract.
The contract was originally executed by Nassau County on [date]. This is a
renewal or extension pursuant to the contract, or an amendment within the scope of the contract or RFP

(copies of the relevant pages are attached). The original contract was entered into
after

[describe
procurement method, i.e., RFP, three proposals evaluated, etc.] Attach a copy of the most recent evaluation
of the contractor’s performance for any contract to be renewed or extended. If the contractor has not
received a satisfactory evaluation, the department must explain why the contractor should nevertheless be
permitted to continue to contract with the county.

IV. O Pursuant to Executive Order No. 1 of 1993, as amended, at least three
proposals were solicited and received. The attached memorandum from the
department head describes the proposals received, along with the cost of each
proposal.

O A. The contract has been awarded to the proposer offering the lowest cost proposal; OR:

[0 B. The attached memorandum contains a detailed explanation as to the reason(s)why the
contract was awarded to other than the lowest-cost proposer. The attachment includes a specific
delineation of the unique skills and experience, the specific reasons why a proposal is deemed
superior, and/or why the proposer has been judged to be able to perform more quickly than other
proposers.

V. O Pursuant to Executive Order No. 1 of 1993 as amended, the attached
memorandum from the department head explains why the department did not
obtain at least three proposals. '

L A. There are only one or two providers of the services sought or less than three providers
submitted proposals. The memorandum describes how the contractor was determined to be the
sole source provider of the personal service needed or explains why only two proposals could be
obtained. If two proposals were obtained, the memorandum explains that the contract was
awarded to the lowest cost proposer, or why the selected proposer offered the higher quality
proposal, the proposer’s unique and special experience, skill, or expertise, or its availability to
perform in the most immediate and timely manner.

0 B. The memorandum explains that the contractor’s selection was dictated by the terms of a
federal or New York State grant, by legislation or by a court order. (Copies of the relevant
documents are attached).

O C. Pursuant to General Municipal Law Section 104, the department is purchasing the services
requited through a New York State Office of General Services contract
no. , and the attached memorandum explains how the purchase is
within the scope of the terms of that contract.







O D. Pursuant to General Municipal Law Section 119-o, the department is purchasing the services
required through an inter-municipal agreement.

V1. O This is a human services contract with a not-for-profit agency for which a

competitive process has not been initiated. Attached is a memorandum that explains the reasons
for entering into this contract without conducting a competitive process, and details when the department
intends to initiate a competitive process for the future award of these services. For any such contract, where
the vendor has previously provided services to the county, attach a copy of the most recent evaluation of
the vendor’s performance. If the contractor has not received a satisfactory evaluation, the department must
explain why the contractor should nevertheless be permitted to contract with the county.

In certain limited circumstances, conducting a competitive process and/or completing performance
evaluations may not be possible because of the nature of the human services program, or because of a
compelling need to continue services through the same provider. In those circumstances, attach an
explanation of why a competitive process and/or performance evaluation is inapplicable.

VIL O This is a public works contract for the provision of architectural, engineering
or surveying services. The attached memorandum provides details of the department’s compliance
with Board of Supervisors” Resolution No. 928 of 1993, including ifs receipt and evaluation of annual
Statements of Qualifications & Performance Data, and its negotiations with the most highly qualified
firms.

Instructions with respect to Sections VIIT, IX and X: All Departments must check the box for VIII.
Then, chgck the box for either IX or X, as applicable.

VL & Participation of Minority Group Members and Women in Nassau County
Contracts. The selected contractor has agreed that it has an obligation to utilize best efforts to hire
MWBE sub-contractors. Proof of the contractual utilization of best efforts as outlined in Exhibit “EE”
may be requested at any time, from time to time, by the Comptroller’s Office prior to the approval of
claim vouchers.

IX. /ﬁ/ Department MWBE responsibilities. To ensure compliance with MWBE requirements
as outlined in Exhibit “EE”, Department will require vendor to submit list of sub-contractor
requirements prior to submission of the first claim voucher, for services under this contract being
submitted to the Comptroller.

X. O Vendor will not require any sub-contractors.

In addition, If this is a contract with an individual or with an entity that has only one or two employees: 1 a review of the
criteria set forth by the Internal Revenue Service, Revenue Ruling No. 87-41, 1987-1 C.B. 296, attached as Appendix A to the
Comptroller’s Memorandum, dated February 13, 2004, concerning independent contractors and employees indicates that the

contractor would not be considered an employee for federal tax purposesW

f)epﬂrtmenf Tead Signature

b/ /1y

Dafe

NOTE: Any information requested above, or in the exhibit below, may be included in the county’s “staff summary” form
in lieu of a separate memorandum,
Compt. form Pers./Prof. Services Contracts: Rev. 03/16 3






Exhibit A



COUNTY OF NASSAU
POLITICAL CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Has the vendor or any corporate officers of the vendor provided campaign contributions
pursuant to the New York State Election Law in (a) the period beginning April 1, 2016 and
ending on the date of this disclosure, or (b), beginning April 1, 2018, the period beginning two
years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of this disclosure, to the
campaign committees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the campaign
committees of any candidates for any of the following Nassau County elected offices: the County
Executive, the County Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County Legislator?
If yes, to what campaign committee?

NONE

- 2 VERIFICATION: -This-section must-be signed by a-principal of the-consultant,; contractor or e e -

Vendar authorized as a signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts.

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood the foregoing
statements and they are, to his/her knowledge, true and accurate.

The undersigned further certifies and affirms that the contribution(s) to the campaign commitiees
identified above were made freely and without duress, threat or any promise of a governmental
benefit or in exchange for any benefit or remuneration,

Vendor:; Welshach Electric Corp. of L.
Dated: Aprit 5, 2016 Signed: WMM B

Print Name: Joseph P, Florio

Title: President / C.E.C.

Rev. 3-2016



Exhibit B



Page [ of 4

COUNTY OF NASSAU
LOBBYIST REGISTRATION AND DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Name, address and telephone number of lobbyist(s)/lobbying organization. The term
“lobbyist” means any and every person or organization retained, employed or designated by any
client to influence - or promote a matter before - Nassau County, its agencies, boards,
commissions, department heads, legislators or committees, including but not limited to the Open
Space and Parks Advisory Committee and Planning Commission. Such matters include, but are
not limited to, requests for proposals, development or improvement of real property subject to
County regulation, procurements. The term “lobbyist™ does not include any officer, director,
trustee, employee, counsel or agent of the County of Nassau, or State of New York, when
discharging his or her official duties.

NONE

2. List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist {¢.g., Nassau
County, New York State):

N/A

3. Name, address and telephone number of client(s) by whom, or on whose behalf, the
lobbyist is retained, employed or designated:

NONE

Rev,. 3-2016



Page 2 of 4

4. Describe lobbying activity conducted, or to be conducted, in Nassau County, and identify
client(s) for each activity listed. See page 4 for a complete description of lebbying activities.

N/A

5. The name of persons, organizations or governmental entities before whom the lobbyist
expects to lobby:

NONE

Rev. 3-2016



Page 3 of 4

6. If such lobbyist is retained or employed pursuant to a writter agreement of retainer or
employment, you must attach a copy of such document; and if agreement of retainer or

employment is oral, attach a written statement of the substance thereof. If the writien agreement

of retainer or employment does not contain a signed authorization from the client by whom you

have been authorized to lobby, separately attach such a written authorization from the client. N/A

7. Has the lobbyist/lobbying organization or any of its corporate officers provided campaign
contributions pursuant to the New York State Election Law in (a) the period beginning April 1,
2016 and ending on the date of this disclosure, or (b), beginning April 1, 2018, the period
beginning two years prior to the date of this disclosure and ending on the date of this disclosure,
to the campaign committees of any of the following Nassau County elected officials or to the
campaign committees of any candidates for any of the following Nassau County elected offices:
the County Executive, the County Clerk, the Comptroller, the District Attorney, or any County
Legislator? If yes, to what campaign committee?

NONE

I understand that copies of this form will be sent to the Nassau County Department of
Information Technology (*IT™) to be posted on the County’s website.

I also undetstand that upon termination of retainer, employment or designation [ must
give written notice to the County Attorney within thirty (30} days of termination.

VERIFICATION: The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understood
the foregoing statements and they are, to hisfher knowledge, true and accurate.

The undersipned further certifies and affirms that the contribution{s) to the campaign committees
listed above were made fieely and without duress, threat or any promise of a governmental
benefit or in exchange for any benefit or remuneration.

Dated: __ April 5, 2016 Signed:
Print Name: Jeseph P. Florio
Title: President / C.£.0.

Rev. 3-2016



Page 4 of 4

The term Jobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the
Nassau County Legislature, or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage,
defeat, or substance of any local legislation or resolution; any determination by the County
Executive to suppert, oppose, approve or disapprove any local legistation or resolution, whether
or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any determination by an
elected County official or an officer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement
of goods, services or construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including
by not limited to the preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or
administration of a contract or with respect to the solicitation, award or administration of a grant,
loan, or agreement involving the disbursement of public monies; any determination made by the
County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards,
commissions, department heads or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and
Parks Advisory Committee, the Planning Commission, with respect to the zoning, use,
development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation, or any agenceies,
boards, commissions, department heads or commitiees with respect to requests for proposals,
bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an
elected county official or an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the
acquisition or disposition by the county of any interest in real property, with respect to a license
ar permit for the use of real property of or by the county, or with respect to a franchise,
concession or revocable consent; the proposal, adoption, amendment or rejection by an agency of
. any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any rate
making proceeding before an agency; the agenda or any determination of a board or commission;
any determination regarding the calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing;

the issuance, repeal, medification or substance of a County Executive Order; or any
determination made by an elected county official or an officer or employee of the county to

~-support-or-oppose-any-state or federal-legisiation; rule or regulation;-including any-determination - =« v oo

made to support or oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or
regulation, whether or not such legislation has beer formally intreduced and whether or not such
rule or regulation has been formally proposed.

The term "lobbying" or “lobbying activities” does not include: Persons engaged in drafting
legislation, rules, regulations or rates; perscns advising clients and rendering opinions on
proposed legislation, rules, regulations or rates, where such professional services are not
otherwise connected with legislative or executive action on such legislation or administrative
action on such rules, regulations or rates; newspapers and other periodicals and radio and
television stations and owners and emplovees thereof, provided that their activities in cennection
with proposed legislation, rules, regulations or rates are limited to the publication or broadcast of
news items, editorials or other comment, or paid advertisements; persons who participate as
witnesses, attorneys or other representatives in public rule-making or rate-making proceedings of
a County agency, with respect to all participation by such persons which is part of the public
record thereof and all preparation by such persons for such participation; persons who attempt to
influence a County agency in an adjudicatory proceeding, as defined by § 102 of the New York
State Administrative Procedure Act.

Rev. 3-2016



Business History Form

The contract shall be awarded to the responsible proposer who, at the discretion of the County,
taking into consideration the reliabiity of the proposer and the capacity of the propoesar to
parform the services required by the County, offers the best value to the County and who will
best promote the public interest.

In addition to the submission of proposals, each proposer shall complete and submit this
questionnaire, The questionnaire shallbe filled out by the owner of a sole proprietorship or by
an authorized representative of the firm, corporation or partnership submitting the Proposal.

NOTE: All questions require a response, even if response is “none” or “not-applicable.
No blanks. :

(USE ADDITIONAL SHEETS IF NECESSARY TO FULLY ANSWER THE FOLLOWING
QUESTIONS).

Date: April 5, 2016
1) Proposer's Legal Name: Woelshach Electric Corp. of L.I.
2) Address of Place of Business: 300 Newtown Road, Plainview, NY 11803
List all other business addresses used within last five years:
N/A
3} Mailing Address (if different): N/A
b T BRI AGAGGRE T T e e
Does the business own or rent its facilities? Rent

4) Dun and Bradstreet number:; 01.272.8168

5} Federal 1.D, Number: 11-2354251

6) The proposer is a (check one): Sole Proprietorship Partnership
Corporation X Other (Describe) :

7) Does this business share office space, staff, or equipment expenses with any other
business?
Yes ___ No_X  IfYes, please provide details:

8) Does this business control one or more other businesses? Yes __ No X  If Yes, please
provide details:

Rev. 3-2016



9) Does this business have one or more affiliates, and/or is it a subsidiary of, or controlled by,
any other business? Yes X No___ If Yes, provide details.
Welshach Electric Corp. of L.1. is a wholly owned subsidiary of Emcor Group, Inc.

10) Has the proposer ever had a bond or surety cancelled or forfeited, or a contract with Nassau
County or any other government entity terminated? Yes ___ No X If Yes, state the
name of bonding agency, (if a bond), date, amount of bond and reason for such cancellation
or forfelture; or details regarding the termination {if a contract).

11) Has the proposer, during the past seven years, been declared bankrupt? Yes ____ No X_
if Yes, state date, court jurisdiction, amount of liabilities and amount of assets

12) In the past five years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any
affiliated business, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a ¢ivil anti-trust
investigation by any federal, state or loca! prosecuting or investigative agency? And/or, in
the past 5 years, have any owner and/or officer of any affiliated business been the subject of
a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local
prosecuting or investigative agency, where such investigation was related to activities
performed at, for, or on hehalf of an effiliated business,

Yes  No X if Yes, provide details for each such investigation.

13} In the past 5 years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers andfor any
affiliated business been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including

...but not limited.to federal, .state and local regulatory agencies? Andlor, inthe pastbyears, . ... ...

has any owner and/or officer of an gffiliated business been the subject of an investigation by
any government agency, inctuding but not limited to federal, state and local regulatory
agencies, for matters pertaining to that individual's position at or relationship to an affiliated
business. Yes ___ No X If Yas, provide detais for each such investigation.

14} Has any current ar former director, owner or officer or managerial employee of this business
had, either before or during such perscn's employment, or since such employment if the
charges pertained to events that allegedly occurred during the time of employment by the
submitting business, and allegedly related to the conduct of that business:

a) Any felony charge pending? Yes __ No X_ If Yes, provide details for
each such charge.

b} Any misdemeanor charge pending? Yes ___ No X If Yes, provide details
far each such charge. _

c) Inthe past 10 years, you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony
and/or any other crime, an glament of which relates to truthfulness or the
underlying facts of which related to the conduct of business? Yes _ No_X_

Rev. 3-2016



If Yes, provide details for each such conviction

d) Inthe past 5 years, been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
Yes __ No X If Yes, provide details for each such conviction.

e) Inthe past 5 years, been found in violation of any administrative, statutory, or
regulatory provisions? Yes __ No X If Yes, provide details for each such
occurrence,

15) In the past (5) years, has this business or any of its owners or officers, or any other &ffiliated
business had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with
respect to any professional license held? Yes No X ; [f Yes, provide details for

each such instance,

16) For the past (5) tax years, has this business failed to file any required tax returns or failed fo
pay any applicable federal, state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not
limited to water and sewer charges? Yes __ No X If Yes, provide details for each
such year. Provide a detailed response to all questions checked *YES'. If you need more

space, photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

Provide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you need more space,
photocopy the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

a)

17)66Hﬁk{6fﬂﬂéfééﬁﬂﬂ e e e e e e o et o o e

Please disclose any conflicts of interest as outlined below. NOTE: If na

canflicts exist, please expressly state “No conflict exists.”

(i) Any material financial relationships that your firm or any firm employee has
that may create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a confiict of interest in
acting on behalf of Nassau County.

Na conflict exists

(i Any family relationship that any employee cf your firm has with any County
public servant that may create a confiict of interest or the appearance of a conflict
of interast in acting on behalf of Nassau County.

No conflict exists

(i) Any other matter that your firm believes may create a conflict of interest or
the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting on behalf of Nassau Caunty.

NONE

Please describe any procedures your firm has, or would adopt, to assure the
County that a conflict of interest would not exist for your firm in the future.

N/A

Rev. 3-2016



A. Include a resume or detailed description of the Proposer’s professional qualifications,
demonstrating extensive experience in your profession. Any prior similar experiences, and
the results of these experiences, must be identified.

Should the propcser he other than an individual, the Proposal MUST include;
iy Date of formation;

iiy Name, addresses, and position of all persons having a financial interest in the
company, including sharehoiders, members, general or limited partner;

il Name, address and position of &l officers and directors of the company;

iv)  State of incorporation (if applicable);

¥ The number of employees in the firm: See attached EMCOR Group Annual Reporf 2015
vi}  Annual revenue of firm;

vii)  Summary of relevant accomplishmants

viii) Copies of all state and local licenses and permits,
B. Indicate number of years in business. 60 Years

C. Provide any other information which would be apgropriate and helpful in determining the
Proposer's capacity and reliability to perform these services,  N/A

D. Provide names and addresses for no fewer than three references for whom the Proposer
has provided similar services or who are qualified to evaluate the Proposer's capability to
peform s Work. ..o e

Company __New York State D.O.T.

Contact Pergon Christine Caputo

Address 221 Broadway, Suite 201

City/State _Amityvilie, New York 11701

Telephone {631) 588-7805

Fax# (631) 558-7807

E-Mail Address CCaputo@PDot.State.NY.US

Rev. 3-2016



Company Nassau County DPW

Contact Person__Sheila Dukacz

Address 1194 Prospect Ave, Suite 183

City/State _ Westbury, New York 11590

Telephone (516) 572-0465

Fax# {516) 571-9363

E-Mail Address SDukacz@NassauCountyNY.gov

Company ___Tewn of Huntington

Contact Person_ Brad Kuska

Address 100 Main Street

City/State Huntington, New York 11743

Telephone (631) 351-3057

Fax # (631) 351-3066

" E-Mall Address _ BKusko@Town.Huntington.NY.US

Rev. 3-2016



CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE
SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT
BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE
FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

3 Joseph P. Florio . being duly sworn, state that | have read and understand zll
the items contained in the foregoing pages of this questionnaire and the following pages of
attachments; that | supplied full and complete answers to each item therein fo the best of my
knowledge, information and belief; that | will notify the County in writing of any change in
circumstances occurring after the submission of this questionnaire and before the exscution of
the contract; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge,
Information and bellef, | understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this
guestionnaire as additional inducemant to enter into a contract with the submitting business
entity.

Swaorn to before me this 5th  day of April 2016

é_/ DARLENE KUMMER
' Nofary Public, State of New York
ot

Notapy#ubli No. 01KUB096T16
2 Hote Qualified in Suffolk County
Commission Expires August 4, 2019

Name of submitting business: Walshach Electric Corp, of L.l

By: Joseph P. Florio

Signature

Eresident / C.E.C.
Title

05 / 2016

04
Date

/

Rev. 3-2016



PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these guestionnaires must be answered by all officers and any individuals who
hold a ten percent (10%) or greater ownership interest in the propeser. Answers typewritten or
printed in ink. If you need more space to answer any question, make as many photocopies of
the appropriate page(s) as necessary and attach them to the questionnaire,

COMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FA[LURE TO

SUBMIT A COMPLETE QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID OR PROPOSAL

WILL BE REJECTED AS NON-RESPONSIVE AND IT WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR

AWARD

1.

Principal Name' Juseph P. Florio

Date of birth_|
City/state/zip

Business address 300 Newtown Road

City/state/zip Plainview, New York 11803
Telephone {516) 454-0023

Other present address(es)

City/state/zip

Telephone

_l__ist_ qf c_vth_er_ac_l_dr_e_sses and te[ephonernumbersrattachkerq‘” S

Positions held in submitting business and starting date of each (check all applicable)
President 02 ¢ 15 42002 Tygagurer /[

Chairman of Board / / Shareholder / !

Chief Exec. Officer 02 7 13 /2002 gapratary I

Chief Financial Officer _11 05 /1983 parner 1 4

Vice President 95 / 01 ;1992 |

(Cther)

Do you have an equity interest In the business submitting the questionnaire?
YES ___ NO _X_ If Yes, provide details,

Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease or any
other type of contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business
submitting the questionnaire? YES ___ NO X If Yes, provide details.

Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal ewner or officer of any business or not-
far-profit organization other than the ene submitting the questionnaire? YES ___ NO X ;
If Yes, provide details.
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6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in
Section 5 in the past 3 years while you were a principal owner or officer? YES ___ NO X
If Yes, provide details.

NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arose automatically, by
operation of faw, or as a result of any action taken by a government agency.

Provide a detailed response te all questions checked "YES", |f you need more space, photocopy
the appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire,

7. Inthe past (5) years, have you and/or any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit
organizations listed in Section & in which you have been a principal owner or officer;

a.

Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that
agency?
YES NO X [fYes, provide details for each such instance.

Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any confract, andfor had any
contracts cancelled for cause? YES NO _X_ If Yes, provide details for each
sUch Instance.

Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opportunity to bid on a contract,
including, but not limited o, failure to meet pre-qualification standards? YES ___
NO X If Yes, provide details for each such instance.

Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with i;
and/for is any actien pending that could formally debar or otherwise affect such
business's abllity to bid or propcse on contract? YES NO X If Yes, provide

-.....details for each.such instance. . . .

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a
bankruptey petition and/or been the subject of involuntary bankruptey proceedings during
the past 7 years, and/or far any portion of the last 7 year period, beenin a state of
bankruptcy as a result of bankruptcy proceedings initfated more than 7 years ago andfor Is
any such business now the subject of any pending bankruptey proceedings, whenever
initiated®? If Yes'’, provide details for each such instance. (Provide a detailed response to all
guestions checked "YES", If you need mare space, photocopy the appropriate page and
aftach it to the questionnaira.)

a)

b)

Is there any felony charge pending against you? YES ___ NO _X_ If Yes, provide
detalils for each such charge,

s there any misdemeanor charge pending against you? YES NO X If
Yes, provide details for each such charge.

|s there any administrative charge pending against you? YES NO X If
Yes, provide details for each such charge,

In the past 10 years, have you been convicied, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or
of any cther crime, an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts
of which related to the conduct of business? YES __ NO X _  If Yes, provide
details for each such conviction.

Rev,. 3-2016



9.

10,

1.

g) Inthe past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a
misdemeanor?
YES ___ NO _X If Yes, provide details for each such conviction.

f) Inthe past 5 years, have you been faound in violation of any administrative or
statutory charges? YES NO X |If Yes, provide details for each such
occurrence,

In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5
years, have you been the subject of a criminal investigation andfor a civil anti-trust
investigation by any federal, state or local prosecuiting or investigative agency and/or the
subject of an investigation where such investigation was related to adivities performed at,
for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated business listed in
response to Question 5? YES____ NO _X  If Yes, provide details for each such
investigation,

In addition to the infarmation provided, in the past 5 years has any business or organization
listed in response to Question 5, been the subject of & criminal investigation and/or a civil
anti-trust investigation andf/or any other type of investigation by any government agency,
including but not limited to federal, state, and local regulatory agencies while you were a
principal owner or officer? YES NO X [f Yes; provide detalls for each such
investigation.

In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in
response to Question 5 had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative
proceedings with respect to any professional license held? YES NO X IfYes;

_.provide details for each such instance. . .. e

12.

For the past 5 tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns or failed tc pay any
applicable federal, state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not fimited
to water and sewer charges? YES NO X If Yes, provide details for each such
year,
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CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE
SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT
BID OR FUTURE BIDS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE
FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

[, Joseph P. Florio . being duly sworn, state that | have read and understand all
the items contained in the foregoing pages of this questionnaire and the following pages of
attachments; that | supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my
knowledge, information and belief; that | will nefify the County in writing of any change in
circumstances occurring after the submission of this questionnaire and before the execution of
the contract; and that all information supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge,
information and belief. | understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this
guestionnaire as additional inducement to enter into a contract with the submitting business
entity.

Sworn to before me this 5th day of April 2016
DARLENE KUMMER
Notary Public, State of New York
"7 Np. DAKUG086716
Qualified in Suffolk County
Commiesien Explres August 4, 2019
\NotapPublic

Welshach Electric Corp. of L.l
Name of submitting business

loseph P. Florio

Frint name {i/;ﬂ
%/ 5/’4/

Signature
President / C.E.O.
Title
04 / 05 1,2015
Date

Rev. 3-2016
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COUNTY QF NASSALU

CONSULTANT’S, CONTRACTOR’S AND VENDOR'S DISCLOSURE FORM

1. Name of the Ent]ty; Welshach Electric Corp. of L.l

Address: 300 Newtown Road

City, State and Zip Code: Plainview, New York 11803

2. Entity’s Vendor Identification Number: 11-2354251

3. Type of Business: X_Public Corp Partnership Joint Venture

Ltd, Liability Co Closely Held Corp Other (specify)

4, List names and addresses of all principals; that is, all individuals serving on the Board of
Directors or comparable body, all partners and limited partners, all corporate officers, all parties
of Joint Ventures, and all members and officers of limited liability companies (attach additional
sheets if necessary):

~ See EMCOR Group, Inc. 2015 Annual Report.

3. List names and addresses of all shareholders, members, or partners of the firm. 1f the
sharcholder is not an individual, list the individual shareholders/partners/members. If a Publicly
held Corporation, include a copy of the 10K in lieu of completing this section.

See EMCOR Group, Inc. 2015 Annual Report,
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6. List all affiliated and related companies and their relationship to the firm entered on line

[, above (if none, enter “None™). Attach a separate disclosure form for each affiliated or
subsidiary company that may take part in the performance of this contract. Such disclosure shall
be updated to include affiliated or subsidiary companies not previously disclosed that participate
in the performance of the contract.

See EMCOR Group, Inc. 2015 Annual Report. No other subsidiary other than firm entered on

Line 1 will be taking part in the performance of this contract.

7. List all lobbyists whose services were utilized at any stage in this matter (i.e., pre-bid,
bid, post-bid, etc.}. [f none, enter “None.” The term “jobbyist™ means any and every person or
organization retained, employed or designated by any client to influence - or promote a matter

.. .before - Nassau.County,.its.agencies,-boards, commissions, department heads, legislators.or ... .. ... o

committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee and
Planning Commission. Such matters include, but are not [imited to, requests for proposals,
development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation, procurements. The
term “lobbyist” does not include any officer, director, trustee, employee, counsel or agent of the
County of Nassau, or State of New York, when discharging his or her official duties.

(a) Name, title, business address and telephone number of lobbyist(s):

NONE
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(b) Describe lobbying activity of each lobbyist. See below for a complete
deseription of lobbying activities.

NONE

(¢} List whether and where the person/organization is registered as a lcbbyist {e.g.,
WNassau County, New York State):

N/A

~ 8. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultant,
contractor or Vendor authorized as a signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts.

The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and understeod the foregoing
statements and they are, to his/her knowledge, true and accurate.

e e -

Dated: April 5, 2016 Signed: o P At
rd

Print Name: Josaph P. Florio

Tiile: President / C.E.O,
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The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the
Nassau County Legislature, or any member thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage,
defeat, or substance of any local legislation or resclution; any determination by the County
Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any local legislation or resolution, whether
or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any determination by an
elected County official or an officer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement
of goods, services or construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including
by not limited to the preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or
administration of a contract or with respect to the solicitation, award or administration of a grant,
loan, or agreement involving the disbursement of public monies; any determination made by the
County Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boards,
commissions, department heads or committees, including but not limited to the Open Space and
Parks Advisory Committee, the Planning Commission, with respect to the zoning, use,
development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation, or any agencies,
boards, commissions, department heads or committees with respect to requests for proposals,
bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an
elected county official or an officer or employee of the county with respect to the terms of the
acquisition or disposition by the county of any interest in real property, with respect to a license
or permit for the use of real property of or by the county, or with respect to a franchise,
concession or revocable consent; the propesal, adoption, amendment or rejection by an agency of
any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to held, timing or outcome of any rate
making proceeding before an agency; the agenda or any determination of a board or commission;
any determination regarding the calendaring or scepe of any legislature oversight hearing;

the issuance, repeal, modification or substance of a County Executive Order; or any

-—determination-made by-an-elected-county official or-an-officer or-employee ofthe-county-to - e o e

support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rule or regulation, including any determination
made to support or oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or
regulation, whether or not such legislation has been formally introduced and whether or not such
tule or regulation has been formally proposed.
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, I.C, 20549

FORM 10-K

X ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 QR 15(d) OF THE SECURTITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to
Commission file number 1-8267

EMCOR Group, Inc.
(Exact name of registrant as specificd in its ebarter)
Delaware 11-2125338
(State or othet jurisdiction of (LR.S, Employer
incorporation ot organization) Identification Number)
301 Merritt Seven
Norwalk, Connecticut 06851-1092
(Address of principal exccutive offices) {Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area codes (203) 849-7800
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(h) of the Act;

Title of each elass Name of each exchange on which registered

Common Stock New York Stock Exchange
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes [X] No O
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reporis pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Scourities Exchange Act. Yes 00 No X

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Excliange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12
menths (or for such shorter pericd that the regisirant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes X1 No O

Indicate by checlt mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and
posted pursuant to Rule 465 of Regulation S-T (Section 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months {or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to
subimit and post such files). Yes Ne O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to ltem 405 of Regulation S-K. (Section 229.405) iz not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best
of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

[ndicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of “large
accelerated filer,” “accelerated file” and “smaller reporting company™ in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act,

(Do not cheek if a smaller reporting
Large accelerated filer El  Accelerated filer O Non-accelerated filer O company) Smaller reporting company O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes [0 Ne

The aggregate market value of the common stock held by nen-affiliates of the registrant was approximately $2,245,000,000 as of the last business day of the regisirant’s most
recently completed second fiscal quarter, based upon the closing sale price on the New York Stock Exchange reported for such date, Shares of common stock held by esch
executive officer and director and by each person who owns 5% or more of the outstanding common stock (based selely on filings of such 5% holdets) have been excluded from:
such caleulation as such persons may be deemed to be affiliates, This determination of affiliate status is not necessarily a conclusive determination for other purposes.

Number of shares of the registrant’s common stock outstanding as of the close of business on February 22, 2016: 60,659,492 shares.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Part 111 Portions of the definitive proxy statement for the 2016 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which document will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
pursuant to Regulation 14A not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year to which this Form 10-K relates, are incorporated by reference into Items 10 through 14 of Paxt I11
of this Fortn 10-K.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain information included in this report, or in other materials we have filed or will file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC™) (as
well as information included in oral statements or other written statemants made or to be made by us) contains or may contain forward-looking statements
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the “1995 Act”). Such statements are being made pursuant to the 1995 Act and
with the infention of obtaining the benefit of the “Safe Harbor” provisions of the 1995 Act. Forward-looking statements are based on information available to
us and our perception of such information as of the date of this report and our current expectations, estimates, forecasts and projections about the industries in
which we operate and the beliefs and assumptions of our management. You can identify these statements by the fact that they do not relate strictly to
historical or current facts, They contain words such as “anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,” “project,” “intend,” “plan,” “believe,” “may,” “can,” “could,”
“might,” variations of such wording and other words or phrases of similar meaning in connection with a discussion of our future operating or financial
performance, and other aspects of our business, including market share growth, gross profit, project mix, projects with varying profit margins, selling, general
and administrative expenses, and trends in our business and other characterizations of future events or ¢ircumstances. From time to time, forward-locking
statements also are included in our other periodic reports on Forms 13-Q and 8-K, in press releases, in our presentations, on our website and in other material
released to the public. Any or all of the forward-looking statements included in this report and in any other reports or public statements made by us are only
predictions and are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions, including thosc identified below in the “Risk Factors” section, the “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Cendition and Results of Opetations” section, and other sections of this report, and in our Forms 10-Q for the three
months ended March 31, 2015, Jung 30, 2015 and September 30, 2015 and in other reports filed by us from time to time with the SEC as well as in press
releases, in our presentations, on our website and in other material released to the public. Such risks, uncertainties and assumptions are difficult to predict,
beyond our control and may turn out to be inaceurate causing actual results to differ materially from those that might be anticipated from our forward-looking
statements. We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or
otherwise. However, any further disclosures made on refated subjects in our subsequent reports on Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K should be consulted.
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

References to the “Company,” “EMCOR,” “we,” “us,” “our” and similar words refer to EMCOR Group, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries unless the
context indicates otherwise,

General

We are one of the largest electrical and mechanical construction and facilities services firms in the United States. In addition, we provide a number of
building services and industrial services. In 2015, we had revenues of approximately $6.7 billion. Our setvices are provided to a broad range of commercial,
industtial, utility and institutional customers through approximately 70 operating subsidiaries and joint venture entities. Our executive offices are located at
301 Merritt Seven, Norwalk, Connecticut 06851-1092, and our telephone number at those offices is (203) 849-7800,

We specialize principally in providing construction services relating to electrical and mechanical systems in all types of non-residential and certain
residential facilities and in providing various services relating to the operation, maintenance and management of facilities, including refineries and
petrochemical plants.

Due to a historical pattern of losses in the construction operations of our United Kingdom segment and our negative assessment of construction market
conditions in the United Kingdom for the forgseeable future, we announced during the quarter ended June 30, 2013 our decision to withdraw from the
construction market in the United Kingdom. During the third quarter of 2014, we ceased construction opetations in the United Kingdom. The results of the
construction opetations of our United Kingdom segment for all periods are presented as discontinued operations.

We design, integrate, install, start-up, operate and maintain various electrical and mechanical systems, including:
« Electtic power transmission and distribution systems;

« Premises electrical and lighting systems;

+ Low-voltage systems, such as fire alarm, security and process control systems;

*  Voice and data communications systems;

« Roadway and transit lighting and fiber optic lines;

= Heating, ventilation, air conditioning, refrigeration and clean-room process ventilation systems;
« Fire protection systems;

+  Plumbing, process and high-purity piping systems;

» Controls and filtration systems;

«  Water and wastewater treatment systetmns;

= Central plant heating and cooling systemns;

+ Crane and rigging services;

«  Millwright services; and

+  Steel fabrication, erection, and welding services.

Qur building services operations, which are provided to a wide range of facilitics, including commercial, utility, institutional and governmental facilities,
include: '

s Commercial and government site-based operations and maintenance;
+ Facilify maintenance and services, including reception, scourity and catering services;

+ Qutage services to utilities and industrial plants;
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+ Military basc operations support services;

+ Mobile mechanical maintenance and services;

+ Floor care and janitorial services;

» Landscaping, lot sweeping and snow removal;

= Facilities management;

«  Vendor management;

*  (Call center services;

* Installation and support for building systems;

*  Program development, management and maintenance for energy systems;

+ Technical consulting and diagnostic services;

+ Infrastructure 2nd building projects for federal, state and local govemmental agencies and bedies; and

«  Small modification and retrofit projects.

Our industrial services are provided to refineties and petrochemical plants and include:

*  On-site repairs, maintenance and service of heat exchangers, towers, vessels and piping;

+ Design, manufacturing, repair and hydro blast cleaning of shell and tube heat exchangers and related equipment;

= Refinery tumnaround planning and engineering services;

+  Speeialty welding services;

+  Overbaul and maintenance of critical process units in refineries and petrochemical plants; and

+  Specialty technical services for refineries and petrochemical plants.

We provide construction services and building services directly to corporations, municipalities and federal and statc govemmental entities,
owners/developers, and tenants ofbuildings. We also provide our construction services indirectly by acting as a subcontractor to general contractors, systems

suppliers, property managers and other subcontractors. Our industrial services generally are provided directly to refincries and petrochemical plants.
Worldwide, as of December 31, 201 5, we had approximately 29,000 employees.

Qur revenues are derived from many different customers in numerous industries, which have operations in several different geographical areas. Of our 2015
revenues, approximately 94% were generated in the United States and approximately 6% were generated in foreign countries, substantially all in the United
Kingdom, In 2015, approximately 33% ofrevenucs were derived from new construction projects, 18% were derived from renovation and retrofit of customer’s
existing facilities, 35% were derived from our building services operations, and 14% were derived from cur industrial services aperations.

The broad scope of our operations is more particularly described below. For information regarding the revenues, operating income and total assets of each
of our segments with respect to each of the last three years, and our revenues and assets attributable to the United States and the United Kingdom for the last
three years, see Note 17 - Segment Information of the notes to consolidated financial statements included in Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data.

Operations

The electrical and mechanical construction setvices industry has grown over the years due principally to the increased content, complexity and
sophistication of slectrical and mechanical systems, as well as the installation of more fechnologically advanced voice and data comnwnications, lighting,
and environmental contro! systems in all types of facilities in latge part due to the integration of digital processing and information technology. For these
reasons, buildings need extensive electrical distribution systems. In addition, advanced voice and data communication systems require sophisticated power
supplies and extensive low-voltage and fiber-optic communications cabling. Moreoves, the need for substantial environmental controls within a building,
due io the heightened need for climate control to maintain extensive computer systems at optimal temperatures, and the demand for energy savings and
environmental contrels in individual spaces have over the years expanded opportunitics for our electrical and

2




Table of Contents

mechanical services businesses. The demand for these services is typically driven by non-residential construction and renovation activity.

Electrical and mechanical construction services primarily involve the design, integration, installation and start-up, and provision of setvices relating to:
(a) electric power transmission and distribution systems, including power cables, conduits, distribution panels, transformers, generators, uninternuptible power
supply systems and related switch gear and controls; (b) premises electrical and lighting systems, including fixtures and controls; (¢} low-voltage systems,
such as fire alarm, security and process control systems; (d) voice and data communications systems, including fiber-optic and low-voltage cabling;
(¢) roadway and transit lighting and fiber-optic lines; (f) heating, ventilation, air conditioning, refrigeration and clean-room process ventilation systems;
(g) fire protection systems; (h) plumbing, process and high-purity piping systems; (i) controls and filtration systems; (j) water and wastewater treatment
systems; (k) central plant heating and cooling systems; (1} cranes and rigging; {m) millwrighting; and (n) steel fabrication, erection and welding.

Electrical and mechanical construction services generally fall into one of two categories: {a} large installation projects with contracts often in the multi-
million dollar range that involve construction of manufacturing and commercial buildings and institutional and public wotks projects or the fit-out of large
blocks of space within commercial buildings and (b) smaller installation projects typically involving fit-out, renovation and retrofit work.

Our United States electrical and mechanical construction services operations accounted for about 51% of our 2015 revenues, approximately 65% of which
were related to new construction and approximately 35% of which were related to renovation and retrofit projects, Due to a historical pattern of losses in the
construction operations of our United Kingdem segment and our negative assessment of construction market conditions in the United Kingdom for the
foreseeable future, we announced during the quarter ended June 30, 2013 our decision to withdraw from the construction market in the United Kingdom.
During the third quarter of 2014, we ceased construction operations in the United Kingdom. The results of the construction operations of cur United
Kingdom segment for all periods are presented as discontinued operations. Accordingly, we focus in the United Kingdom principally on building services.

We provide electrical and mechanical construction services for both large and small installation and renovation projects, Our largest projects have
included those: (a) for institutional purposes (such as educational and cormrectional facilities and research laboratories); (b) for manutacturing purposes (such
ng phannaceutical plants, steel, pulp and paper mills, chemical, food, avtomotive and semiconductor manufacturing facilities and power generation); {c} for
transportation purposes (such as highways, bridges, aimports and transit systems); (d) for commercial purposes (such as office buildings, data centers,
convention centers, sports stadiums and shopping malls); (g) for hospitality purposes (such as resorts, hotels and casinos); (f) for water and wastewater
purposes; and (g) for healtheare purposes. Cur latgest projects, which typically range in size from $10.0 million up to and occasionally exceeding $150,0
million and are frequently multi-year projects, represented approximately 27% of our worldwide construction services revenues in 2015.

Our projects of less than $10.0 million accounted for approximately 73% of our worldwide construction services revenues in 2015, These prejects are
typically completed in less than one year They usually inveolve electrical and mechanical construction services when an end-user or owner undertakes
construction or modification of a facility to accommodate a specific use, These projects frequently require electrical and mechanical systems to meet special
needs such as critical systems power supply, fire protection systems, special environmental controls and high-purity air systems, sophisticated electrical and
mechanical systems for data centers, new production lines in manufacturing plants, and office arrangoments in existing office buildings. They are not usually
dependent upon the new construction marlket. Demand for these prejects and types of services is often prompted by the expiration of leases, changes in
technology, or changes in the customer’s plant or office layout in the normal course of a customer’s business.

We have a broad customer base with many long-standing relationships. We perform construction services pursuant to contracts with owners, such as
corporations, municipalities and other governmental catities, general contractors, systems suppliers, construction managers, developers, other subcontractors
and tenants of commercial properties. Instituticnal and public works projects are frequently long-term complex projects that require significant technical and
management skills and the financial strength to obfain bid and performance bonds, which are often a condition to bidding for and winning these projects,

We also install and maintain lighting for streets, highways, bridges and tunnels, traffic signals, computerized traftic control systems, and signal and
communication systems for mass transit syslems in several metropolitan areas. In addition, in the United States, we manufacture and install sheet metal air
handling systems for both our own mechanical constniction operations and for unrelated mechanical contractors, We also maintain welding and pipe
fabrieation shops in support of some of our mechanical operations.

Our United States building services segment offers & broad range of services, including operation, maintenance and service of electrical and mechanical
systems; commercial and government site-based operations and maintenance; facility maintenance and
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services, including outage setvices to utilities and manufacturing facilities; military base operations support services; mobile mechanical maintenance and
services; floor care and janitorial services; landscaping, lot sweeping and snow removal; facilities management; vendor management; call center services;
installation and suppert for building systems; program development, managoment and maintenance with respect to energy systems; technical consulting and
diaghoestic services; infrastructure and building projects for federal, state and local governmental agencies and bodies; and small modification and retrofit
prejects.

These building services, which generated approximately 35% of our 2015 revenues, are provided to owners, operators, tenants and managers of all types of
facilities both on a contract basis for a specified period of time and on an individual task order basis, Of our 2015 building services revenues, approximately
87% were generated in the United States and approximately 13% were generated in the United Kingdom.

Our building services operations have built upon our traditional electrical and mechanical services operations and our client relationships to expand the
scope of services being offered and to develop packages of services for customers an a regional and national basis.

Demand for our building services is often driven by customers’ decisions to focus on their core competencies, customers’ programs to reduce costs, the
increasing technical complexity of their facilities and their mechanical, electrical, voice and data and other systems, and the need for increased reliability,
especially in electrical and mechanical systems, These trends have led to outsourcing and privatization programs whereby customers in both the private and
public sectors scck to contract out those activitics that support, but are not directly associated with, the customer’s core business. Clients of our building
services business include federal and state governments, ufilities, independent power producers, pulp and paper producers, and major corporations engaged
in information technology, telecommunications, pharmacenticals, financial services, publishing and other manufacturing, and large retailers and other
businesses with geographically dispersed portfolios throughout the Unifed States.

We currently provide building services in a majority of the states in the United States to commercial, industrial, institutional and governmental customers
and as part of our operations are responsible for: (a) the oversight of all or most of the facilities operations of a business, including operation and
maintenance; (b) setvicing, upgrade and retrofit of HVAC, electrical, plumbing and industrial piping and sheet meta! systems in existing facilities; (c) interior
and exterior services, including floor care and janitorial services, landscaping, lot sweeping and snow removal; (d) diagnostic and solution engineering for
building systems and their components; and (&) maintenance and support services to manufacturers and power preducers.

In the Washington D.C. metropoelitan area, we provide building services at a number of preeminent buildings, including those that house the Secret Service,
The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the National Forcign Affairs Training Center, and the Department of Health and Human Services, as well as other
government facilities including the NASA Jet Propulsion Laboratory in Pasadena, Califomia. We also provide building services to u number of military
bascs, including base operations support services to the Navy National Capital Region and the Army’s Fort Iuachuca, Arizona, and are also involved in a
joint venture providing building services to the Naval Support Activity Mid-South Base in Tennessce, The agreements pursuant to which this division
pravides services to the federal government are frequently for a base year and a number of option years exercisable at the sole discretion of the government,
are often subject to renegotiation by the govemment in terms of scope of services, and are subject to termination by the government prior to the expiration of
the applicable term.

Qur United Kingdom subsidiaty primarily focuses on building services and cwrrently provides a broad range of services under multi-year agreements to
public and private secter customers, including airlines, airports, real estate property managers, manufacturers and governmental agencies,

Our industrial services business is a recognized leader in the refinery turnaround matket and has a growing presence in the petrochemical market, In July
2013, we acquired RepconStrickland, Inc. expanding services we provide to our refinery and petrochemical customers and significantly increasing the size of
our industrial services business, Our industrial services business; (a) provides after-matket maintenance, repair and cleaning services for highly engineered
shell and tubc heat exchangers for refinerics and petrochemical plants both in the field and at our own shops, including tube and shell repairs, bundle repairs,
and extraction services, and (b) designs and manufactures new highly engineered shell and tube heat exchangers, We also perform a broad range of
turnaround and maintenance services for critical units of refineries so as to upgrade, repair and maintain them. Such services include tumaround and
maintenance services relating to: (i) engineering and planning services in advance of complex refinery turnarounds, (i) overhaul and maintenance of eritical
ptocess units (including hydroflucric alkylation units, fluid catalytic cracking units, coking units, heaters, heat exchangers and related mechanical
equipment) during refinery and petrochemical plant shut downs, (iii) replacement and new construction capital projects for refineries and petrochemical
plants, and (iv) other related specialty technical services such as (a) welding, including pipe welding, and fabrication; heatet, boiler, and reformer repairs and
replacements; converter repair and revamps; and vessel, exchanger and tower services; (b) tower and column repairs in refineries and petrochemical facilities;
(c) installation and repair of refractory materials for ctitical units in process plants so as to protect
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equipment fiom corrosion, crosion, and cxtreme temperatures; and (d) acid-proofing services to protect critical components at refineries from chemical
exposure,

Competition

In our construction services, building services and industrial services businesses, we compete with natienal, regional and local companies, many of which
are small, owner-operated entities that carry on their businesses in a limited geographic area, as well as with certain foreign companies.

We believe that the electrical and mechanical construction services businesses are highly fragmented and our competition includes thousands of small
companies across the United States. In the United States, there are a few public companies focused on providing either electrical and/or mechanical
construction services, such as Integrated Electrical Services, Inc., Comfort Systems USA, Inc. and Tutor Perini Corporation. A majority of our revenues are
derived from projects requiring competitive bids; however, an invitaticn to bid is often conditioned upon prior experience, technical capability and financial
strength. Because we have total assets, annual revenues, access to bank credit and surety bonding and expertise significantly greater than most of our
competitors, we believe we have a significant competitive advantage over our competitors in providing electrical and mechanical construction services.
Competitive factors in the electrical and mechanical construction services business include: (a) the availability of qualified and/or licensed personnel;
(b) reputation for integtity and quality; {c} safety record; (d) cost structure; (¢) relationships with customers; (f) geographic diversity; (g) the ability to control
project costs; (h) experience in specialized markets; () the ability to obtain surety bonding; (j} adequate working capital; (k) access to bank credit; and
(1) price. However, there are relatively few significant barriers to entry to several types of our construction services business.

While the building services business is also highly fragmented with most competitors operating in a specific geographic region, a humbet of large United
States based coiperations such as AECOM Technology Corporation, Johnsen Controls, Inc., Fluor Corp., J&J Worldwide Services, Cushman & Wakefield
In¢,, CB Richard Ellis, Inc,, Jones Lang LaSalle Incorporated, Sodexe, Inc,, Aramatk Corporation and ABM Industries Incorporated are engaged in this field,
as are large original equipment manufacturers such as Carrier Corp. and Trane Inc. In addition, we compete with several regional firms serving all or portions
of the markets we target, such as Brickman Valley Crest, Ine., Kellermeyer Bergensons Services, Inc,, SMS Assist, LLC and Ferandino & Sons, Inc. QOur
principal services competitors in the United Kingdom include ISS UK Ltd. and MITIE Group ple. The key competitive factors in the building services
business include price, service, quality, technical expertise, geographic scope and the availability of qualified personnel and managers. Due to our size, both
financial and geographic, and our technical capability and management experience, we belicve we are in a strong competitive position in the building
services business, However, there are relatively few barriers to entry to most of our building services businesses,

In our industtial setvices business, we are a leading North American provider of after-market maintenance and repair services for, and manufacturing of,
highly engineered shell and fube heat exchangers and related equipment and a leader in providing specialized services to refineries and petrochemical plants.
The market for providing these services and products to refineries and petrochemical plants is highly fragmented and includes large natienal industrial
services providers, as well as numerous regional companies, including JV Industrial Companies Ltd., Matrix Service Company, Starcon, Turner Industries,
Team, Inc., Cust-0-Fab, Dunn Heat, and Wyatt Field Service Company. In the manufacture of heat oxchangers, we compote with both US. and foreign
manufacturers. The key competitive factors in the industrial services market include service, quality, ability to respond quickly, technical expertise, price,
safety record and availability of qualified personnel. Due te our technical capabilities, safety record and skilled workforee, we believe that we are in a strong
competitive position in the industrial services market we serve. Because of the complex tasks associated with turnarounds and the precision required in the
manufacture of heat exchangers, we believe that the barmiers to entry in this business are significant.

Employees

At December 31, 2013, we employed approximately 29,000 people, approximately 56% of whom are represented by various unions pursuant to more than
375 collective bargaining agreements between our individual subsidiaries and local unions. We believe that our employee relations are generally good. Only
two of these collective bargaining agreements are national or regional in scope.

Backlog

Qur backlog at December 31, 2015 was $3.77 billion compared to $3.63 billion of backlog at December 31, 2014, Backlog increases with awards of new
contracts and decreases as we perform work on existing centracts. Backlog is not a term recognized under United States generally accepted accounting
principles; however, it i3 a common measurement used in our industry, We include a project within our backlog at such time as a contract is awarded and
agreement on contract terms has been reached. Backlog includes unrecognized revenues to be realized from uncompleted constructien contracts plus
unrecognized revenues expected to be realized over the remaining term of services contracts, However, we do not include in backlog coniracts for which
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we are paid on a tinie and material basis and a fixed amount cannot be detormined, and if the remaining term of a services contract exceeds 12 months, the
unrecognized revenues attributable to such conteact included in backlog are limited to only the next 12 months of revenues provided for in the contract
award. Our backlog alse includes amounts related to setvices contracts for which a fixed ptice contract value is not assigned when a reasonable estimate of
total revenues can be made from budgeted amounts agreed to with our customer, Our backlog is comprised of; (a) original contract amounts, (b) change orders
for which we have received written confirmations from our customers, (¢) pending change orders for which we cxpect to receive confirmations in the ordinary
course of business and (¢) claim amounts that we have made against customers for which we have determined we have a legal basis under existing contractual
arrangements and as to which we consider recovery to be probable. Such claim amounts were immaterial for all periods presented. Cur backlog does not
include anticipated revenues from unconsolidated joint ventures or variable interest entities and anticipated revenues from pass-through costs on contracts
for which we are acting in the capacity of an agent and which are reported on the net basis. We believe our backlog is firm, although many contracts are
subject to cancellation at the election of our customers, Historically, cancellations have not had a material adverse offect on us. Wo estimate that 79% of our
backlog as of December 31, 2015 will be recognized as revenues during 2016,

Avaitlable Information

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission, which we refer to as
the “SEC”, These filings are available to the public over the intemet at the SEC’s website at hitp://wwwsec.gov. You may also read and copy any document
we file at the SEC’ Public Reference Rootm located at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549, Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further
information on the Public Reference Room,

Qur Intemet address is www.emcorgroup.com. We make available free of charge through www.emcorgreup.com our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reperts on Form 8-K, and amendments to those rcports, as scon as reasonably prasticable after we electronically file such
material with, or furnish it to, the SEC. References to our website addressed in this report ate provided as a convenience and do not constitute, and should not
be viewed as, an incotporation by reference of the information contained on, or available through, the website, Therefore, such information should not be
considered part of this report.

Qur Board of Directors has an audit committee, a compensation and personnel commitice and a nominating and corporate governance committee. Each of
these committees has a formal charter. We also have Cotporate Govemnance Guidelines, which include guidelines regarding rclated party transastions, a Code
of Ethics for our Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officers, and a Code of Ethics and Busingss Conduct for Directors, Officers and Employees.
Copies of these chatters, gnidelines and codes, and any waivers or amendments to such codes which are applicable to our executive officers, senior financial
officers or directors, can be obtained frec of charge from our website, www.emcorgroup.com,

You may reguest a copy of the foregoing filings (excluding exhibits), charters, guidelines and codes and any waivers or amendments to such codes which
are applicable to our executive officers, senior financial officers or directors, at no cost by writing to us at EMCOR Group, Inc., 301 Merritt Seven, Norwalk,
CT 06851-1092, Attention: Corporate Secretary, or by telephoning us at (203) 849-7800.

ITEM 1A, RISK FACTORS

Our business is subject to a variety ofrisks, including the risks described below as well as adverse business and market conditions and risks associated with
foreign operations. The risks and uncertaintics described below are not the only ones facing us, Additional risks and uncertaintics not known to us or not
described below which we have not determined to be material may also impair our business operations. You should carefully consider the risks described
below, together with all other information in this tepott, including information contained in the “Business,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Conditien and Results of Operations™ and “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk™ sections. If any of the following risks
actually occur, our business, financial position, results of operations and/or cash flows could be adversely affected, and we may not be able to achieve our
goals. Such events may cause actual results to differ materially from expected and histarical results, and the trading price of our common stock could decline,

Economic downiurns have led fo reductions in demand for our services. Negative conditions In the credit markets may adversely impact our ability to
aperate our business. The level of demand from our clients for our services has been, in the past, adversely impacted by slowdowns in the industries we
service, as well as in the economy in general. When the general level of econemic activity has been reduced from historical levels, certain of our ultimate
customers have delayed or cancelled projects or capital spending, especially with respect to more profitable private sector work, and such slowdowns
adversely affect our ability to grow, reducing our revenues and profitability, A number of econemic factors, including financing conditions for the industries
we serve, have, in the past, adversely affected our ultimate customers and their ability or willingness to fund expenditures. General concerns about the
fundamental soundness of domestic and foreign economies may cause ultimate customers to defer projects even ifthey
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have credit available to them. Worsening of financial and macroeconomic conditions could have a significant adverse effect on our revenues and
profitability.

Many of our clients depend on the availability of credit to help finance their capital and maintenance projects. At times, tightened availability of credit has
negatively impacted the ability of existing and prospective ultimate customers to fund projects we might otherwise petform, particularly those in the more
profitable private scctor. As a result, our ultimate customers may defer such projects foran unknown, and perhaps lengthy, period. Any such deferrals would
inhibit our growth and would adversely affect our results of operations.

In a weak economic environment, particularly in a period of restrictive credit markets, we may experience greater difficulties in collecting payments from,
and negotiating change orders and/or claims with, our clients due to, among other reasons, a diminution in our ultimate customers® access to the credit
markets, If clients delay in paying or fail to pay a significant amount of cur outstanding receivables, or we fail to successfully negotiate a significant pottion
of our change orders and/or claims with clients, it could have an adverse effect on our liquidity, results of operations and financial position.

Qurbusiness has traditionally lagged recoveries in the general economy and, therefore, may not recover as quickly as the economy at large.

Our business is vulnerable to the cyclical nature of the markets in which our clients operate and is dependent upon the timing and funding of new awards,
We provide construction and maintenance services to ultimate customers operating in a number of markets which have been, and we expect will continue to
be, cyclical and subject to significant fluctuations due to a variety of factors beyond our control, including economic conditions and changes in client
spending.

Regardless of economic or market cenditions, investment decisions by our ultimate customers may vary by location or as a result of other factors 1ike the
availability of labor relative construction costs or competitive conditions in their industries. Because we are dependent on the timing and funding of new
awards, we are therefore vulnerable to changes in our clients’ markets and investment decisions,

Our business may be adversely affected by significant delays and reductions in goverinment appropriations. Curtailed spending aimed at reducing faderal,
state and local budget deficits could result in governmental agencies or departments deferring or canceling projects that we might otherwise have sought to
perform. Budgetary constraints and ongoing concems regarding the U.S. national debt may place downward pressure on spending levels of the U.S.
government. Some of our businesses derive a significant portion of their revenues from federal, state and local governmental bodies.

An increase in the prices of certain materials used in our businesses could adversely affect our businesses. We are exposed to market risk of increases in
certain commodity prices of materials, such as copper and steel, which are used as components of supplies or materials utilized in all of our operations, We are
also exposed to increases in energy prices, particularly as they relate to gasoline prices for our fleet of over 8,500 vehicles. While we believe we can increase
our prices to adjust for some price increases in commedities, there can be no assurance that price incteases of commoditiss, if they were to oceur, would be
tecoverable. Additionally, our fixed price contracts do not allow us to adjust our prices and, as a result, increases in material or fuel costs could reduce our
profitability with respect to such prejects. Fluctuations in energy prices as well as in commodity prices of materials may adversely affect our customers and as
a result cause them to curtail the use of our services, Recent declines in the price of oil have caused some of our refinery customers to cuttail or delay
maintenance or capital projects. Further declines in the price of cil may adversely affect some of our refinery customers causing them to defer maintenance
and/or capital projects performed by companies in our United States industrial services segment or delay purchases or repairs of heat exchangers that are
manufactured and repaired by some of our companies.

Our industry is highly competitive. Our industry is served by numerous small, ownet-operated private companies, a few public companies and several large
regional companics. In addition, relatively few barricrs prevent entry into most of our businesses, As a result, any organization that has adequate financial
resources and access {o technical expertise may become a competiter. Competition in our industry depends on numerous factors, including price. Certain of
our competitors have lower overhead cost structures and, therofore, are able to provide their services at lower rates than we are currently able to provide. In
addition, some of our competitors have greater resources than we do, We cannot be certain that our competitors will not develop the expertise, experience and
resources necessary to provide services that are superier in quality and lower in price to ours, Similarly, we cannot be certain that we will be able to maintain
or enhance our competitive position within our industries or maintain a customer base at current levels. We may also face competition from the in-house
service organizations of existing or prospective customers, partticularly with respect to building services. Many of our customers employ personnel who
perform some of the same types of building services that we do. We cannot be certain that our existing or prospective cusiomers will continue to outsource
building services in the future.
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We are a decentralized company, which presents certain risks. While we believe docentralization has enhanced our growth and enabled us to remain
responsive to opportunities and to our customers’ needs, it necessarily places significant control and decision-making powers in the hands of local
management. This presents various risks, including the risk that we may be slower or less able to identify or react te problems affecting a key business than
we would in a more centralized environment.

Our business may also be affected by weather conditions. Adversc weather conditions, particularly during the winter season, could impaet our construction
services opcrations as those conditions affect our ability to perform efficient work cutdoors in certain regions of the United States, adversely affecting the
revenues and profitability of these operations. However, the absence of snow in the United States during the winter could cause us to experience reduced
tevenues and profitability in cur United States building services segment, which has meaningful snow removal operations. In addition, cooler than normal
temperatures during the summer months could reduce the need for our services, particularly in our businesses that install or service air conditioning units, and
result in reduced revenues and profitability during the period such unseasonal weather conditions persist.

Our business may be affected by the work environment. We perform our work under & variety of conditions, including but not limited to, difficult terrain,
dillicult site conditiens and busy urban centers where delivery of matetials and availability of labor may be impacted, clean-room environments where strict
procedures must be followed, and sites which may have been exposed to harsh and hazardous conditions, especially at chemical plants, refineries and other
process facilities, Performing work under these conditions can negatively affect efficiency and, therefore, our profitability.

Our dependerice upon fixed price contracts conld adversely gffect our business. We currently generate, and expect to continue to generate, a significant
portion of our revenues from fixed price contracts. We must estimate the total costs of a particular preject to bid for fixed price contracts, The actual cost of
labor and materials, however, may vary from the costs we originally estimated. These variations, along with other risks, inherent in performing fixed price
conltracts, may cause actual gross profits fiom projects to differ from those we originally estimated and could result in reduced profitability or losses on
projects, Depending upon the size of a particular project, varations from the cstimated centract costs can have a significant impact on our operating results
forany fiscal quarter or year.

We could incur additional cosis to cover certain guarantees. In some instances, we guarantee completion of a project by a specific date or price, cost
savings, achicvement of certain performance standards or performance of qur services at a certain standard of quality. If we subsequently fail to meet such
guarantees, we may be held responsible for costs resulting from such failures. Such a failute could result in cur payment of liquidated or other damages. To
the extent that any of these events oceur, the total costs of a project could exceed the original estimated costs, and we would experience reduced profits oy, in
sotne cases, a logs,

Many of eur contracts, especially our building sevvices contracts for governimental and non-governmental entities, may be canceled on short notice, and
we may be unsuccessful in replacing such contracts if they are canceled or as they are completed or expire. We could experience a decrease in revenues, net
income and liquidity ifany of the following ocour:

« customers cancel a significant number of contracts;

= we fail to win a significant number of our existing contracts upon re-bid;

+  we complete a significant number of non-recurring projects and cannot replace them with similar projects; or

» we fail to reduce operating and overhead expenses consistent with any decrease in our revenues.

We may be unsuccessful in generating internal growth. Qur ability to generate internal growth will be affected by, among other factors, our ability to:
+ expand the range of services cffered to customers to address their evolving needs;

«  atfract new customers; and

+ increase the number of projects performed for existing customets.

In addition, existing and potential customers in the past have reduced, and may continue to reduee, the number or size of projects available to us because
of general economic conditions or due to their inability to obtain capital or pay for services we provide. Many of the factors affecting our ability to generate
intemel growth ate beyond our control, and we cannot be certain that our strategies will be successful or that we will be able to generate cash flow sufficient
to fund our operations and te support internal growth. If we are not successful, we may not be able to achieve internal growth, expand operations or grow our
business,
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The departure of key personnel could disrupt our business. We depend on the continued efforts of our senior management. The loss of key personnel, or
the inability to hire and retain qualified executives, could negatively impact our ability to manage our business,

We may be unable to attract and retain skilled employees. OQur ability to grow and maintain productivity and profitability will be limited by our ability to
employ, train and retain skilled personnel necessary to meet our requirements, We are dependent upon our project managers and field supervisors who are
responsible for managing our projects; and there can be no assurance that any individual will continue in his or her capacity for any particular peried of time,
and the loss of such qualified employess could have an adverse effect on cur business. We cannot be certain that we will be able to maintain an adequate
skilled labor force necessary to operate efficiently and to support our business strategy or that labor expenses will not increase as a result of a shottage in the
supply of these skilled personnel. Labor shortages or increased labor costs could impair our ability to maintain our business or grow our revenues,

Our unionized workforce could adversely affect our operations, and we participate in many multiemployer union pension plans which could result in
substantial liabilities being incurred. As of December 31, 2015, approximately 56% of our employees were covered by collective bargaining agreements.
Although the majority of these agreements prohibit strikes and work stoppages, we cannot be certain that strikes or work stoppages will not cecur in the
future. However, only two of our collective bargaining agreements are naticnal or regional in scope, and not all of our collective bargaining agrecments
expire at the same time. Strikes or work stoppages would adversely impact our relationships with our customers and could have a material adverse effect on
our financial position, results of operations and cash flews, We contribute to over 200 multiemployer union pension plans based upon wages paid to our
union employees that could result in our being responsible for a portion of the unfunded liabilities under such plans. Our potential liability for unfunded
liabilities could be material, Under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act, we may become liable for our proportionate share of a multiemployer
pension plan’s underfunding, if we cease to contribute to that pension plan or significantly teduce the employees in respect of which we make contributions
to that pension plan, Ses Note 14 - Retirement Plans of the notes to consolidated financial statements included in Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data for additional information regarding multiemployer plans,

Fluctuating forefgn currency exchange rates impact our financial results. We have operations in the United Kingdom, which in 2015 accounted for 6% of
our revenues, Our reported financial position and results of operations are exposed te the effects (both positive and negative) that fluctuating exchange rates
have on the process of translating the financial statements of our United Kingdom operations, which are denominated in local cutrencies, inte the U.S. dollar.

Our failuve to comply with environmental laws could result In significant liabilities. Our operations are subject to various laws, including environmental
laws and regulations, among which many deal with the handling and disposal of asbestos and other hazardous or universal waste products, PCBs and fuel
storage. A viclation of such laws and regulations may expose us to various claims, including claims by third patties, ag well as remediation costs and fines.
We own and lease many facilities. Some of these facilities contain fuel storage tanks, which may be above or below ground. If these tanks were to leak, we
cotld be responsible for the cost of remediation as well as potential fines. As a part of our business, we also install fuel storage tanks and are sometimes
required to deal with hazardous materials, all of which may expose us te environmental liability,

In addition, new laws and regulations, stricter enforcement of existing laws and regulations, the discovery of previously unknown contamination or leaks,
or the imposition of new clean-up requirements could require us to incur significant costs or become the basis for new or increased liabilities that could harm
our financial position and results of operations, although certain of these costs might be covered by insurance. In some instances, we have obtained
indemnification or covenants from third parties (including predecessors or lessors) for such clean-up and other obligations and liabilities, and we believe
such indemnities and covenants are adequate to cover such obligations and liabilities. However, such third-party indemnities or covenants may not cover all
of such costs or third-party indemnitors may default on their obligations. In addition, unanticipated obligations or liabilities, or future obligations and
liabilities, may have a material adverse effect on our business operations. Further, we cannot be certain that we will be able to identify, ot be indemnified for,
all potential environmental liabilities relating to any acquired busincss.

Adverse resolution of litigation and other legal proceedings may harin our operaiing results or financial position. We are a party to lawsuits and other
legal proceedings, most of which occur in the normal course of our business, Litigation and other legal proceedings can be expensive, lengthy and disruptive
to nomnal business operations. An unfavorable resolution of a particular legal proceeding could have a material adverse effect on our business, operating
resulis, financial position and cash flows, and in some cases, on our reputation or our ability to obtain projects from customers, including governmental
entities, See Item 3, Legal Proceedings and Note 15 - Commitments and Contingencies of the notes to consolidated financial statements included in Item 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, for more information regarding legal proceedings in which we arc involved.

Opportunities within the governmeni sector could lead to increased governmental regulation applicable to us. As a government contragtor we are subject
to a number of procurement rules and other regulations, any deemed viclation of which could lead to fines or penalties or a loss of business, Government
apencies routinely audit and investigate government contractors. Government agencies may review a contractor's performance under its contracts, cost
structure and compliance with applicable laws, regulations
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and standards, If govemment agencies determine through these audits or reviews that costs are improperly allecated to specific contraets, they will not
reimburse the contractor for those costs or may tequire the contractor to refund previously reimbursed costs. If government agencics determine that we are
engaged in improper activity, we may be subject to civil and criminal penalties and debarment or suspension from doing business with the government,
Government contracts are also subject to renegotiation of terms by the government, termination by the govemment prior to the expiration of the term, and
non-renewal by the government.

A material portion of our business depends an our ability to provide surety bonds. We may be unable to compele for or work o certain projects if we are
not able to obtain the necessary surety bonds. Our construction contracts frequently require that we obtain flom surety companies and provide to our
customers payment and performance bonds as a condition to the award of such contracts, Such surety bonds secure our payment and performance obligations.
Under standard terms in the surety market, surety companies issue bonds on a project-by-project basis and can decline to issue bonds at any time or require
the posting of collatera! as a condition to issuing any bonds. Current or future market conditions, as well as changes in our sureties’ assessment of our or their
awn operating and financial risk, could cause out sutety companies to decline to issue, or substantially reduce the amount of, bonds for our work or to
increase our bonding costs, These actions can be taken on short notice, If our surety companies were to limit ot eliminate our access to bonding, our
alternatives would include sceking bonding capacity from other surety companies, increasing business with clients that do not require bonds and posting
other forms of callateral for project performance, such as letters of credit, parent company guarantees or cash. We may be unable to secure these altematives in
a timely manner, on acceptable terms, ot at all. Accordingly, if we were to experience an interruption or reduction in the availability of bonding, we may be
unable to compete for or work on certain projects. Increases in the costs of surety bonds alse could adversely impact our profitability.

We are effectively self-insured against many potential labilities. Although we maintain ingurance policies with respect to a broad range of risks, including
automobile liability, general liability, workets’ compensation and employee group health, these policies do not cover all pessible claims and certain of the
policies are subject to large deductibles. Accordingly, we are effectively selfinsured for a substantial number of actual and potential claims. In addition, if
any of our insurance carriers defaulied on its obligations to provide insurance coverage by reason of its inselvency or for other reasons, our exposure to
claims would increase and our profits would be adversely affected. Our estimates for unpaid claims and expenses are based on known facts, historical trends
and industry averages, utilizing the assistance of an actuary. We reflect these liabilities in our balance sheet as “Other accrued expenses and liabilities” and
“Other long-term obligations.” The determination of such estimated liabilities and their appropriateness are reviewed and updated at least quarterly.
However, these liabilities are difficult to assess and estimate due to many relevant fictors, the effects of which are oflen unknown, including the severity ofan
injury or damage, the determination of liability in proportion to other parties, the timeliness of reported claims, the effectiveness of our risk management and
safety programs and the terms and conditions of our insurance policies, Qur accruals arc based upon known facts, historical trends and our reasonable
estimate of fiture expenses, and we believe such accruals arc adequate. However, unknown or changing trends, risks or circumstances, such as increases in
¢laims, a weakening econcmy, increases in medical costs, changes in case law or legislation or changes in the nature of the work we perform, could render our
current estimates and accruals inadequate. In such casc, adjustments to our balance sheet may be required and these increased liabilities would be recorded in
the period that the expetience becomes known. Insurance carriers may be unwilling, in the future, to provide our cumrent levels of coverage without a
significant increase in insurance premiums and/or collateral requirements to cover our obligations to them. Increased collateral requirements may be in the
form of additional letters of credit and/or cash, and an increase in collateral requirements could significantly reduce our liquidity. If insurance premiums
increase, ahd/or if insurance ¢laims are higher than our estimates, our profitability could be adversely affected.

Health care reform could adversely affect our operating results. Tn 2010, the United States govemment enacted comprchensive health care reform
legislation. To date, we have not experienced material costs related to the health care reform legislation; however, it is possible that our operating results
and/or cash flows could be adversely affected in the future by increased costs, expanded liability exposure and requirements that change the ways we provide
healthcare and other benefits to our employees.

We may tneur liahiities or suffer negative financial impact relating to occupational, health and safety matters. Our operations are subjsct to extensive
laws and regulations rclating to the maintenance of safe conditions in the workplace. While we have invested, and will continue to invest, substantial
resources it our robust eceupational, health and safety programs, many of our businesses involve a high degree of operational risk, and there can be no
assurance that we will avold significant exposure. These hazards can cause personal injury and loss of life, severe damage to or destruction of property and
equipment and other consequential damages and could lead to suspension of operations, large damage claims and, in extreme cases, criminal liability.

Our customers seek to minimize safety risks on their sites and they frequently review the safety records of contractors during the bidding process, If our
safety record were to substantially deteriorate over time, we might become ineligible to bid on certaln work and our customers could cancel our contracts
and/or not award us future business,

Acquisitions could adversely affect our bysiness and results of operations. As part of cur growth strategy, we acquire companies that expand, complement
and/or diversify cur businesses. Realization of the anticipated benefits of an acquisition will depend, among other things, upon our ability to: (a) effectively
conduct due diligence on companies we propose to acquire to identify problems at these companies or (b) recognize incompatibilities or other obstacles to
successful integration of the acquired business
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with our other operations and gain greater efficiencies and scale that will translate into reduced costs in a timely manner. However, there can be no assurance
that an acquisition we may make in the future will provide the benefits anticipated when entering into the transaction. Acquisitions we have made and fiture
acquisitions may expose us to operational challenges and risks, including the diversion of management’s attention from our existing businesses, the failure to
retain key personnel or customers of the acquired business and the assumption of unknown liabilities of the acquired business for which there are inadequate
reserves. Our ability to sustain our growth and maintain our competitive position may be affected by our ability to identify and acquire desirable businesses
and successtully integrate any business acquired.

Qur results of operations could be adversely affecied as a resuit of goodwill and other identifiable intangible asset impairments. When we acquire a
business, we record an asset called “goodwill” equal to the excess amount paid for the business, including liabilities assumed, over the fair value of the
tangible and identifiable intangible assets of the business acquired. The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) requires that all business
combinations be accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting and that certain identifiable intangible assets acquired in a business combination
be recognized as assets apart from goodwill. FASB Accounting Standard Codification (“*ASC™) Topic 350, “Intangibles-Goodwill and Other” (“ASC 350™)
provides that goodwill and other identitiable intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives not be amortized, but instead must be tested at least annually
for impairment, and identifiable intangible assets that have finite useful lives should continue to be amortized over their useful lives and bLe tested for
impairment whenever facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be fully recoverable. ASC 350 also provides specific guidance for
testing goodwill and other non-amortized identifiable intangible assets for impairment, which we test annually each October 1, ASC 350 requires
management to make certain estimates and assumptions to allocate goodwill to reporting units and to determine the fair value of reporting unit net assets and
liabilities. Such fair value is determined using discounted estimated future cash flows. Our development of the present value of future cash flow projections is
based upon assumptions and estimates by management from a review of our operating results, business plans, anticipated growth rates and margins and the
weighted average cost of capital, among othets, Much of the infermation used in assessing fair value is outside the control of management, such as interest
rates, and these assumptions and estimates can change in future periods. There can be no assurance that our estimates and assumptions made for purposes of
our goodwill and identifiable intangible asset impairment testing will prove to be accurate predictions of the future, If our assumpiions regarding business
plans or anticipated growth rates and/or margins axe not achieved, or there is a rise in intetest rates, we may be required to record goodwill and/or identifiable
intangible asset impairment charges in future periods, whether in connection with our next annual impairment testing on Oectober 1, 2016 or earlier, if an
indicater of an impairment is present prior to the quarter in which the annual goodwill impairment test is to be performed. It is not possible at this time to
determine if any such additional impairment charge would result or, if it does, whether such a charge would be material to our results of operations,

We did not record an impairment of our goodwill or identifiable intangible assets for the year ended December 31,2015,

Amounts included in our backlog may not result in actual reveniies or translate into profits. Many contracts are subject to cancellation or suspension on
short notice at the discretion of the client, and the contracts in our backlog are subject to changes in the scope of services to be provided as well as
adjustments to the costs relating to the contract. We have historically experienced variances in the components of backlog related to project delays or
cancellations resulting from weather conditions, external market factors and economic factors beyond our control, and we may experience more delays or
cancellations in the future. The risk of contracts in backlog being cancelled or suspended generally incroases during periods of widespread slowdowns.
Accordingly, there is no assurance that backleg will actually be realized. If our backiog fails to materialize, we could experience a reduction in revenues and
a decline in profitability, which could result in a deterioration of our financial position and liquidity.

We account for the majority of our construction projects using the percentage-of-completion method of accounting; therefore, variations of actual results
from our assumptions may reduce owr profitability, We recognize rovenues on construction contracts using the porcentage-of-completion method of
accounting in accordance with ASC Topic 605-35, “Revenue Recognition-Construction-Type and Production-Type Contracts”, See Application of Critical
Accounting Policies in Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. Under the percentage-of-
completion method of accounting, we record revenue as work on the centract progresses. The cumulative amount of revenues recorded on a contract at a
specified point in time is that percentage of total estimated revenues that costs incurred to date bear to estimated total costs. Accordingly, contract revenues
and total cost estimates are reviewed and revised as the work progresses. Adjustments are reflected in contract revenues in the period when such estimates are
revised. Estimmates are based on management’s reasonable assumptions and experience, but are only estimates, Variations of actual results from assumptions
on an unusually latge project or on a number of average size projects could be material. We are also required to immediately recognize the full amount of the
estimated loss on a contract when estimates indicate such a loss. Such adjustments and acerued losses could result in reduced profitability, which could
negatively impact our cash flow from operations,

The loss of one or a few customers could have an adverse effect on us. Afew clients have in the past and may in the future account for a significant portion
of our revenues in any one year or over a period of several consecutive years. Although we have long-standing relationships with many of our significant
clients, our ¢lients may unilaterally reduce, fail to renew or terminate

11




Talle of Contents

their contracts with us at any time, A loss of business from a significant client could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, and
results of operaticns.

We are increasingly dependent on sophisticated information technology and infrastruceure. We rely on information technology systems and hardware and
third party software to mun critical accounting, project management and financial information systems, If software vendors decide to discontinue further
development, integration or long-term software maintenance support for our information systems, or there is any system or hardware interruption, delay,
breach of security, loss of data, we may need to migrate some or all of our accounting, project management and financial information to other systems, In
addition, data privacy or security breaches may pose a risk that data, including intelfectual propetty or personal information, may be exposed to unauthorized
persons or the public. These distuptions or breaches could result in financial, legal, business ot reputational harm to us.

Our failure to comply with anti-bribery statutes siwch s the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and the UK. Bribery Act of 2010 could result in fines, criminal
penalties and other sanctions that could have an adverse gffect on our business. The U.S. Foreign Conrupt Practices Act (the “FCPA™), the UK, Bribery Act
(the “Bribery Act”) and similar anti-bribery laws in other jurisdictions generally prohibit companies and their intermediaries from making improper payments
to foreign officials for the purpose of obtaining or retaining business. We conduct a modest amount of business in a few couniries that have expetienced
corruption to some degree. [f we were found to be liable for violations under the FCPA, the Bribery Act ot similar anti-bribery laws, either due to ourown acts
or omissions or due to the acts or omissions of others, we could incur substantial legal expense and suffer civil and criminal penalties or other sanctions,
which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations, as well as our reputation.

Certain provisions of our corporaie gavernance documents could make an acquisition of us, or a substantial interest in us, more difficult. The following
provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws, as currently in effect, as well as Delaware law, could discourage potential proposals to acquire us,
delay or provent a change in contrel of us, or limit the price that investors may be willing to pay in the future for sharcs of our commeon stock:

+  our certificate of incorparation permits our board of directors to issue “blank check” preferred steck and to adopt amendments to our bylaws,

+ our bylaws contain restrictions regarding the right of our stockholders to nominate directors and to submit proposals to be considered at stockholder
meetings;

* our certificate of incorporation and bylaws limit the right of our steckholders to call a special mecting of stockholders and to act by written consent;
and

« we are subject to provisions of Delaware law, which prohibit us from engaging in any of a bread range of business transactions with an “interested
stockholder” for a period of three years following the date such stockholder becomes ¢lassified as an interested stockholder.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None,
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our operations are conducted primarily in leased properties. The following table lists facilities over 50,000 square feet, both leased and owned, and
identifies the business segment that is the principal user of each such facility,

Approximate Lease Expiration Date,
Square Feet Unless Owned
1168 Fesler Street
El Cajon, Californja (b) 67,560 £/31/2020
22302 Hathaway Avenue
Hayward, California (b) 105,600 713172021
4462 Corporate Center Drive
Los Alamitos, California {a) 57,863 12/31/2019
18111 South Santa Fe Avenue
Rancho Dominguez, California (d) 66,246 12/31/2016
940 Remillard Court
San Jose, Califomia (¢) 119,560 7/31/2024
5101 York Street
Denvet, Colorado (b) 77,553 2/28/2019
345 Sheridan Boulevard
Lakewood, Colorado (a) 63,000 Owned
3100 Woodcreek Drive
Dowters Grove, [linois {a) 56,551 7/31/2017
2219 Contractors Drive
Fort Wayne, Indiana (b} 175,000 7/31/2023
7614 and 7720 Opportunity Drive
Fort Wayne, [ndiana (b) 144,695 [0/31/2018
2655 Qarfield Avenue
Highland, Indiana (a} 57,765 6/30/2019
4250 Highway 30
St. Gabriel, Louisiana (d} 90,000 Owned
1750 Swisco Road
Sulphur, Louisiana. (d} 112,000 Owned
111-01 and 111-21 14th Avenue
College Point, New York (a) 73,013 2/28/2024
70 Schmitt Boulevard
Fammingdale, New York {b) 76,380 7/31/2026
2102 Tobacco Road
Durham, North Carolina (b) 55,944 3/31/2016
2900 Newpark Drive
Norton, Chio (b) 91,831 11/1/2017
1800 Markley Street
Norristown, Pennsylvania (¢} 93,000 $/30/2021
227 Trade Court
Aiken, South Carolina () 66,000 9/30/2016
6045 East Shelby Drive
Memphis, Tennessee (c) 53,618 4/30/2018
937 Pine Street
Beaumont, Texas (d) 78,962 Owned
895 North Main Street
Beaumont, Texas (d) 75,000 Owned
410 Flato Road
Corpus Christi, Texas {(d) 57,000 Owmned
5550 Airline Drive and 25 Tidwell Road
Houston, Texas (b) 07,936 12/31/201%
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Approximate Lease Expiration Date,
Square Feet Unless Owned
12415 Highway 225
La Porte, Texas (d) 78,000 Quned
2455 West 1500 South
Salt Lake City, Utah (a) 38,339 3/31/2018

We belicve that our property, plant and equipment are well maintained, in good operating condition and suitable for the purposes for which they are used.

See Nate 15 - Commitments and Contingencies of the notes to consolidated financial stajements included in Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data for additional information regarding lease costs. We utilize substantially al! of our leased or owned facilities and believe there will be no
difficulty either in negotiating the renewal of our real property leases as they expire or in finding altemative space, if necessary.

(2} Principally used by a company sngaged in the “United States electtical construction and facilities services” segment.
(b) Principally used by a company engaged in the “United States mechanical construction and facilities services™ segment.
{¢) Principally used by a company cngaged in the “United States building services” segment.

(d) Principally used by a company engaged in the “United States industrial services” sogment,
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

One of our subsidiaries, USM, Inc. (“USM"), doing business in California provides, among other things, janitorial services to its customers by having those
services performed by independent janitorial companies. USM and one of its customers, which owns retail stores (the “Customer™), wete co-defendants in a
federal class action lawsuit brought by six employees of USM'’s Califoria janitorial subcontractors. The action captioned Federico Vilchiz Vasquez, Jesus
Vilchiz Vasquez, Francisco Domingo Claudio, for themselves and all others similarly situated vs. USM, Inc. dba USM Services, Inc., a Pennsylvania
Corporation, et al., was commenced on September 5, 2013 in a Superior Court of California and was removed by USM on November 22, 2013 to the United
States District Court for the Northem District of California. The employees alleged in their complaint, among other things, that USM and the Customer,
during a period that began before our acquisition of USM, violated a California statute that prohibits USM from entering into a contract with a janttorial
subcontractor when it knew or should have known that the contract did not include funds sufficient to allow the janitorial subcontractor fo comply with all
local, state and federal laws or regulations governing the labor ot services to be provided. The employees asserted that the amounts USM paid to its janitorial
subcontractors were insufficient to allow those janitorial subcentractors to meet their obligations regarding, among other things, wages due for all hours their
employees worked, minimum wages, overtime pay and meal and rest breaks, These employees sought to represent not only themselves, but also all other
individuals who provided janitorial services at the Customer’s stores in California duting the relevant four-year time period. We do not believe USM or the
Customer violated the California statute or that the employees could have brought the action as a class action on behalf of other employees of janitorial
companies with whom USM subcontracted for the provision of janitorial services to the Customer. The plaintiffs sought a declaratory judgment that USM
had violated the California statute, monetary damages, including all unpaid wages and interest thereon, restitution for unpaid wages, and an award of
attorneys’ fees and costs.

USM and its Customer have settled the claims asserted in the class action pursuant to the terms of a consent decree approved by the federal judge in the
United States District Court for the Northem District of California on February 16, 2016, which followed a determination by the Court of the consent decree’s
fairness, adequacy and reasonableness. Under the terms of the consent decree, USM will (a) pay an aggregate of $1.0 million (i) for monetary relief to the
members of the class, (ii} for awards to the class representative plaintiffs, (iii) for California Labor Code Private Attormey General Act payments to the State of
California for an immaterial amount, and {iv) for all costs of notice and adminisiration of the claims process, {b) pay to counsel for the class an aggregate of
$1.3 million, of which $0.2 million has been allocated fot theit reitnbursable costs and litigation expenses and $1.1 million has been allocated for attomeys'
fees, and (c) monitor USM’s California subcontracters providing janitorial services to its Customer in accordance with apreed upon procedures designed
principally to ensure janitorial employees of those subcontractors are paid no less than minimum wage,

We are involved in several other proceedings in which damages and claims have been asserted against us. Other potential ¢laims may exist that have not
yet been asserted against us. We believe that we have a number of valid defenses to such proceedings and claims and intend to vigorously defend ourselves.
We do not believe that any such matters will have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or liquidity. Litigation is subject to
many uncertainties and the outcome oflitigation is not predictable with assurance, It is possible that some litigation matters for which reserves have not been
established could be decided unfaverably to us, and that any such unfavorable decisions could have a material adverse effect on our financial position,
results of operations or liquidity. See Note 15 - Commitments and Contingencies of the notes to consolidated financial statements included in Ttem 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data for a discussion regarding certain other legal proceedings.

ITEM 4, MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURLES

Information concerning mine safety violations or other regulatory matters required by Section 1503(a) of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act and Item 104 of Regulation S-K (17 CFR 229.104} is included in Exhibit 95 to this Form 10-K.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Anthony J. Guzzi, Age 51; President since October 2004 and Chief Bxecutive Officer since January 201 1. From October 2004 to January 201 1, Mr Guzzi
served as Chief Operating Officer of the Company, From August 2001, until he joined the Company, Mr. Guezi served as President of the North American
Bistribution and Aftermarket Division of Carrier Corporation (“Carriet™). Carrier is a manufacturer and distributor of commercial and residential HVAC and
refrigeration systems and equipment and a provider of after-market services and components of its own products and those of other manufacturers in both the
HVAC and refiiperation industries. Mr, Guzzi is also a member of our Board of Dircctors.

Sheldon I Cammalker, Age 76; Vice Chairman since January 2016. From September 1987 to January 2016, Mr. Cammaker was Executive Vice President
and General Counsel of the Company, and from May 1997 to January 2016, Mr. Cammaker was also Secretary of the Company. Prior to September 1987,
Mr. Cammaker was a senior parlner ef the New Yoik City law firm of Botein, Hays & Sklar,

R, Kevin Matz, Age 57; Executive Vice President-Shared Services of the Company since December 2007 and Senior Vice President-Shared Services from
June 2003 to December 2007. From April 1996 to June 2003, Mr, Matz served as Vice President and Treasurer of the Company and Staff Vice President-
Financial Services of the Company from March 1993 to April 1996.

Mark A. Yompa, Age 51; Executive Vice President and Chisf Financial Officer of the Company since April 2006, From June 2003 fo April 2006,
Mr. Porpa was Senior Vice President-Chief Accounting Officer of the Company, and from June 2003 to January 2007, Mz Pompa was also Treasurer of the
Company. From September 1994 to June 2003, Mr. Pompa was Vice President and Controller of the Company.

Mazxine L, Mauricio, Age 44; Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of the Company since January 2016, From January 2012 to December
2015, Ms. Mauricio was Vice President and Deputy General Counsel of the Company, and from May 2002 to December 2011, she served as Assistant General
Counsel of the Company. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Mauricio was an associate at Ropes & Gray LLP.
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PART IT
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES
Murket Information. Qur common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “EME”.

The following table sets forth high and low sales prices for our common stock for the periods indicated as reported by the New York Stock Exchange:

2015 High Low

First Quarter 3 4720 % 39.83
Second Quarter 3 4884 % 43,74
Third Quarter $ 4889 § 4342
Fourth Quartet $ 5237 8% 42.85
2014 High Low

First Quaiter 3 4781 % 40,12
Second Quarter $ 4800 § 4341
Third Quarter ' $ 4604 $ 3996
Fourth Quarter $ 4537 % 38.68

Holders. As of February 22, 2016, there were approximately 224 stockholders of record and, as of that date, we estimate there were approximately 33,305
beneficial owners holding our common stock in nominec or “street” name.

Dividends. We have paid quarterly dividends since Qctober 25, 2011, We expect that quarterly dividends will be paid in the foreseeable future. Prior to
Qctober 25, 2011, no cash dividends had been paid on the Company’s common stock. We currently pay a regular dividend of $0.08 per share, Our 2013
Credit Agreement places limitations on the payment of dividends on our common stock, However, we do not believe that the terms of such agreement
currently materially limit our ability to pay a quarterly dividend of $0,08 per share for the forcsceable future.

Seeurities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans. The following table summarizes, as of December 31, 2015, certain information
regarding equity compensation plans that were approved by stockhelders and equity compensation plans that were not approved by stockholders, The
information in the table and in the notes thereto has been adjusted for stock splits.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

A B C
Number of Securities
Remaining Available for
Number of Securities to be Weighted Average Exercise Future Issnance under Equity
Issued upon Exercisc of Price of Outstanding Compensation Plans
Ouistanding Optiens, Options, Warrants and {Excluding Securitics
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Rights Reflected in Column A)
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by Security Holders 1,005,613 O § 7.14 1,849,266 @
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by Security
Holders — — —_
Total 1,005,613 $ T.14 1,849,266

(1) Included within this amount are 698,887 restricted stock units awarded to cur non-employee directors and employees. The weighted average exercise price would have been
$23.42 had the weighted average exercise price caleulation excluded such restricted stock units,

{2) Represents shares of our common slock available for future issuance under our 2010 Incentive Plan (the "2010 Plan"), which may be issuable in respect of options and/or
stock appreciation rights granted under the 2010 Plan and/or may also be issued pursuant to the award of restricted stock, unrestricted stock and/or awards that are valued in
whole or in part by reference to, or are otherwise based on the fair market value of, our commen stock,
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Purchase of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchascrs
The following table summarizes repurchases of our common stock made during the quarter ended December 31,2015 by us:

Maximum Numbey

Total Number of (or Approximate Dollar Value)
Shares Purchased as Part of Shares That May Yet be
Total Number of Average Price of Publicly Announced Purchased Under
Period Shares Purchased(® Paid Per Share Plans or Programs the Plan or Programs

October 1, 2015 to

Qctober 31,2015 93,612 $43.76 63,612 $339,396,205
November 1, 2¢15 to

November 30, 2015 524,493 $49.49 524,493 $313,424,535
Decomber 1,2015 to

December 31,2015 1,207,919 $49.05 1,207,919 $254,139,815

(1) On Scptember 26, 2011, our Board of Dircctors authorized us to repurchase up to $100.0 millien of our outstanding common stock. On December 5, 2013, October 23, 2014
and October 28, 2015, our Board of Directors authorized us fo repurchase up to an additional $100.0 million, $250.0 million and $260.0 million of our cutstanding common
stock, respectively. As of December 31, 2015, there remained available anthorization for us to repurchase approximately $254.1 million of our shares. No shares have been

repurchased since the programs have been announced other than pursuant to these publicly anncunced programs. Repurchases may be made from time to time as permitted by
securitios laws and other legal requirements,
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data has been derived from our audited financial statements and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements, the related notes thereto and the report of our independent registered public sccounting firm thereon included elsewhere in this and our
previously filed annual reports on Form 10-K.

See Nofe 3 - Acquisitions of Businesses and Note 4 - Disposition of Assets of the notes to consolidated financial statements included in Item 8. Finanecial
Statements and Supplementary Data for a discussion regarding acquisitions and dispositions, During the third quarter of 2014, we ceased censtruction
operations in the United Kingdom. The results of the construction operations of our United Kingdom segment for all periods are presented as discontinued
operations. In addition, the results of operations for 2011 reflect discontinued operations accounting due to the disposition in August 2011 of our Canadian
subsidiary.

Income Statement Data
{In thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Revenues $ 6,718,726 §$ 6,424,965 $ 6,333,527 § 6,195494 $ 5450393
Gross profit $ 944479 § 907,246 § 821646 § 803979 § 724,733
Inpairment loss on identifiable intangible assets b3 — § 1,471 § — 3 — % 3,795
Gain on sale of building ¥ — § 11,749 % — 3 — 3 —
Operating income $ 287,082 § 289878 § 240350 % 260,303 § 214,119
Net income attributable to EMCOR Group, Inc. $ 172,286 § 168,664 3 123,792 § 146,584 § 130,826
Basic eamings (loss) per commeon share;
From continuing operations $ 274 % 261 % 219 § 232 % 1.86
From discontinued operations {0.00) (0.07) (0.34) {0.12) 0.10

$ 2714 % 254 % 185 % 220 % 1.96
Diluted eamings (loss) per common share:
From continuing operations $ 272 % 259 % 216 8§ 228 § 1.82
From discontinued operations (0.00) (0.07) 0.34) 0.12) 0.09

3 272 % 252 % 182 § 216 § 1.91
Balance Sheet Data
{In thousands)

As of December 31,
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Equity Q¥ $ 1,480,056 § 1429387 $ 1479626 § 1,357,179 § 1,245,131
Total assefs $ 3,546,470 § 3388967 3 3465915 § 3,107,070 § 3,614,076
Goodwill $ 843,170 § 834,102 § 834,825 F 566588 § 566,808
Bomowings under revolving credit facility $ — 3 — % — % 150,000 $ 150,000
Tenn loan, including cument maturities $ 315000 3 332,500 § 350,000 % — 3 —
Other long-tertn debi, including current maturities 3 44 % 57 % 11 % 18§ —
Capital lease obligations, inciuding current maturities $ 3,809 % 2883 § 4652 § 5,881 § 4,857

(1)  During 2015, we repurchased approximately 2.3 million shares of our common stock for approxitately $112.3 million. Since the inception of the repurchase programs in
2011 through December 31, 2015, we have repurchased 9.9 million shares of our commen stock for approximately $395.9 million. The repurchase of sheres results in a
reduction of our cquity, We have paid quarterly dividends since October 25, 2011, We expect that quarterly dividends will be paid in the foreseeable future. Pricr to October
25, 2011, no cash dividends had been paid on the Company's common stock. We currently pay a regular quarterly dividend of $0.08 per share.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

We are one of the largest clectrical and mechanical construction and facilities services firms in the United States. In addition, we provide a number of
building services and industrial services. Our services are provided to a broad range of commercial, industrial, utility and institutional customers through
approximately 70 operating subsidiaries and joint venture entities. Our offices are located in the United States and the United Kingdom.

Operating Seginents

We have the following reportable segments which provide services associated with the design, integration, installation, start-up, operation and
maintenance of various systems; (a) United Siates electrical construction and facilities services (involving systems for electrical power transmission and
distribution; premises ¢lectrical and lighting systems; low-voltage systems, such as fire alarm, security and process control; voice and data communication;
roadway and transit lighting; and fiber optic lines); (b) United States mechanical construction and facilities services (involving systems for heating,
ventilation, air conditioning, refrigeration and clean-room process ventilation; fire protection; plumbing, process and high-purity piping; controls and
filtration; water and wastewater treatment; central plant heating and cooling; cranes and rigging; millwrighting; and steel fabrication, erection and welding),
(c) United States building services; (d) United States industrial services; and () United Kingdom building services, The “United States building services™ and
“United Kingdom bullding services” segments principally consist of those operations which provide a portfolio of services needed to support the operation
and maintenance of custemers’ facilities, including commercial and government site-based operations and maintenance; facility maintenance and services,
including reception, security and catering services; outage services to utilities and industrial plants; military base operations support setvices, mobile
maintenance and services; floor care and janitorial services; landscaping, lot sweeping and snow removal; facilities management; vendor management; call
center services; installation and support for building systems; program development, management and maintenance for energy systems; technical consulting
and diagnostic services; inflastructure and building projects for federal, state and local governmental agencics and bodies; and small modification and
retrofit projects, which services are not generally related to customers’ construction programs. The segment “United States industrial services” principally
consists of those operations which provide industrial maintenance and services, including those for refineries and petrochemical plants, including on-site
repairs, maintenance and service of heat exchangers, towers, vessels and piping; design, manufacturing, repair and hydro blast cleaning of shell and tube heat
exchangers and related equipment; refinery turearound planning and engineering services; specialty welding services; overhaul and maintenance of critical
process units in refineries and petrochemical plants; and specialty techuical servicos for refinerics and petrochemical plants.

We acquired three companies in 2015, each for an immatetial amount. Two of the companies acquired primarily provide mechanical construction services,
and their results of operations have been included in our United States mechanical construction and facilities services segment. The results ol operations for
the other cotnpany acquired have been included in our Uniled States building services segment.

We completed the acquisition of RepconStrickland, Inc. (“RSI") during 2013, and its resulis have been included in our United States industrial services
segment since its acquisition, In addition, we completed two other acquisitions during 2013, and their results have been included in our United States
mechanical construction and facilities services segment. These acquired businesses expanded our service capabilities into new technical areas.
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2015 versus 2014
Overview

The following table presents selected financial data for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 (in thousands, except percentages and per share
data):.

2015 2014

Revenues 3 6,718,726 3 6,424,965

Revenues increase from prior year 4.6% 1.4%
Restructuring expenses 3 824 % 1,168
Impairment loss on identifiable intangible assets 3 — % 1,471
Gain on sale of building $ — 3 11,749
Operating income 3 287,082 $ 289,878

Operating income as a percentage of revenues 43% 4.5%
Income from continuing operations $ 172,567 $ 178,117
Net income attributable to EMCOR Group, Inc. 3 172,286 § 168,664
Diluted earnings per commeon share from continuing opetations 3 272§ 2.59

The results of our operations for 2015 set new Company records in tettns of revenues and diluted eamnings per share from continuing operations. Qur 2015
results included increased revenues from all of cur reportable segments. In addition, excluding the impact of the $11.7 million gain on the sale ef a building
and the $1.5 million impairment loss on identifiable intangible assets in 2014, our operating income (operating income as a percentage of revenues)
inereased in 2015 compared to 2014, Our overall 2015 operating income and operating margin were favorably impacted by improved operating performance
within: (a) our United States mechanical construction and facilities services segment, partially attributable to revenues of $12.1 million recognized as & result
of the settlement of a claim on an institutional project located in the southeastern United States, and (b) our United States building setvices segment, as a
result of increased profitability within this segment’s mebile mechanical and commercial site-based services operations,

Qur operating results for 2015 were negatively impacted by: (a) our United States electrical construction and facilities services segment, {b} our United
States incustrial services segment and (c) our United Kingdom building services segment. Decreases in both operating income and operating margin within
our United States electrical construction and facilities services segment were partially attributable to approximately $10.1 million of losses incurred on
several transportation projects. Decreases in both operating income and operating margin within our United States industrial services segment were primarily
due to: (a} the negative impact of a nationwide strike by union employees of certain major oil refineries in the first half of 2015, which led to both deferrals
and losses of certain turnaround projects that generate relatively high gross profit margins, and (b} a decrease in the billing rates and related gross profit
margins within our industrial shop services operations due to competitive market conditions resulting from decrcased demand for new heat exchangers as a
result of volatility in crude oil prices that led to a curtailment in capital spending,

Two of the companies acquired in 2015, which are reported in our United States mechanical construction and facilities services segment, generated
incremental revenues of $12.5 million and less than $0.] million of operating income, net of $0.3 million of amortization expense associated with
identifiable intangible agsets, The results of operations for the third company acquired in 2015, which are reported in our United States building services
segment, were de minimis.

Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations
Revenues

As described in more detail below, revenues for 2015 were $6.7 billion compared te $6.4 billion for 2014, The increase in revenues for 2015 was primarily
attribytable to; (a) increased revenues from both of our domestic construction segments, (b) inercased demand for our industrial ficld services within our
United States industrial services segment and (¢) increased revenues from our mobile mechanical services operations within our United States building
services segment. Revenues increased within cur United States industrial services segment despite a nationwide strike by union employees of certain major
oil refineries that negatively impacted the first halfof2015.
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The following table presents our rovenucs for cach of our operating segments and the approximate percentages that each segment’s revenues were of total
revenues for the years ended December31, 2015 and 2014 (in thousands, except for percentages):

Y% of % of
2015 Taotal 2014 Total
Revenues from unrelated entities:

United States electrical construction and facilitics services $ 1,367,142 20% § 1,311,988 20%
United States mechanical construction and facilities services 2,312,763 34% 2201212 34%
United States building scrvices 1,739,259 26% 1,721,341 27%
United States industrial services 922,085 14% 839,980 13%
Tatal United States operations 6,341,249 Q4% 6,074,521 95%
United Kingdom building services ) 377,477 6% 350,444 5%
Total worldwide operations $ 6,718,726 100% § 6,424 965 100%

Revenues of our United States electrical construction and facilities services segment were $1,367.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2015
compared to revenues of $1,312.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, The increase in revenues was primarily attributable to an increase in
tevenues from commercial, healthcare and manufacturing construciion projects, partially offset by a decrease in revenues ftom institutional construction
projects.

Our United States mechanical construction and facilities services segment revenues for the year ended December 31, 2015 woere $2,312.8 million,a §111.6
million inerease compared to revenues of $2,201.2 miltion for the year ended December 31, 2014. The increase in revenues was primarily attributable to an
increase in revenues from commercial and institutional construction projects, pattially offset by a decline in revenues fiom manufacturing, water and
wastewater and transpartation construction projects. The results for the year ended December 31, 2015 included $12.5 million of revenues generated by
companies acquired in 2015.

Revenues of our United States building services segment were $1,739.3 million and $1,721.3 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively. The increase in
revenues was primarily attributable to increascd revenues from: (a) our mobile mechanical services operations, in part due to significant activity in the
California and New England regions and increased project and retrofit activitics, and (b} our energy setvices operations. These increases were partially offset
by decreased revenues from: (a) our government site-based services operations as a result of the completion in 2014 of two large long-term site-based joint
venture projects not renewed pursuant to rebid, (b) our commercial sife-based services operations as a result of: (i) a decline in add-on project activities, (i) a
deerease in revenues from its snow removal activities, as a resuft ofIess snowlall in geographical areas in which many of cur contracts are based on a per snow
event basis, and (i) a decrease in revenues fiom supplier management contracts,

Rovonues of our United States industrial services segment for the year ended Docember 31, 2015 increased by $82.1 million compared to the year ended
December 31, 2014, The increase in revenues was primatily due to large capital and meintenance project activity within our industrial field services
operations. Revenues increased within this segment despite a nationwide strike by union employees of certain major oil refineries that negatively impacted
the first halfof2015.

Our United Kingdom building services segment revenues were $377.5 million in 2015 cempared to $350.4 million in 2014, The increase in revenues was
due to an increase in activity in the commercial market attributable to several new contract awards as well as increased work under existing contracts. The
increase in revenues was partially offset by a decrease of $29.2 million relating to the effect of unfavorable exchange rates for the British pound versus the
United States daollar.
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Backlog

The following table presents our operating segment backlog from unrelated entities and their respective percentages of total backlog (in thousands, except
for percentages):

%% of % of
December 31, 2015 Total December 31, 2014 Total
Backlog:

United States electrical construction and facilities services $ 1,145,791 30% 3 1,176,372 32%
United States mechanical construction and facilities services 1,683,501 45% 1,473,018 41%
United States building services 762,196 20% 732,960 20%
United States industrial services 54,578 1% 101,154 3%
Total United States operations 3,646,066 97% 3,483,504 96%
United Kingdom building services 125,097 3% 150,084 4%
Total worldwide operations 3 3,771,163 100% $ 3,633,588 100%

Our backlog at December 31, 2015 was $3.77 billion compared to $3.63 billion at December 31, 2014, This increase in backlog was primarily attributable
to an increase in backlog from our United States mechanical construction and facilities services segment and our United States building services segment,
partially offset by lower backlog from our other reportable segments, Backlog increases with awards of new contracts and decreases as we perform work on
existing contracts. Backlog is not a terin recognized under United States generally accepted accounting principles; however, it is a common measurement
used in our industry. We include a project within our backlog at such time as a contract is awarded and agreement on contract terms has been reached,
Backlog includes unrecognized revenunes to be realized from uncompleted construction contracts plus unrccognized revenues expected to be realized over
the remaining term of services contracts. However, we do not include in backlog contracts for which we are paid on a time and material basis and a fixed
amount cannot be determined, and if the remaining term of a services contract exceeds 12 months, the unrecognized revenues attributable to such contract
included in backlog are limited to only the next 12 months of revenuss provided for in the contract award, Our backlog also includes amounts related to
services contracts for which a fixed price contract value is not assigned when a reasonable estimate of total revenues can be made from budgeted amounts
agreed to with our customer. OQur backlog is comprised oft (a) original coniract amounts, (b) change orders for which we have received written confirmations
from our customers, {¢) pending change erders for which we expect to receive confinmations in the ordinary course of business and (d) claim amounts that we
have made against customers for which we have determined we have a legal basis under existing contractual arrangements and as to which we consider
recovery to be probable, Such claim amounts were immaterial for all periods presented. Our backlog does not include anticipated revenues from
unconsolidated joint ventures or variable interest entities and anticipated revenues from pass-through costs on contracts for which we aro acting in the
capacity of an agent and which are reported on the net basis, We believe our backlog is firm, although many contracts are subject to cancellation at the
election of our customers, Historically, cancellations have not had a material adverse effect on us.

Cost of sales and Gross profit

The following table presents cost of sales, gross profit (revenues less cost of sales), and gross profit margin (gross profit as a percentage of revenues) for the
years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 (in thousands, except for percentages):

2015 2014
Cost of'sales 3 5,774,247 8 5,517,719
Gross profit ] 944479  § 907,246
Gross profit margin 14.1% 14.1%

Qur gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2015 was $944.5 million, a $37.2 million increase compared to the gross profit of $907.2 million for the
year ended December 31, 2014, Our gross profit margin was 14.1% for both 2015 and 2014. Favorable vatiances in both gross profit and gross profit margin
within: (a) our United States mechanical construction and facilities services segment, which included revenues of $12.1 miilion recognized as a result of the
settlement of a ¢laim on an institutional preject located in the southeastern United States, and (b) our United States building services segment were partially
offsct by decreases in gross profit and gross profit margin within cur United Kingdom building services and our United States electrical construstion and
facilities services segment. Gross profit within our United States industrial services segment slightly increased; however, gross margin within this segment
declined due to a decrease in the billing rates and related gross profit margins within our industrial shop services operations due to competitive market
conditions resulting from decreased demand for new heat exchangers as a result of volatility in crude oil prices that led to a curtailment in capital spending,
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Selling, general and adminisirative expenses

The following table presents selling, general and administrative expenses and SG&A margin {(selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage
of revenues) for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 (in thousands, except for percentages):

2015 2014

Sclling, general and administrative expenscs $ 656,573 % 626,478
Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenues 9.8% 9.8%

Gur selling, general and administrative cxpenses for the year ended December 31,2015 were $656.6 million, a $30.1 million increase compared to selling,
general and administrative expenses of $626.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of
revenues were 9.8% for both 2015 and 2014, The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses was due to higher empleyee related costs such as
incentive compensation, salaries and medical insurance costs, as well as certain other costs including computer hardware and sofrware expenses, paifially
offset by a decrease in legal costs. Increased incentive compensation was principally due to higher annual operating results within certain operations than in
2014, which resulted in increased accruals for their incentive compensation plans, The increase in salarfes was attributable to an increase in headcount,
commensurate with an increase in revenues, as well as cost of living adjustments and merit pay increases,

Restructuring expenses

Restructuring expenses were $0,8 million and $1.2 million for 2015 and 2014, respectively, The 2015 restructuring expenses included $0.9 million of
employee severance obligations and the reversal of $0.1 million relating to the termination of leased facilities. The 2014 restructuring expenses included
$0.6 million of empleyee severance obligations and $0.6 million relating to the termination of leased facilities. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the
balance of restructuring related obligations yet to be paid was $0.1 million and $0.3 million, respectively. The majority of obligations outstanding as of
December 31,2014 was paid during 2015, The obligations outstanding as of December 31, 2015 will be paid during the first halfef2G14.

Gain an sale of building

On Tuly 22,2014, we scld a building and land owned by one¢ of our subsidiaries reported in the United States mechanical construction and facilities
sorvices segment. We recognized a gain of approximately $11.7 million on this transaction in the third quarter of 2014, which has been classified as a “Gain
on sale of building” in the Consolidated Statermnents of Operations.

Impairment loss on goodwill and identifiable infangible assets

Ne impairment of our identifiable intangible assets was recognized for the year ended December 31, 2015, In conjunction with our 2014 annual
impairment test on October 1, we recognized 2 $1.5 million non-cash impaitment charge related to subsidiary trade names within the United States
mechanical construction and facilities services segment and the United States building services segment. The 2014 impairment primarily resulted from lower
forecasted revenues from twe companies within these segments. Additionally, no impaitment of cur goodwill was recognized for the years ended December
31,2015 and 2014,
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Operating income (loss)

The following table presents by segment our operating income (loss) and each segment’s operating income (loss) as a percentage of such segment’s
revenues from unrelated entities for the years ended December 31,2015 and 2014 {in thousands, except for percentages)

Yo of % of
Segment Segment
2015 Revenues 2014 Revenues
Operating income {loss):
United States electrical constmction and facilities services $ 82,225 6.0% $ 90,873 6.9%
United States mechanical construction and facilities services 138,688 6.0% 114,418 5.2%
United States building services 70,532 4.1% 65,885 3.8%
United States industrial services 56,469 6.1% 63,159 7.5%
Total United States operations 347914 5.5% 334,335 5.5%
United Kingdom building services 11,634 3.1% 15,011 4.3%
Corporate administration (71,642) — (68,578) —
Restructuring expenses (824) — (1,168) —
Impairment loss on identifiable intangible assets — — (1,471) —
(Gain on sale ofbuilding — — 11,749 —
Total worldwide operations 287,082 43% 289,878 4.5%
Other corporate items:
Interesi expense (8,932) {9,073)
Interest income 673 842
Income from continuing operations before income taxes $ 278,823 $ 281,645

As deseribed in more detail below, we had operating income of $287.1 million for 2015 compared to operating income of $289.9 million for 2014.
Operating margin was 4.3% and 4.5% for 2015 and 2014, respectively. Included within operating income for 2014 was an $11.7 million gain on the sale of a
building, resulting in a 0.2% impact on our consolidated operating margin for 2014,

Operating income of our United States electrical construction and facilities services segment for the year ended December 31, 2015 was $82.2 million
compared to operating income of $20.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, The deerease in operating income for the year ended December 31,
2015 was due to a decrease in gross profit frem transportation, institutional and manufacturing construction projects and an increase in selling, general and
administrative expenses due to higher employee related costs such as incentive compensation and salaries, The decrease in gross profit from transportation
construction projects included approximately $16.1 million of losses incunred on several projects due to productivity issues and delays. The increase in
incentive compensation was principally due fo higher annual operating results within certain operations than in 2014, which resuited in increased accruals
for certain of our incentive compensation plans. The dectease in operating income was partially offset by an increase in gross profit from: {(a} commereial
construction projects, partially due to profits recognized on contracts in the Mid-Atlantic region and (b) healthcare construction projects, The decrease in
operating margin for the year ended December 31, 2015 was attributable to a decreasc in gross profit margin, partially as a result of losses recorded on
transportation projects, as well as an increase in the ratio of selling, general and administrative expenses to revenues resulting from an increase in incentive
compensation due to higher annual operating results within certain operations than in 2014,

Our United States mechanical construction and facilities services segment operating income for the year ended December 31, 2015 was $138.7 million, a
$24.3 million increase compared to operating income of $114.4 million for the year ended Decetnber 31, 2014, Operating income was favorably impacted by
an increase in gross profit fiom institutional, commercial and manufacturing construction projects, partially offset by an increase in selling, general and
administrative expenses. The results for 2015 included revenues of $12.1 million recognized as a result of the settlement ofa claim on an institutional project
located in the southeastern United States, The results for 2014 included the receipt of $3.0 million from former shareholders of'a company we had acquired as
a result of the settlement of a claim by us under the acquisition agreement; this payment has been recorded as a reduction of "Cost of sales" in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations. The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses was primarily the result of an increase in incentive
compensation due to higher annual operating results than in 2014, which resulted in increased aceruals for certain of our ingentive compensation plans,
Companies acquired in 2015 generated operating income of less than $0.1 million, net of amortization expense of $0.3 million attributable to identifiable
intangible assets. The increase in operating margin for the year ended December 31,2015 was attributable to an increase in gross profit margin,
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Operating income of our United States building serviccs scgment wes $70.5 million and $65.9 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively. The increase in
operating income was primarily attributable to improved performance from: (a) our mobile mechanical services operations, partially due to increased
profitability in projects, retrofits, repair services work and service contracts, and (b) our commercial site-based services operations, partially due to a reduction
in legal costs. These increases were partially offset by a decrease in opetating income fiom: () our energy services operations as, in 2014, we benefited from
the successful completion of a large project and (b) our government site-based services operations as a result of the completion in 2014 of two large long-term
site-based joint venture projects not renewed pursuant to rebid. The results for the year ended December 31, 2015 included income of approximately $2.7
million, net of associated legal costs, upon the favorable settlement ol a claim by us against the former owner of a company we had previously acquired
within our commercial site-based services operations. The inerease in operating margin for the year ended December 31, 2015 was aitributable to an increase
in gross profit margin.

Operating income of our United States industrial services segment for the year ended December 31, 2015 decreased by $6.7 million compared to eperating
income for the year ended December 31, 2014, The decrease in operating income was primarily attributable to: (a) a decrense in gross profit from our
industrial shop services operations due to: (i) a decrease in the billing rates and related gross profit margins due to competitive market conditions resulting
from decreased demand for new heat exchangers as a result of volatility in crude oil prices that led to a curtailment in capital spending and (ii) the mix of
work, which included fower repair projects than in 2014, that generate relatively high gross profit margins, (b) the negative impact of a nationwide strike by
union employees of certain majar oil refineties in the first half of 20135, which led to both deferrals and losses of certain tumaround projects that generate
relatively high gross profit margins, and {¢) an increase in selling, general and administrative cxpeonses due to higher employee related costs such as salaries
and employee benefits, partially as a result of increased headcount. The decrease in operating income was partially offset by large capital and maintenance
project activity within our industrial field services operations, The decrease in operating margin for the year ended December 31, 2015 was attributable to a
decrease in gross profit margin.

Our United Kingdom building services segment’s operating income for the year ended December 31, 2015 was $11.6 million compared to operating
income of $15.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2014. The decrease in operating income and operating margin was primarily attributable to the
impact of $4.8 million of income recognized in the second quarter of 2014 as a result of a reduction in the estimate of certain acenued contract cosis that were
no longer expected to be incurred, The overall decrease in gross profit in this segment was partially offset by an increase in gross profit from both new
contract awards and increased project activity within the commmercial market. This segment recorded a decrease in operating income of $0.9 million relating
to the effect of unfavorable excliange rales for the British pound versus the United States dollar.

Our corporate administration operating loss was $71.6 million for 2015 compared te $68.6 million in 2014. The increase in expenses for the year ended
December 31, 2015 was primarily due to an increase in cortain employment costs, such as incentive compensation and salaries, as well as certain other
expenses including legal costs. The increase in incentive compensation was partially due to higher awards earned than in 2014, which resulted in increased
accruals for certain of cur incentive compensation plans.

Non-operafing ifems

Interest expense was $8.9 million and $9.1 million for 2015 and 2014, respectively. The decrease in interest expense for 2015 compared to 2014 was
primarily due to lower borrowings outstanding.

Interest income was $0.7 million and $0.8 million for 20135 and 2014, respectively. The decrease in interest income was primarily related to lower invested
cash balances.

For joint ventures that have been accounted for using the consolidation method of accounting, noncontrolling interest represents the allocation of earnings
to ourjoint venture partners who either have a minority-ownership interest in the joint venture ot are not at risk for the majority of losses ofthe joint venture.

Our 2013 income tax provision from continuing operations was $106.3 million compared to $103.5 million for 2014. The actual income tax rates on
income from continuing operations before income taxes, less amounts attributable to nencontrolling interests, for the years ended December 31, 2015 and
2014, were 38.1% and 37.4%, respectively. The increase in the 2015 income tax provision compared to 2014 was predominantly due to certain increases in
the state tax provision attributable to the mix of earnings and the effect of a change in the United Kingdom statutory tax rate on defstred tax assets.
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Discontinued operations

Due to a historical pattern of losses in the construction operations of our United Kingdom segment and our negative assessmeni of construction market
conditions in the United Kingdom for the foreseeable future, we announced during the quarter ended June 30, 2013 our decision to withdraw fiom the
construction market in the United Kingdom. During the third quarter of 2014, we ceased construction operations in the United Kingdom, The results of the
construction operations of our United Kingdom segment for all periods are presented in our Consolidated Financial Statements as discontinued operations.

2014 versus 2013
Overview

The following table presents selectad financial data for the fiscal years ended Decernber 31, 2014 and 2013 (in thousands, except percentages and per share
data):

2014 2013

Revenues 3 6,424,965 $ 6,333,527

Revenues increase from prior year 1.4% 2.2%
Restructuring expenses 3 1,168 & 647
Impairment loss on identifiable intangible assets b 1,471 $ —
Gain on sale of building $ 11,749 % —
Opcrating income $ 289878 % 244,350

Operating income as a percentage of revenues 4.5% 3.8%
Income from continuing operations by 178,117 § 150,423
Net income attributable to EMCOR Group, Inc. ’ $ 168,664 $ 123,792
Diluted eamings per common share from continuing operations 5 259 % 2.16

Overall revenues, operating income and operating margin {operating income as a percentage of revenues) increased in 2014 compared to 2013. The
increase in revenues is primarily attributable to higher revenues from our United States industrial services segment and our United Kingdom building services
segment, partially offset by a decline in revenues from our {a) United States mechanical construction and facilities services segment, (b} United States
building services segment and (c) United States electrical construction and facilities services segment. Companies acquired in 2013, which are reported in our
United States industrial segment and our United States mechanical construction and facilities services segment, generated incremental revenues of $231.2
million in 2014, This amount reflects acquired companies' revenues in 2014 only for the time period these entitics were not owned by EMCOR in the
comparable 2013 peried.

The increases in operating income were primarily attributable to improved operating performance within all of our reportable segments, except for our
United States clectrical construction and facilities services segment and our United States building services segment, Operating income margins increased
within all of our reportable segments, except for our United States electrical construction and facilities services segment and our United States industrial
services segment. In addition, our operating income and operating margin were favorably impacted by an $11.7 million gain on the sale of a building.
Companies acquired in 2013, which are reported in our United States industrial segment and our United States mechanical construction and facilities services
segment, contributed $9.3 million to operating income, net of $8.2 million of amontization expensc associated with identifiable intangible assets, These
amounts reflect acquired companies' operating results in 2014 only for the fime period these entities were not owned by EMCOR in the comparable 2013
period.
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Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations
Revenues

As described in more detail below, revenues for 2014 were $6.4 billion compared to $6.3 billion for 2013, The increase in revenues for 2014 was primarily
atttibutable to revenues of$231.2 million attributable to companies acquired in 2013 (which reflects acquired companies’ revenues in 2014 only for the time
petiod these entities were not owned by EMCOR in the comparable 2013 period) and higher revenues from our United States industrial services segment and
our United Kingdom building services segment. This increase was partially offset by lower revenues from our other reportable segments.

The following table presents out revenues for each of our operating segments and the approximate percentages that each segment’s revenues were of total
revenues for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 (in thousands, except for percentages):

% of % of
2014 Total 2013 Total
Revenues from unrelated entities:

United States electrical constniction and facilities services 3 1,311,988 20% $ 1,345,750 21%
United States mechanical construction and facilities services 2,201,212 34% 2,329,834 37%
United States building services 1,721,341 27% 1,794,978 28%
United States industrial services 839,980 13% 519413 8%
Total United States operations 6,074,521 95% 5,989,975 95%
United Kingdom building services 350,444 5% 343,552 5%
Total worldwide operations 3 6,424,965 100% $ 6,333,527 100%

Revenues of our United States electrical construction and facilities setvices sogmont were $1,312.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2014
compared to revenues of $1,345.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, The decrease in revenues was primarily attributable to a decrease in
revenues from institutional and manufacturing construction projects, primarily in the southemn Califormia and Washington D.C. markets, as well as a decrease
in revenues from water and wastewater construction projects, These decreases were partially olfset by higher levels of work from transportation, commercial
and healthcare projects.

Our United States mechanical constriction and facilities services segment revenues for the year ended December 31, 2014 were $2,201.2 million, a $128.6
million decrease compared to revenues of $2,329.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. This decrease in revenucs was primarily attributable to a
decline in revenues from manufacturing construction projects, pattially as the result of the completion in 2013 of several large projects within this market
sector, which were not replaced. This decrease was partially offset by: (2} an increase in revenues from commercial, hospitality and institutional constrction
projects and (b) incremental revenues of $19.2 million generated by companies acquired in 2013. This amount reflects acquired companies' revenugs in 2014
only for the time pericd these entities were not owned by EMCOR in the comparable 2013 perfod.

Revenues of our United States building services segment were $1,721.3 million and $1,795.0 million in 2014 and 2013, respectively. This decrease in
revenues was primarily attributable to decreased revenues from: (a) our commercial sitc-based services operations, as a result of a decline in revenues from
supplier management contracts, including a large coniract that was terminated by agreement of both partics, (b} our energy services operations, due to a
reduction in large project work, and (¢) our government site-based services operations, as a result of the completion of a large leng-term site-based joint
venture project located in the Pacific Northwest not renewed pursuant to rebid. These decreases were partially offset by an increase in revenues from our
mabile mechanical service operations, primarily within the California and New England markets.

Revenues of our United States industiial services segment for the year ended December 31, 2014 increased by $320,6 million compared to the year ended
December 31, 2013, For the seven months ended July 31, 2014, RSI generated ingremental revenues of $212.0 million. This amount reflects RSI's revenues in
2014 enly for the time period RSI was not owned by EMCOR in the comparable 2013 period. The increase in revenues was also attributable to an increased
demand for our industrial field services operations, partially offset by a decrease in revenues from our industrial shop services operations.

Our United Kingdom building services segment revenues were $350.4 million in 2014 compared to $343.6 million in 2013. This increase in revenues was
due to an increase of $16.9 million relating to the effect of favorable exchange rates for the British pound versus the United States dollar and increased
activity within the commercial and healthcare markets, partially offset by decreased activity within the transportation and institutional markets.
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Backlog

The following table presents our operating segment backlog from unrelated entities and their respective percentages of total backlog (in thousands, except
for percentages):

% of % of
December 31, 2014 Total December 31, 2013 Total
Backlog:

United States electrical construction and facilities services 3 1,176,372 2% $ 993,919 30%
United States mechanical construction and facilities services 1,473,018 41% 1,325,941 40%
United States building services 732,960 20% 761,855 23%
United States industrial services 101,154 3% 94,187 3%
Total United States operations 3,483,504 96% 3,175,902 95%
United Kingdom building services 150,084 4% 167,804 5%
Total worldwide operations $ 3,633,588 100% 3 3,343,706 100%

Our backlog at December 31, 2014 was $3.63 billion compared to $3.34 billion at December 31, 2013. This increase in backlog was primarily attributable
to an increase in contracts awarded for work in cur: {a) United States electrical construction and facilities services segment and (b) United States mechanical
construction and facilities services segment. Backlog increases with awards of new contracts and decreases ag we perform work on existing contracts.

Cost of sales and Gross profit

The following table presents cost of sales, gross profit (revenues less cost of sales), and gross profit margin (gross profit as a percentage of revenues} for the
years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 (in thousands, except for percentages):

2014 2013
Cost of sales $ 5517719 § 5511881
Gross profit $ 907,246  § 821,646
Gross profit margin 14.1% 13.0%

Qur gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2014 wag $907.2 million, an $85.6 million increase compared to the gross profit of $821.6 million for the
year ended December 31, 2013. The increase in gross profit was primarily atiributable to improved profitability within all of our reportable segments, except
for our United States electrical construction and facilities services segment. Gross profit in 2013 within our United States mechanical construction and
facilities services segment was negatively impacted by aggregate losses of approximately $24.5 million from one of our subsidiaries at two projects located
in the southeastern United States. Companies acquired in 2013 included in our United States industrial services segment and our United States mechanical
construction and facilitics services segment contributed an aggregate of $35.9 million to gross profit in 2014, This amount reflects acquired companies’ gross
profit in 2014 only for the time period these entities were not owned by EMCOR in the comparable 2013 period.

Our gross profit margin was 14.1% and 13.0% for 2014 and 2013, respectively. Gross profit margin for 2014 increased within most of our reportable
segments. Our conselidated gross profit margin benefited from an increase in revenues from our United States industrial services segment, which historically
genetates higher gross profit margins than our other reportable segments. Gross prefit margin for 2013 was adversely impacted by the two significant project
write-downs reported in our United States mechanical construction and facilities services segment, resulting in a 0.4% impact on ¢onsolidated gross profit
margin.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

The following table presents selling, general and administrative expenses, and selling, genera! and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenues, for
the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 {in thousands, except for percentages):

2014 2013

Selling, general and administrative expenses $ 626478 § 580,649
Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenues 9.8% 9.2%

Our selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2014 were $626.5 million, a $45.8 million increase compared to selling,
general and administrative expenscs of $580.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, Selling, peneral and administrative expenses as a percentage of
revenues were 9.8% and 9.2% for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, This inerease in selling, general and administrative expenses
primarily resulted from: (a) $26.6 millicn of
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expenses directly related to companies acquired in 2013, including amortization expense of $8.2 million attributable to identifiable intangible assets (which
reflect acquired companies' expenses in 2014 only for the time period these entities were not owned by EMCOR in the comparable 2013 period), (b) higher
employee related costs such ag incentive compensation and employee benefits and (¢) higher legal costs, including the unfavorable settlement of a legal
matter, In addition, our selling, general and administrative expenses as a perceniage of revenues increased due to higher revenues from our United States
industrial services segment, which has a higher fixed cost structure than our other reportable segments. Selling, general and administrative expenses for the
year ended December 31, 2013 included $6.1 million of transaction costs associated with the acquisition of RS Selling, general and administrative expensos
for the year ended December 31, 2013 were reduced by $6.8 million of income atiributable to the reversal of contingent consideration acciuals relating to
acquisitions made priorte 2013.

Restructuring expenses

Restructuring expenses were $1.2 million and $0.6 million for 2014 and 2013, respectively. The 2014 restructuring expenses included $0.6 million of
cmployee severance obligations and $0.6 million relating to the tenmination of leased facilities. The 2013 restructuring expenses included $0.5 million of
employee severance obligations and $0.1 million reluting to the termination of leased facilities. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the balance of
restructuring related obligations yet to be paid was $0.3 million and $0.2 million, respectively. The majority of obligations outstanding as of December 31,
2014 and December 31, 2013 were paid during 2015 and 2014, respectively,

Gain on sale of building

On July 22, 2014, we sold a building and land owned by one of our subsidiaries reported in the United States mechanical construction and facilities
services segment, We recognized a gain of approximately $11.7 million on this transaction in the third quarter of 2014, which has been classified as a “Gain
on sale afbuilding” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Impalrment loss on goodwill and identifiable intangible assets

In conjunction with our 2014 annual impaivment test on October 1, we recognized a $1.5 million non-cash impairment charge related to subsidiary trade
names within the United Statcs mechanical construction and facilities sorvices scgmont and the United States building services segment, The 2014
impairment primarily resuited from lower forecasted revenues from two companies within these segments. No impairment of our identifiable intangible assets
was recognized for the year ended December 31, 2013. Additionally, no impairment of our goodwill was recognized for the years ended December 31, 2014
and 2013,

Operating income (loss)

The following table prescnts by secgment our operating income (loss) and each segment’s cporating income (loss) as a percentage of such segment’s
revenues from unrelated entities for the years ended December 31,2014 and 2013 (in thousands, except for percentages):

% of Yo of
Segment Segment
2014 Revenues 2013 Revenues
Operating income (loss):
United States clectrical construction and facilitics scrvices $ 0,873 6.9% $ 98,114 73%
United States mechanical construction and facilities services 114418 5.2% 93,765 4.0%
United States building services 65,885 3.8% 67,225 317%
United States industrial services 63,159 7.5% 38,763 7.5%
Total United States operations 334,335 5.5% 297 807 5.0%
United Kingdom building services 15,011 4.3% 13,021 3.8%
Corporate administration (68,578) — (69,891) —
Restructuring expenses (1,168) — 647) —
Impairment loss on identifiable intangible assets (1,471 — — —
Gain on sale of'building 11,749 —_— — —
Total worldwide operations 289,878 4.5% 240,350 31.8%
Other corporate items:
Interest expense (9,075} (8,76%)
Interest income 842 1,128
Income from continuing operations before income taxes b 281,645 $ 232,709
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As described in more detail below, we had operating income of $289.9 million for 2014 compared to operating income of $240.4 million for 2013,
Operating margin was 4.5% and 3.8% for 2014 and 2013, respectively. Included within operating income for 2014 was an $11.7 million gain on ths sale of'a
building, resulting in a 0.2% impact on our conselidated operating margin for 2014. Operating income for 2013 was negatively impacted by aggregate losses
of approximately $24.5 million from one of our subsidiaries at two projects located in the southeastern United States, resulting in a 0.4% impact on our
consolidated operating margin for 2013,

Operating income of our United States electrical construction and facilities services segment for the year ended December 31, 2014 was $90.9 million
compared to operating income of $98.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. The decrease in operating income for the year ended December 31,
2014 was primarily the result of a decrease in gross profit attributable te institutional, transportation, manufacturing and water and wastewater construction
projects, as well as an increase in selling, general and administrative expenses, mainly attributable to employment costs. This segment was also negatively
impacted by project losses incurred fiom one of our subsidiaries whose operations we are in the process of closing. The decrease in operating margin for the
year ended December 31,2014 was primarily the result of an increase in the ratio of'selling, general and administrative expenses to revenues,

Qur United States mechanical construction and facilities services segment operating income for the year ended December 31, 2014 was $114.4 million, a
$20.7 million increase compared to operating income o' $93.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, Operating income was favorably impacted by
an increase in gross profit from institutional, commercial, healthcare and hospitality construction projects, partially offset by a decrease in gross profit from
manufacturing and transportation censtruction projects. The results for 2014 included the receipt of $3.0 million from former shareholders of a company we
had acquired as a resuit of the settlement of a claim by us under the acquisition agreement; this payment has been recorded as a reduction of "Cost of sales" in
the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The results for 2013 included aggregate losses of approximately $24.5 million from one of our subsidiaries at two
projects located in the southeastern United States, resulting in a 1.1% impact on this segment’s operating margin, partially offset by $6.7 millicen of income
attributable to the reversal of contingent consideration accruals related to acquisitions made prior to 2013. Companies acquired in 2013 generated operating
income of $0,9 million, net of amortization expense of $0.2 million attributable to identifiable intangible assets, for the year ended December 31, 2014,
These amounts reflect acquired companies’ operating results in 2014 only for the time period these entities were not owned by EMCOR in the comparable
2013 period. The increase in operating margin for the year ended December 31, 2014 was attributable to an increase in gross profit margin.

Operating income of our United States building services segment was $65.9 million and $67.2 million in 2014 and 2013, respectively. The decrease in
operating income was primarily attributable to a decrease in operating income from this segment’s: (a) commercial site-based services operations, due to; (i}
decreased volume from supplier management contracts and (ii}) higher legal costs, including the unfavorable settiement of a legal matter, and {b) energy
services operations, due to a reduction of large project work. These decreases were partially offset by an increase in gross profit from this segment's: (a) mobile
mechanical services operations, partially due to increased profitability in projects, retrofits and repair services work and (b) govermnment stte-based services
operations, partially due to the successful close-out of two large long-term joint venture projects and reduced selling, general and administrative expenses.
The increase in operating margin for the year ended December 31, 2014 was attributable to an increase in gross profit margin.

Opemating income of our United States industrial services segment for the year ended December 31, 2014 increased by $24.4 million compared to operating
income for the year ended December 31, 2013, For the seven months ended July 31, 2014, RSI contributed $8.4 million of operating income, net of $8.0
million of amortization expense attributable to identifiable intangible assets. These amounts reflect RSI's operating results in 2014 only for the time period
RSI was not owned by EMCOR in the comparable 2013 period. Operating income also benefited from an inercase in demand for this segment’s industrial
field services, The increase in operating inceme was partially offset by a reduction in operating income from our industrial shop services operations, which
had benefited from exceptionally strong demand during the first quarter of 2013,

Qur United Kingdom building services segment’s operating income for the year ended December 31, 2014 was $15.0 million compared to operating
income of $13.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, This segment recognized income of $4.8 million during the second quarter of 2014, which
has been recorded as a reduction of "Cost of sales" in the Consolidated Statements of Operations, as a result of a reduction in the cstimate of certain acerued
contract costs that were no longer expected to be incurred, which was partially offset by a decrease in income from the comtnercial and transpottation
markets, The inerease in operating margin for the year ended December 31, 2014 was attributable to an increase in gross profit margin and a decrease in the
ratio of selling, general and administrative expenses to revenues.

QOur cotporate administration operating loss was $68.6 million for 2014 compared to $69.9 million in 2013. Cur corporate administration operating loss for
2013 included $6.1 million of transaction costs associated with the acquisition of RSL The benefit of the absence of these transaction costs for 2014 was
partially offset by an increase in certain employment costs, such as incentive
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compensation and cmployee boenefits. Also, our corporate administration operating loss for 2013 was reduced by the receipt of an insurance recovery of
approximately $2.6 million that was received in January 2013 associated with a previously disposed of operation, which is classified as a component of "Cost
of sales" in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Non-operating items

Intcrest expense was $9.1 million and $8.8 million for 2014 and 2013, respectively. The $0.3 million increase in interest expense for 2014 compared to
2013 was primarily due to increased borrowings associated with the term loan executed in November 2013,

Interest income was $0.8 million and $1.1 million for 2014 and 2013, respectively. The decrease in interest income was primarily related to lower invested
cash balances.

Fot joint ventures that have been accounted for using the consolidation method of accounting, nencontralling interest represents the allocation of eamnings
to our joint venture partners who either have a minority-ownership interest in the joint venture or are not at rigk for the majority oflosses of the joint venturs.

Qur 2014 income tax provision fiom continuing operations was $103.5 million comparcd to $82.3 million for 2013. The actual income tax ratos on income
from continuing operations before income taxes, less amounts attributable to noncontrelling interests, for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, were
37.4% and 35.9%, respectively. The increase in the 2014 income tax provision compared to 2013 was primarily due to the effect of increased income before
income taxes and the 2013 reversal of previously unrecognized income tax benefits.

Discontinued operations

Due to a historical pattern of losses in the constrction operations of our United Kingdom segment and our negative assessment of construction market
conditicns in the United Kingdom for the foreseeable future, we announced duting the guarter ended June 30, 2013 our decision to withdraw from the
construction market in the United Kingdom, Dusing the third quarter of 2014, we ceased construction operations in the United Kingdon. The results of the
construction operations of our United Kingdom segment for all periods are presented in our Consolidated Financial Statements as discontinued operations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The following table presents net cash provided by (used in) operating activities, investing activities and financing activities for the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 (in thousands):

215 2014 2013
Net cash provided by operating activities 3 266,666 § 246,657 $ 150,069
Net cash used in investing activities $ (59,808) % (21,668) §$ (483,422)
Net cash (used in)} provided by financing activities 5 (149473 $ (229,950) % 167,031
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents $ (2,610 % (2,796) % 832

Qur consolidated cash balance increased by approximately $54.8 million from $432.1 million at December 31, 2014 to $486 8 million at December 31,
2015. Net cash provided by operating activities for 2015 was $266,7 million compared to $246.7 million of net cash provided by operating activities for
2014, The increase in cash provided by operating activitics was primarily due to: (a) a $70.7 million increase in net over-billings related to the timing of
customer billings and payments, (b} a $50.6 million increase in accounts payable and (c) a $40.5 million increase in other working capital changes, partially
offset by a $142.7 million increase in accounts receivable, Net cash used in investing activities was $59.8 million for 2015 compared to net cash used in
investing activities of $21.7 million for 2014. The increase in cash used in investing activities was primarily due to payments te acquire businesses in 2015,
Net cash used in financing activities for 2015 decreased by approximately $80.5 millicn compared to 2014, The decrease in net cash used in financing
activities was primatily due to a decrease in fundsused for the repurchase of common stock. Cash flows frem discontinued operations were immaterial and are
not expected to significantly affect future liquidity.

Our consolidated cash balance decreased by approximately $7.8 million from $439.8 million at December 31, 2013 to $432.1 million at December 31,
2014, Net cash provided by operating activities for 2014 was $246.7 million compared te $150.1 million of net cash provided by operating activities for
2013. The increase in cash provided by operating activities was primarily due to: (a) 2 $46.1 millicn increase in net income, {b} a $30.6 millien decrease in
accounts receivable and {c) a $16.0 million reduction in income taxes paid, partially offset by a $12.2 million decrease in accounts payable. Net cash used in
investing activities was $21.7 million for 2014 compared to nct cash uscd in investing activitics of $483.4 million for 2013, The decrease in cash used in
investing activities was primarily due to the lack of acquisitions in 2014. Net cash used in financing activities for 2014 increased by approximately $397.0
million compared to 2013. The increase in net cash used in financing activitiss was primatily due to an
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increase in funds used for the repurchase of common stock of $175.9 million, the repayment of long-term debt, and the payment of regular quarterly
dividends to stockholders, partially offset by an increase in proceeds from the exercise of stock options.

The following is a summary of material contractual obligations and other commercial commitments (in millions):

Payments Due by Period

Less

than 1-3 3-5 After
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year years years 5 years
Term Loan (including interest currently at 1.67%) (1) $ 3294 3§ 227 % 3067 3 — 8 —
Capital lease obligations 41 1.5 1.5 1.1 —_
Operating leases 239.6 589 843 50.1 46.3
Open purchase obligations 2} 1,0212 802.4 199.7 19.1 —
Other long-term obligations, including current portion @} 363.6 41.5 310.8 113 —
Liabilities related to uncertain income tax positions 52 4.5 — — 0.7
Total Contractual Obligations 3 1,9631 § 9315 % 9030 § gl6 § 47.0

Amount of Commitment Expirations by Period

Tatal Less
Amounts than 1-3 35 After
Other Commerecial Commitments Committed 1 year years years 3 years
Lettets of credit § 992 § 992 % — 3 — 3 —

{1) OnNovember 25, 2013, we entered into a a $750.0 million revolving credit facility (the “2013 Revolving Credit Facility'”) and a $350.0 million term loan {the "Term Loan™),
(collectively referred to as the "2013 Credit Agreement"). The proceeds of the Term Loan were used to repay amounts drawn under our previous credit agreement. As of
December 31, 2015, the amount outstanding under the Term Loan was $315.0 million.

(2)  Represents open purchase orders for material and subcontracting costs related to construction and service contracts. These purchase orders are not reflected in our
consolidated balance sheets and should not impact fulure cash flows, as amounts should be recovered through customer billings.

(3) Represents primarily insurance related liabilities and liabilities for deferred income taxes, incentive compensation and deferred compensation, classified as other long-term
Linbilities in the consolidated balance sheets. Cash payments for insurance and deferred compensation telated liabilities may be payable beyond three years, but it is not
practical to estimate these payments; therefore, these liabilities are reflected in the 1-3 years payment period. We provide funding to our post retirement plans based on at least
the minimum funding required by applicable regulations. In determining the minimum required funding, we utilize current actuarial assumpiions and exchange rates to
forecast esfimates of amounts that may be payable for up to five years in the future. In cur judgment, minimum funding estimates beyond a five year time horizon cannot be
reliably estimated, and therefore, have not been included in the table,

Until November 25, 2013, we had a revolving credit agreement (the “2011 Credit Agreement™) as amended, which provided for a revolving credit facility
of $750.0 million. The 2011 Credit Agreement was effective November 21, 2011, Effective November 25, 2013, we amended and restated the 2011 Credit
Agreement to provide for a $750.0 million revolving credit facility (the “2013 Revolving Credit Facility”) and a $350.0 million term loan (the “Term Loan™)
(collectively referred to as the “2013 Credit Agreement} expiring November 25, 2018. The proceeds of the Term Loan were used to repay amounts drawn
under the 2011 Credit Agreement. We may increase the 2013 Revolving Credit Facility to $1.05 billion if additional lenders are identified and/or existing
lenders are willing to increase their current commitments. We may allocate up to $250.0 million of available capacity under the 2013 Revolving Credit
Facility to letters of credit for cur account or for the account of cur subsidiaries. The 2013 Revolving Credit Agreement is guaranteed by most of our direct
and indircct subsidiarics and is sccured by substantially all of our assets and most of the assets of most of our subsidiaries. The 2013 Revolving Credit
Facility and the Term Loan contain various covenants providing for, among other things, maintenance of certain financial ratios and certain limitations on
payment of dividends, common stock repurchases, investments, acquisitions, indebtedness and capital expenditures. We were in compliance with all such
covenants as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, A commitment fee is payable on the average daily unused amount under the 2013 Revolving
Credit Facility, which ranges from .20% to 0.30%, based on certain financial tests. The fee was 0.20% of the unused amount as of December 31, 20135,
Borrowings under the 2013 Revolving Credit Facility and the
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Terin Loan bear intetest at (1) a rate which is the prime cotmmercial lending rate announced by Bank of Montreal from time to time {3.50% at December 31,
2015) plus 0.25% to 0.75%, based on certain financial tests or (2) United States dollar LIBOR (1.42% at December 31, 2015) plus 1,25% to 1.75%, bascd on
cetlain {inancial tests. The interest rate in effect at December 31, 2015 was 1.67%. Fees for letters of credit issued under the 2013 Revolving Credit Facility
tange from 1.25% to 1.75% of the tespective face amounts of outstanding letters of credit and are charged baged on cettain financial tosts. We capitalized
approximately $3.0 million of debt issuance costs associated with the 2013 Credit Agreement. This amount is being amortized over the life of the agreement
and is included as part of interest expense, We are required to make prineipal payments on the Tetm Loan in installments on the last day of March, June,
September and December of each year, commencing with the calendar quarter ended March 31, 2014, in the amount of $4.4 million, with a final payment of
all unpaid principal and interesi due and payable on November 25, 2018. As of December 31, 2G15 and December 31, 2014, the balance on the Term Loan
was $315.0 million and $332.5 million, respectively, As of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, we had approximately §99.0 million and §95.5
million of letters of credit outstanding, respectively. There were no borrowings outstanding under the 2013 Revelving Credit Facility as of December 31,
2015 and December 31,2014,

The terms of our construction contracts frequently require that we obtain from surety companies (“Surety Companies™) and provide to our customers
payment and performance bends (“Surety Bonds™) as a condition to the award of such centracts. The Surety Bonds secure our payment and performance
obligations under such contracts, and we have agreed to indemnify the Surety Companies for amounts, if any, paid by them in respect of Surcty Bonds issued
on cur behalf, [n additicn, at the request of labor unions representing certain of our employees, Surety Bonds are sometimes provided to secure obligations
for wages and benefits payable to or for such employees. Public sector contracts require Surety Bonds more frequently than private sector contracts, and
accordingly, our bonding requirements typically increase as the amount of public sector work increases. As ef December 31, 2015, based on our percentage-
of-completion of our projects covered by Sursty Bonds, our aggregate estimated exposure, assuming defaults on all our then existing contractual obligations,
was approximately $1.2 billion, which represents approximately 32% of our total backlog. The Surety Bonds are issued by Surety Companies in retum for
premiums, which vary depending on the size and type of'bond,

From time to time, we discuss with our current and other Surety Bond providers the amounts of Surety Bonds that may be available to us based on our
financial strength and the absence of any default by us on any Surety Bond issued on our behalf and believe those amounts are currently adequate for our
needs, Howevet, if we experience changes in our bonding relationships or if there are adverse changes in the surety industry, we may seek to satisfy certain
customer requests for Surety Bonds by posting other forms of collateral in licu of Surety Bonds such as letters of eredit, parent company guarantees or cash,
seeking to convince customers to forego the requirement for Surety Bonds, by increasing our activities in our business segments that raroly require Surety
Bonds such as cur building and industrial services segments, and/ar by refraining from bidding for certain prejects that require Surety Bonds. There can be no
assurance that we would be able to effectuate alternatives to providing Surety Bonds to our customers or to obtain, on favorable terms, sufficient sdditional
work that dees not require Surety Bonds. Accordingly, if we wete to expetience a reduction in the availability of Surety Bonds, we could experience a
material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations and/or cash flows.

In the ordinary course of business, we, at times, guarantee obligations of our subsidiaries under certain contracts. Generally, we are liable under such an
arrangement only if our subsidiary fails to perform its obligations under the contract, Historically, we have not incurred any substantial liabilitics as a
consequence of these guarantees.

We do not have any other material financial guarantees or off-balance sheet arrangements other than those disclosed herein.

We are a party to lawsuits and other proceedings in which other parties seek to recover from us amounts ranging from a few thousand dollars to over §10.0
million. We do not believe that any such matters will have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or liguidity.

On September 26, 2011, our Beard of Directors authorized us to repurchase up to §100.0 million of our outstanding common stock. On December 5, 2013,
October 23, 2014 and October 28, 2015, our Board of Directors authorized us to repurchase up to an additional $100.0 million, $250.0 million and $200.0
million of our outstanding common stock, respectively. During 20135, we repurchased approximately 2.3 million shares of our common stock for
approximately $112.3 million. Since the inception of these repurchase programs through December 31, 2015, we have repurchased 9.9 million shates of our
common stock for approximately $395.9 million. As of December 31, 2015, there remained authorization for us to repurchase approximately $254.1 million
of our shares. The repurchase programs do not obligate the Company to acquire any particular amount of common stock and may be suspended,
recommenced or discontinued at any time or from time to time without prior notice. Repurchases may be made from time to time to the extent petmitted by
securities laws and other legal requirements, including provisions in our credit agreement placing limitations on such repurchases. The repurchase programs
have been and will be funded from our operations.

We have pald quarterly dividends since October 25, 2011, We expect that quarterly éividends will be paid in the foresesable future. Prior to October 25,
2011, no cash dividends had been paid on the Company’s common stock. We currently pay a regular
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quarterly dividend of $0.08 per share, Qur 2013 Credit Agreement places limitations on the payment of dividends on our common stock. However, we do not
believe that the terms of such agreement currently materially [imit our ability to pay a quarterly dividend of $0.08 per share for the foreseeable future. The
payment of dividends has been and will be funded from our operations.

Our primary source of liquidity has been, and is expected to continue to be, cash generated by operating activities. We also maintain our 2013 Revolving
Credit Facility that may be utilized, among other things, to meet short-term liquidity needs in the event cash generated by operating activities is insufficient
or to enable us to seize opportunities to participate in joint ventures or to make acquisitions that may require access to cash on short notice or for any other
reason, Negative macroeconomic trends may have an adverse effect on liquidity. During sconomic downtuns, there have been typicaily fewer small
discretionary projects from the private sector, and our competitors have aggressively bid larger long-term infrastructure and public sector contracts. Short-
term liguidity is also impacted by the type and length of construction contracts in place and large tumaround activities in our United States industrial
services segment that are billed in atrears pursuant to contractual terms that are standard within this industry. Performance of long duration contracts typically
requires greater amounts of working capital. While we strive to maintain a net over-billed position with our customers, there can be no assurance that a net
over-billed position can be maintained. Our net over-billings, defined as the balance sheet accounts “Billings in excess of costs and estimated eamings on
uncompleted contracts” fess *Cost and estimated eamnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts”, were $311.5 million and $265.4 million as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Long-term liquidity requirements can be expected to be met initially through cash generated from operating activities and our 2013 Revolving Credit
Facility. Based upon our current credit ratings and financial position, we can reasonably expect to be able to incur long-term debt to fund acquisitions, Over
the long term, our primary revenue risk factor continues to be the level of demand for non-residential construction services and for building and industrial
services, which is influenced by macroeconomic trends including interest rates and governmental economic policy. In addition, our ability to perform work is
critical to meeting long-term liquidity requirements,

We believe that our current cash balances and our borrowing capacity available under our 2013 Revolving Credit Facility or other forms of financing
available to us through borrowings, combined with cash expecied to be generated from operations, will be sufficient to provide our short-term and
foreseeable long-term liquidity and meet our expected capital expenditure requirements.

Certain Insurance Matters

As of December 31,2015 and 2014, we utilized approximately $97.8 million and $94.6 million, respectively, of lefters of credit obtained under our 2013
Revolving Credit Facility as collateral for insurance obligations.

New Accounting Pronouncements

Wo review new accounting standards to determine the expected impact, it any, that the adoption of such standards will have on our financial position
and/or results of operations. See Note 2 -~ Summary of Significant Accounting Policies of the notes to consolidated financial statements included in Item 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data for further information regarding new accounting standards, including the anticipated dates of adoption and
the effects on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies

Our consolidated financial statements are based on the application of significant accounting policies, which require management to make significant
estimates and assumptions. Qur significant accounting policies are described in Note 2 - Summary of Significant Acconnting Policies of the notes to
consolidated financial statements included in Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of this Form 10-K. We believe that some of the more
critical judgment areas in the application of accounting policies that affect our financial condition and results of operations are the impact of changes in the
estimates and judgments pertaining to: (a) revenue recognitien from (i) long-term construction contracts for which the percentage-oficompletion method of
accounting is wsed and (i) services contracts; (b) collectibility or valuation of accounts receivable; (¢) insurance liabilities; (d) income taxes; and
(e) goodwill and identifiable intangible assets.

Reverue Recognition from Long-term Construction Contracts and Services Coniracts

We believe our most critical accounting policy is revenue recognition from long-term construction contracts for which we use the percentage-of-
completion method of accounting. Percentage-of-completion accounting is the prescribed method of accounting for long-term contracts in accordance with
Accounting Standards Codification {*ASC™) Topic 605-35, “Revenue Recognition-Construction-Type and Production-Type Contracts”, and, accordingly, is
the method used for revenue recognition within our industry. Percentage-of-completion is measured principally by the percentage of costs incurred to date for
each contract to the estimated total costs for such contract at completion. Certain of our electrical contracting business units measure percentage-of-
completion by the percentage of labor costs incurred te date for each contract to the estimated total labor costs for such contract.
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Pre-contract costs from our construction projects are gencrally cxponsed as incurred. Application of percentage-of-completion accounting results in the
recognition of costs and estimated eatnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts in cur Consolidated Balance Sheets. Costs and estimated eamings
in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets arise when revenues have been recognized but the amounts
cannot be billed under the terns of contracts. Such amounts are recoverable from customers based upen various measures of performance, including
achievement of certain milestones, completion of specified units or completion of a contract,

Casts and estimated carnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts alse include ameunts we seek or will seek to collect from customers or others
for errors or changes in contract specifications or design, contract change orders in dispute or unapproved as to both scope and price or other customer-related
causes of unanticipated additional contract costs (claims and unapproved change ordecs). Such amounts are recorded at estimated net realizable value and
take into account factors that may affoet our ability to bill and ultimately collect unbilled revenues, The profit asgociated with claim amounts is not
recognized yntil the claim has been settled and payment has been received, During 2015, we recognized revenues of $12.1 million as a result of the
settlement of a claim within our United Siates mechanical construetion and facilities services segment, which represents the recovery of cost on a project in
which we incurred significant losses in a prior year. There were no significant settlements or payment of claims in 2014, As of December 31,2015 and 2014,
costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts included unbilled revenues for unapproved change orders of approximately
$18.9 miltion and $18.8 million, respectively, and claims of approximately $0.9 million and $3.0 million, respectively, In addition, accounts receivable as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014 included claims of approximately $0.3 million and $2.3 million, respectively. There are contractually billed amounts and
retention related to contracts with unapproved change orders and claims of approximately $52.0 million and $54.0 million as of December 31, 2015 and
2014, respectively. For contracts in claim status, contractually billed amounts will generally not be paid by the customer to us vntil final resolution of related
claims. Due to uncertainties inherent in estimates employed in applying percentage-of-completion accounting, estimates may be revised as project work
progresses, Application of percentage-of-completion accounting requires that the impact of revised estimates be reported prospectively in the consolidated
finaneial statements. In addition to revenue recognition for long-term construction contracts, we recognize revenues from the performance of services for
matntenance, repair and retrofit work consistent with the performance of the services, which are generally on a pro-rata basis over the life of the contractual
arrangement. Expenses related to all services arrangements are recognized as incurred. Revenues related to the engincering, manufacturing and repairing of
shell and tube heat exchangets are recognized when the product is shipped and all other revenue recognition criteria have been met. Costs related to this
work are included in inventory until the product is shipped. Provisions for the entirety of estimated losses on contracts are made in the period in which such
losses are determined. There were no significant losses recognized in 2015 and 2014.

Accounts Receivable

We are required to estimate the collectibility of accounts receivable. A considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing the likelihood of
realization of receivables. Relevant assessment factors include the creditworthiness of the customer, our prior collection history with the customer and related
aging of past due balances. The provision for doubtful aceounts during 2015, 2014 and 2013 amounted to approximately $2.9 million, $2,9 million and $3.5
million, respectively. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, our accounts receivable of $1,359.9 million and $1,234.2 million, respectively, included allowances
for doubtful accounts of $11.2 million and $10.4 million, respectively. The increase in our allowance for doubtful accounts was primarily due to an increase
in the provision for doubtful accounts, partially offset by the write-off of previously reserved accounts receivable. Specific accounts receivable are svaluated
when we believe a customer may not be able to meet its financial obligations due to deterioration of its financial condition or its credit ratings. The
allowance for deubtful accounts requirements are based on the best facts available and are re-evaluated and adjusted on a regular basis as additional
information is received,

Insurance Liabilities

We lhave loss payment deductibles for certain workers' compensation, automobile liability, general liability and property claims, have self-insured
retentions for certain other casualty claims and are selfinsured for employee-related health care claims, Losses are recorded based upon estimates of our
liability for claims incurred and for claims incurred but not reported. The liabilities are derived from known facts, historical {rends and industry averages
utilizing the assistance of an actuary to detennine the best estimate for the majority of these obligations. We believe the liabilities recognized on our balance
sheets for these obligations are adequate. However, such obligations are difficult to assess and estimate due to numerous factors, including sevetity of injury,
determination of liability in proportion to other parties, timely reporting of occurrences and effectiveness of safety and risk management programs. Therefore,
if our actual experience differs from the assumptions and estimates used for recording the liabilities, adjustments may be required and will be recorded in the
period that the experience becomes known. Our estimated insurance liabilities for workers® compensation, automobile liability, general liability and property
claims increased by $9.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the vear eaded December 31, 2014, primarily due to higher revenucs and
an increase in estimated losses as a result of unfavorable claims experience. If our estimated insurance liabilities for workers®
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compensation, antomobile liability, general liability and preperty claims were to increase by 10%, it would have resulted in $14.4 million of additional
expense for the year ended December 31,2015,

Income Taxes

We had net deferred income tax liabilities at December 31, 2015 and 2014 of $120.6 million and $127.8 million, respectively, primarily resulting from
differences between the carrying value and income tax basis of certain identifiable intangible assets and depreciable fixed assets, which will impact our
taxable income in future periods. Included within these net deferred income tax liabilities are $121.4 million and $114.2 million of deferred income tax
assets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. A valuation allowance is required when it is more likely than not that all or a portion of a deferred
income tax asset will not be realized. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the total valuation allowance on deferred income tax assets, related to state net
operating carryforwards, was approximately $0.8 millien and $2.0 million, respectively. We have determined that as of December 31, 2015, a valuation
allowance was not required on any of the remaining deferred tax assets because of significant deferred tax liabilities, exclusive of the deferred tax liabilities
related to indefinite-lived intangible assets, and projected future taxable income.

Goodwill and Identifiable Intangible dssets

As of December 31, 2015, we had $843.2 million and $472.8 million, respectively, of goodwill and net identifiable intangible assets (primarily consisting
of our contract backlog, developed technology/vendor network, customer relationships, non-competition agresments and trade names), primarily arising out
of the acquisition of companies. As of December 31, 2014, goodwill and net identifiable intangible assets were $834.1 million and $502.1 million,
respectively. The changes to goodwill since Decomber 31, 2014 were related to the acquisition of three companies in 2013, The determination of related
estimated useful lives for identifiable intangible assets and whether those assets are impaired involves significant judgments based upon short and leng-term
projections of future performance. These forecasts reflect assumptions regarding the ability to successfully integrate acquired companies, as well as
macroeconomic conditions. ASC Topic 350, “Intangibles-Goodwill and Other” (“ASC 350”) requires goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives not be amortized, but instead tested at least annually for impairment (which we test each October 1, absent any impairment indicators),
and be written down if impaired. ASC 350 requires that goodwill be allocated to its respective reporting unit and that identifiable intangible assets with finite
lives be amortized over their useful lives.

We test for impairment of our goodwill at the repotting unit level. Qur reporting uniis are consistent with the reportable segments identified in Note 17,
“Segment Information”, of the notes te consolidated financial statements included in Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. In assessing
whether our goodwill is impaired, we utilize the two-step process as preseribed by ASC 350. The first step of this test compares the fair value of the reporting
unit, determined based upon discounted estimated future cash flows, to the carrying amount, including goodwill. If the fair value exceeds the catrying
amount, no further analysis is required and no impairment loss is recognized. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds the fair value, the goodwill
of the reporting unit is potentially impaired and step two of the goodwill impairment test would need to be performed to measure the amount of an
impaimment loss, ifany, In the second step, the impairment is computed by comparing the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill with the carrying
amount of the goodwill. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill is greater than the implied fair value of its goodwill, an impairment loss in the
amount of the excess is recognized and charged to operations. The weighted average cost of capital used in our annual testing for impairment as of October 1,
2015 was 11.1%, 11.1% and 11.0% for our domestic construction segments, our United States building services segment and our United States industrial
services segment, respectively. The perpetual growth rate used for our annual testing was 2.7% for all of our domestic segments. Unfavorable changes in these
key assumptions may affect future testing results and cause us to fail step one of the goodwill impairment testing process. For example, keeping all other
assumptions constant, a 50 basis poinl increase in the weighted average costs of capital would causc the estimated fair value of our United Stated industrial
services segment to approach its canying value. A 5O basis point increase in the weighted average costs of capital would not significantly reduce the excess
of the estimated fair value compared to the carrying value for any of our other domestic segments. In addition, keeping all other assumptions constant, a 50
basis point reduction in the perpetual growth rate would not significanily reduce the excess of the estimated fair value compared to the carrying value for any
of our domestic scgments. For the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, ne impairment of our goodwill was recognized.

As of December 31, 2013, we had $843.2 mitlion of goodwill on our balance sheet and, of this amount, approximately 45.6% relates to our United States
industrial services segment, approximately 27.1% relates to our United States building services segment, approximately 26.8% relates to our United States
mochanical construetion and facilities services segment and approximately 0.5% relates to our United States electrical construction and facilities services
segment. As of the date of our latest impairment test, the carrying values of our United States industrial services, United States building services, United
States mechanical construction and facilities services and United States electrical construction and facilities services segments were approximaiely $725.5
million, $445.1 million, $249.5 million and $62.9 million, respectively. The fair values of our United States industrial services, United States building
services, United States mechanical construction and facilities services and United States electrical construction
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and facilities services segments exceeded their carrying values by approximately $52.5 million, $291.2 million, $773.2 million and $661.7 million,
respectively.

We also test for the impairment of trade names that are not subject to amortization by calculating the fair value of such trade names using the “relief from
royalty payments” methodology. This approach involves two steps: (a) estimating reasonable royalty rates for each trade name and (b) applying these royalty
rates to a net revenue stream and discounting the resulting cash flows to determine fair value. This fair value is then compared with the carrying value of each
trade name, If the carrying amount of the tiade name is greater than the implied fair value of the trade name, an impainnent in the amount of the excess is
recognized and charged to operations, For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2013, no impairment of our trade names was recognized. The annual
impairment review of our trade names for the year ended December 31, 2014 resulted in a $1.5 million non-cash impairment charge as a result of a change in
the fair value of subsidiary trade names associated with cettain prior acquisitions reported within our United States mechanical construction and facilities
services segment and our United States building services segment.

In addition, we review for the impaitment of other identifiable intangible assets that are being amortized whenever facts and circumstances indicate that
their carrying values may not be fully recoverable. This test compares their carrying values to the undiscounted pre-fax cash flows expected to result from the
use of the assets. [T the assets ate impaired, the assets are written down to their fair valuss, generally determined based on their [uture discounted cash flows.
For the years ended December 31,2015, 2014 and 2013, no impairment of our other identifiable intangible assets was recognized.

We hiave certain businesses, particulatly within our United States industrial services segment, whose results are highly impacted by the demand for some of
our offerings within the industrial and oil and gas markets, Future performance of this segment, along with a continued evaluation ofthe conditions ofits end
user markets, will be important to ongoing impairment assessments. Should this segment’s actual results suffer a decline or expected future results be rovised
downward, the risk of goodwill impairment or impairment of other identifiable intangible assets would increase.

Qur development of the present value of future cash flow projections used in impairment testing is based upen assumptions and estimates by management
from a review of our operating results, business plans, anticipated growth rates and margins and weighted average cost of capital, among others. Those
assumptions and estimates can change in future periods, and other factors used in assessing [air value are outside the control of management, such as interest
rates. Thete can be no assurances that estimates and assumptions made for putposes of our goodwill and identifiable intangible asset impairment testing will
prove to be accurate predictions of the future. If our assumptions regarding future business performance or anticipated growth rates and/or margins are not
achieved, or there is a 1ise in interest rates, we may be required to record goodwill and/or identifiable intangible asset impairment charges in future periods. It
is not possible at this time to determine if any such future impairment charge would result cr, ifit doeg, whether such a charge would be material.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We have not used any derivative financial instruments during the years ended December 31,2015 and 2014, including trading or speculating on changes
in interest rates or commodity prices of materials used in our business.

We are exposed to market risk for changes in interest tates for borrowings under the 2013 Credit Agreement, which provides for a revolving credit facility
and a term loan. Botrowings under the 2013 Credit Agreement bear interest at variable rates. For fiitther information on borrowing rates and interest rate
sensitivity, refer to the Liquidity and Capital Resources discussion in Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations. As of December 31, 20135, therc were no borrowings outstanding under the revolving credit facility and the balance on the term loan was $315.0
millicn. Based on the $315.0 million borrowings outstanding under the 2013 Credit Agreement, if overall interest rates were to increase by 25 basis points,
interest expense, net of income taxes, would increase by approximately $0.5 million in the next twelve months. Conversely, if overall inferost rates were to
decrease by 25 basis points, interest expense, net of income taxes, would decrease by approximately $¢.5 million in the next twelve months.

We are also exposed to construction market risk and its potential related impact on accounts receivable or costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings
on uncempleted contracts. The amounts recorded may be at risk if our customers’ ability to pay these obligations is negatively impacted by economic
conditions, We continually monitor the creditworthiness of our customers and maintain on-going discussions with customers regarding contract status with
respect to change orders and billing terms. Therefore, we believe we take appropriate action to manage market and other risks, but there is no assurance that
we will be able to reasonably identily all risks with respect to collectibility of these assets. See also the previous discussions of Revenue Recognition from
Long-term Construction Contracts and Services Contracts and Accounts Receivable under Application of Critical Accounting Policies in Item 7,
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,

Amounts invested in our foreign operations are translated into U.S, dollars at the exchange rates in effect at year end. The resulting translation adjustments
are recorded as accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), a component of equity, in our
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Consolidated Balance Sheets. We believe the exposure to the effects that fluctuating foreign currencies may have on our consolidated results of operations is
limited because the foreign operations primarily invoice custemers and collect obligations in their respective local currencies. Additionally, expenses
associated with these transactions are generally contracted and paid for in their same local currencies.

In addition, we ate exposed to market risk of fluctuations in certain commodity prices of materials, such as copper and steel, which are used as components
of supplies or materials utilized in our construction and building and industrial services operations, We are also exposed to increases in energy prices,
particularly as they relate to gasoline prices for our fleet of over 8,500 vehicles. While we believe we can increase our confract prices to adjust for some price
increases in commodities, there can be no assurance that price increases of commedities, if they were to oceur, would be recoverable. Additionally, our fixed
price contracts do not allow us to adjust our prices and, as a result, increases in material ot fuel costs could reduce our profitability with respect to projects in
progress,
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ITEM 8, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
EMCOR Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{In thousands, excep! share and per share data)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful aceounts of $11,175 and $10,424, respectively
Costs and estimated eamings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts
Inventorics
Prepaid expenses and other
Tatal eurrent assets
Investments, notes and other long-term receivables
Property, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill
[dentifiable intangible assets, net
Other assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Borrowings under revolving credit facility
Current maturities of long-term debt and capital lease obligaticns
Accounts payable
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts
Accrued payrofl and benefits
Other accrued expenses and liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations
Other long-term obligations
Total liabilities
Equity:
EMCOR Group, Inc. stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized, zero issued and outstanding

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 200,000,000 shares authorized, 61,727,709 and 63,641,070 shares issued,
respectively

Capital surplus
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Retained eanings
Treasury stock, at cost 659,841 shares
Total ENMICOR Group, Ine, stockholders® equity
Nencontrolling interests
Total equity
Tatal liabilities and equity

The accompanying notes to censolidated financial statements arc an integral part of these statements.
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December 31, December 31,
2015 2014

3 486,831 % 432,056

1,359,862 1,234,187

117,734 103,201

37,545 46,854

65,447 70,305

2,067,419 1,886,603

8,359 9,122

122,018 122,178

843,170 834,102

472,834 502,060

32,670 34,902

3 3,546,470 § 3,388,967
$ — 3 —

18,848 19,041

488,251 460,478

429,235 368,555

268,033 245854

209,361 189,489

1,413,728 1,283,417

300,065 316,399

352,621 359,764

2,066,414 1,959,580

617 036

130,369 227,885
{76,953} (83,197)
1,432,980 1280991
(10,302) (10,302)

1,476,711 1,416,013

3,345 13,374

1,480,056 1,429,387

$ 3,546,470 8 3,388,967
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EMCOR Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For The Years Ended December 31,
{In thousands, except per share data)

2015 2014 2013
Revenues b 6,718,726 § 6,424965 % 6,333,527
Cost of sales 5,774,247 5517,719 5,511,881
Graoss profit 944,479 907,246 821,646
Selling, general and administrative expenses 656,573 626,478 580,649
Restructuring expenses 824 1,168 647
Impairment loss on identifiable intangible assets — 1,471 —
Gain on sale of building : — 11,749 —
Operating income 287,082 289,878 240,350
Interest expense (8,932) (9,075) (8,769)
Interest income 673 842 1,128
Income from continuing operations before income taxes ) 278,823 281,645 232,709
Income tax provision 106,256 103,528 82,286
Income from continuing operations 172,567 178,117 150,423
Loss from discontinued operation, nei of income taxes (19} {4,690) {23,069)
Net income including noncontrolling interests 172,507 173427 127,354
Less: Net income attributable to noncentrolling interests (221) {4,763) {3,562)
Net income attributable to EMCOR Group, Inc. 3 172,286 % 163,664 § 123,792
Basic earnings (loss) per cominon share:
From continuing operations attributable to EMCOR Group, Inc. common stockholders b 274§ 261 % 2.19
From discontinued operation (0.00) 007 (0.34)
Net income attributable to EMCOR Group, In¢. commen stockholders 3 274 3 254 % 1.85
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share:
From continuing operations attributable to EMCOR Group, Inc, common stockholders 5 272 % 259 8§ 2.16
From discontinued operation (0.00) (0.07) 0.349)
Net income atfributable to EMCOR Group, Inc. commeoen stockholders 3 272§ 252 § 1.82
Dividends declared per common share 8 032 % 032 § 0.18

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements arc an integral part of these statements.
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EMCOR Group, Inc, and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For The Years Ended December 31,
(I thousands)

2015 2014 013

Netf income including noncontrotling interests . 3 172,507 % 173,427 § 127,354
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Foreign cutrency translation adjustments (621) {857) (614}

Changes in post retirement plans (1 6,865 (16,463) 15,877

Other comprehensive income (loss) 6,244 (17,420) 15,263
Comprehensive income 178,751 156,007 142,617
Less: Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling inferests (2z1) (4,763) {3,562)
Comprehensive income atiributable to EMCOR Group, Ing. $ 178,530 % 151,244 % 139,055

(1) Net of tax (provisicn) benefit of $(1.6) millien, $4.2 million and $(4.3) million for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The accompanying notes to consclidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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EMCOR Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For The Years Ended December 31,
(In thousands}

2015 2014 2013
Cash flows - operating activities:
Net income including noncontrolling interests $ 172,567 § 173427 % 127,354
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Drepreciation and amortization 36,294 36,524 38,310
Amortization of identifiable intangible assets 37,895 37,966 31,028
Provision for doubtful accounts 2,853 2,918 3,533
Deferred income taxes (10,300} 5,748 11,857
Loss on sale of subsidiary - 608 —
Gain on sale of building — (11,749} —
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (248) (4,920) (903)
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation (1,663) (8,264} (4,624)
Equity income from unconselidated entities (2.883) (1,440} {1,048)
Non-cash expense for amortization of debt issuance costs 1,307 1,307 1,497
MNon-cash (income) expense from contingent consideration arrangements (464) 606 (6,793}
Non-cash expense for impairment of identifiable intangible assets — 1,471 —
Non~cash share-based compensation expense 3,801 8,121 6,943
Nen-cash (income) expense from changes in unrecognized income tax benefits (317) 2,143 (10,539)
Distributions from unconsolidated entities 3,352 1,767 679
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, excluding the effect of businesses acquired:
{Increasc) decrease in accounts receivable (115,303} 27,409 (3,221)
Decrease (increase) in invenfories 9,733 5,269 (865)
{Increase) decrease in costs and estimated earnings in cxcess of billings on uncompleted contracts (12,837) (13,010) 2,807
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 25,440 (25,122) (12,904)
Increase {decrease) in billings in excess of costs and estimated carnings on uncompleted contracts 58,614 (L1,%68) (2,793)
Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll and benefits and other accrued expenses and liabilities 37,122 32,340 (14,761)
Changes in other assets and liabilities, not 16,763 (14,594) (13,488)
Net cash provided by operating activities 266,666 246,657 150,069
Cash flows - investing activities:
Payments for acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired (28,195) — (454,671}
Proceeds from sale of subsidiary — 1,108 —
Proceeds from sale of building — 11,885 —
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3,847 7,235 2,930
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (35,460) (38,035) (35,497)
Investments in and advances to unconsolidated entities and joint ventures — (3,865) (800)
Maturity of short-term investments — — 4,616
Net cash used in investing activities {59,808) (21,668) (483,422)
Cash flows - financing activities:
Proceeds from revolving credit facility — — 250,000
Repaymenis of revolving credit facility — — (400,000)
Borrowings from long-term debt — — 350,000
Repayments of long-term debt and debt issuance costs {17,514 (17.454) {3,013)
Repayments of capital lease obligations 2,737 {1,713) (1,692)
Dividends paid to stockholders (26,095) (21,293) (12,080)
Repurchase of common stock (104,330) {201,994) (26,070
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 1836 6,858 5,172
Paymenits (o salisfy minimum tax withholding {3,866) (1,481) (927)
Issuance of common stock under employee stock purchase plan 4,223 3,615 2,854
Payments for contingent consideration arrangements (403) — (537)
Distributions to noncontrolling interests. (10,250) (4,750} (1,300)
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation 1,663 8,264 4,624
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activitics (149,473) (229,950) 167,031

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (2,610) (2,796) 832




Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 54,775 {1,757 (165,490)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 432,056 439,813 603,303
Cash and cash egquivalents at-end of period % 486,831 § 432,056 § 439,813

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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EMCOR Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
For The Years Ended December 31,
(In thousands)

EMCOR Group, Inc. Stockholders
Aceumulated other

Common Capital comprehensive (loss) Retained Treasury Noncontrolling
Total stock surplus income @ earnings stock interests
Balance, December 31, 2012 5 LIs717% % 680 3416104 % (81,040 §1,022,23% 5 (11,903) 3 11,099
Net income including noncontrolling interests 127,354 —_ — — 123,752 — 3,562
Other comprehensive income 15,263 — — 15,263 — — —
Common steck issued under share-based
compensation plans @ 10,410 3 9,094 — — 1,313 —
Tax withholding for common stock issued
under share-based compensation plans (927) — (927) — — — —
Common steck issued under employee stock
purchase plan 2,854 — 2,854 —_ —_ —_ —
Common stock dividends (12,080) — 78 — (12,158) — —
Repurchase of common stock (26.070) (73 (26,063) — — — —
Distribulions to noucontrolling interests (1,300} — — —_ —_ —_ {1,300)
Share-based compensation expense 6,943 — 6,943 — —_ — —
Balance, December 31, 2013 5 1479626 3 676 §408,083 § (65,777) $1,133873 § (10,5%0) S 13,361
Net income including noncontrolling interests 173,427 — — — 168,664 — 4,763
Other cemprehensive loss (17,420} — — (17,420) — — —
Common stock issued under share-based
compensation plans @ 15,570 8 15,274 —_ _ 288 —
Tax withholding for common stock issued
under share-based compensation plans (1,481) — (1,481) — — — —
Common stock issued under employee stock
purchase plan 3,615 — 3,615 — — — —
Common stock dividends (21,293) — 253 — (21,546} — -—
Repurchase of common stock (206,028) (48)  (205,980) —— — — s
Distributions to noncontrelling interests (4,750) —_ —_ — — — (4,750)
Share-based compensation expense 8,121 — §,121 — — - —_
Balance, December 31, 2014 5 1425387 % 636 §227.885 % {83,197 §1,280,991 % (10302) 8 13,374
Net income including noncontrolling interests 172,507 — — — 172,286 —_ 221
Other comprehensive income 6,244 — — 6,244 — — _
Commen stock issued under share-based
compensation plans @ 5,433 5 5,428 — - — —
Tax withholding for commen stock issued
under share-based compensation plans {3,866) — (3,866) — — — —
Common stock issued under employee stock
purchase plan 4,223 — 4,223 — — — —
Commeon stock dividends (20,093) — 202 — (20,297) — —
Repurchase of common stock {112,328} (24) (112,304) — — — —
Distributions to noncontrolling interests (10,250) — — — — — (10,250}
Share-based compensation expense 8,801 — 2,801 -_ — — —
Balance, December 31, 2015 3 1,480,056 § 617  $130,36% % (16,953  $1,432980 § (10302) § 3,345

(1) As of December 31, 2015, represents cumulative foreign currency translation and post retivement liability adjustments of $3.5 million and $(80.5) million, respectively. As of
December 31, 2014, reprosents cumulative foreign currency translation and post rotitement Hability adjustments of $4.1 million and $(87.3) million, respectively. As of
Digcember 31, 2013, represents cumulative foreign currency translation and post retirement liability adjustments of $5.1 million and $(70.9) million, respectively.

(2) Includes the tox benefit associated with sharo-based componsation of $1.6 million in 20135, $8.6 million in 2014 and $5.2 million in 2013.

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part ofthese statements,
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EMCOR Group, Inc, and Subsidiaries
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1- NATURE OF OPERATIONS

References to the “Company,” “EMCOR,” “we,” “us,” “our” and similar words refer to EMCOR Group, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiarics unless the
context indicates otherwise,

We are one of the largest electrical and mechanical construction and facilities services firms in the United States. In addition, we provide a number of
building services and industrial services, We specialize principally in providing construction setrvices relating to electrical and mechanical systems in all
types of non-residential and certain residential facilities and in providing various services relating to the operation, maintenance and management of
facilities, including refineries and petrochemical plants.

NOTE 2~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consclidation

The censolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its majority-owned subsidiaries and joint ventures. Significant
intercompany accounts and fransactions have been eliminated. All investments over which we exercise significant influence, but de not control (& 20% to
50% ownership interest), are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Additionally, we participate in a joint venture with another company, and
we have consolidaied this joint veniure as we have determined that through our participation we have a variable interest and are the primary beneficiary as
delined by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standard Cedification (“*ASC”) Topic 810, “Consolidation”.

For joint ventures that have been accounted forusing the consolidation method of accounting, noncontrelling interest represents the allocation of eamings
to our joint venture parinets who either have a minority-ownership interest in the joint venture or are not at risk for the majority of losses of the joint venture,

The results of operations of companics acquired have been included in the results of operations fiom the date of the respective acquisition.
Principles of Preparation

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, requires us to
make estimates and assumpticns that affeci the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could materially differ from those estimates.

During the third quarter of 2014, we ceased construction opetations in the United Kingdom. The resulis of the construction operations of our United
Kingdom segment for all pericds are presented as discontinued operations. The segment formally named the United Kingdom constmction and building
services segment has been renamed the United Kingdom building scrvices segment.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues fiom long-term construction contracts are recognized on the percentage-of-completion method in accordance with ASC Topic 605-35, “Revenue
Recognition-Construction-Type and Production-Type Contracts”, Percentage-of-completion is measured principally by the percentage of costs incurred to
date for each contract to the estimated total costs for such contract at completion. Certain of our electrical contracting business unils measure percentage-of-
completion by the percentage of labor costs incurred to date for each contract to the estimated total labor costs for such contract. Pre-contract costs from our
construction projects are generally expensed as incurred. Revenues from the performance of services for maintenance, repair and retrofit work are recognized
consistent with the performance of the services, which are generally on a pro-rata bagis over the life of the contractual amangement. Expenses related to all
services arrangements are recognized as incurred, Revenues related to the engineering, manufacturing and repairing of shell and tube heat exchangers are
recognized when the product is shipped and all other revenue recognition criteria have been met. Costs related to this work are included in inventory until
the product is shipped. In the case of customer change orders for uncompleted long-term construction contracts, estimated recoveries are included for work
performed in forecasting ultimate profitability on certain contracts, Due to uncertainties inherent in the estimation process, it is possible that completion
costs, including those arising from contract penalty provisions and final contract settlements, will be revised in the near-term, Such revisions o costs and
income are recognized in the period in which the revisions are determined. Provisions for the entirety of estimated losses on uncompleted contracts are made
in the period in which such losses are determined. There were no significant fosses recognized in 2015 and 2014,
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - {Continned)

Costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts

Costs and estimated eamings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts arise in the consolidated balance sheets when revenues have been recognized
but the amounts cannot be billed under the terms of the contracts. Such amounts are recoverable from customers upon various measures of performance,
including achievement of certain milestones, completion of specified units, or completion of a contract. Also included in costs and estimated earmnings on
uncompleted contracts are amounts we seek or will seek to collect from customers or others for errors or changes in contract specifications or design, contract
chanpe orders in dispute or unapproved as to both scope and/or price or other customer-related causes of unanticipated additional contract costs (claims and
unappreved change orders). Such amounts are recorded at estimated net realizable value when realization is probable and can be reasonably estimated, No
profit is recognized on construction costs incurred in connection with claim amounts. Claims and unapproved change orders made by us invelve negotiation
and, in certain cases, litigation, In the event litigation costs are incutred by us in connection with claims or unapproved change ordets, such litigation costs
are expensed as incurred, although we may seek to recover these costs. We believe that we have established legal bases for pursuing recovery of our recorded
unapproved change orders and claims, and it is management’s intention to pursue and litigate such claims, if necessary, until a determination or settlement is
reached. Unapproved change orders and claims also involve the use of estimates, and it is reasonably possible that revisions to the estimated recoverable
amounts of recorded claims and unappreved change orders may be made in the near term, If we do not successfully resolve these matters, a net expense
(recorded as a teduction in revenucs) may be required, in addition to amounts that may have been previously provided for. We rocord the profit associated
with the settlement of claims upon receipt of final payment. During 2015, we recognized revenues of §12.1 million as a result of the settlement of a claim
within our United States mechanical construction and facilities services segment, which represents the recovery of cost on a project in which we incurred
significant losses in a prior year There were no significant settlements or payment of claims in 2014, Claims against us are recognized when a loss is
considered probable and amounts are reasonably determinable.

Costs and estimated earnings on uncempleted contracts and related amounts billed as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows (in thousands):

2015 2014
Costs incumred on uncompleted contracts $ 7,582,108 % 7,620,522
Estimated earnings, thereon 862,987 808,549
8,445.095 8,429,071
Less: billings to date 8,756,596 8,694,425

$ (G11,501) § (265,354)

Such amounts were inciuded in the accempanying Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2015 and 2014 under the following captions (in
thousands):

2015 2014
Costs and estimated eamings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts 3 117,734  § 103,201
Billings in excess of costs and estimated eamings on uncompleted gontracts {429,235) {368,555)

$ (311,501) § (265,354)

As ofDecember 31, 2015 and 2014, costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts included unbilled revenues for
unapproved change orders of approximately $18.9 million and $18.8 million, respectively, and claims of approximately $0.9 million and $3.0 million,
respectively. Tn addition, accounts receivable as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 included claims of approximately $0.3 million and $2.3 million,
respectively. There are contractually billed amounts and retention related to contracts with unapproved change orders and claims of $52.0 millicn and $54.0
million as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. For contracts in claim status, contractually billed amounts will generally not be paid by the
customer to us until final resolution of related claims.

Classification of Contract Amounts

In accordance with industry practice, we classify as current all assets and liabilities relating to the performance of long-term contracts. The term of our
contracts ranges from one month to four years and, accordingly, collection or payment of amounts relating to these contracis may extend beyond one year
Accounts receivable at December 31, 2015 and 2014 included $189.2 millien and $177.8 million, respectively, of retainage bilied under terms of our
contracts. We estimate thal approximately 85% ol
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (Continued)

this retainage will be collected during 2616. Accounts payable at December 31, 2015 and 2014 included $34.6 million and $35.7 million, respectively, of
retainage withheld under tenms of the contracts. We estimate that approximately $0% ofthis retainage will be paid during 2016.

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated financial statements, we consider all highly liquid instruments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents, We maintain a centralized cash management system wheteby our excess cash balances ate invested in high quality, short-term money market
instruments, which arc considered cash cquivalents. We have cash balances in certain of our domestic bank accounts that exceed federally insured limits.

dllowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and de not bear interest. The Company maintains an allewance for doubiful accounts, This
allowance is based upon the best estimate of the probable losses in existing accounts receivable. The Company determines the allowances based upon
individual accounts when information indicates the customers may have an inability to meet their linancial obligations, as well as historical cellection and
write-off experience. These amounts are re-evaluated and adjusted on a regular basis as additional information is received. Actual write-offs are charged
against the allowance when collection efforts have been unsuccessful. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, our ascounts receivable of $1,359.9 million and
$1,234.2 million, respectively, included allowances for doubtful accounts of $11.2 millien and $10.4 million, respectively. The provision for doubtful
accounts during 2015, 2014 and 2013 amounted to approximately $2.9 million, $2.9 million and $3.5 million, respectively.

Inventories
Inventorles are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined principally using the average cost method.
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation, including amortization of assets under capital leases, is recarded principally using the
straight-line method over estimated useful lives of 3 to 10 years for machinery and equipment, 3 to 7 years for vehicles, furniture and fixtutes and computer
hardware/software and 25 years for buildings. Leaschold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the remaining life of the lease term or the expected
service life of the improvement.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be fully recoverable. In performing this review for recoverability, property, plant and equipment is assessed fot possible impairment by comparing their
carrying values to their undiscounted net pre-tax cash flows expected to result from the use of the assot. Impaired assots are written down to their fair values,
generally determined based on their estimated future discounted cash flows, Based on the results of cur testing for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014
and 2013, no impairment of property, plant and equipment was recognized.

Goodwill and ldentifiable Intangible Assets

Goodwill and cther identiflable intangible assets with indefinite lives that are not being amoertized, such as trade names, are tested at least annually for
impairment (which we test each October 1, absent any impairment indicators) and are written down if impaired. Identifiable intangible assets with finite lives
are amortized over their useful lives and are reviewed for impairment whenever facts and circumstances indicate that their camrying values may not be filly
recoverable, See Note 8 - Goodwill and Identifiable Intangible Assets of the notes to consolidated financial statements for additional information.

Insurance Liabilities

Qur insurance liabilitics aroc determined actuarially based on claims filed and an estimate of claims incuired but not yet reported, At December3 11,2015 and
2014, the estimated cwrent portion of undiscounted insurance liabilities 0f$29.9 millien and $28.8 million, respectively, were included in “Other accrued
expenses and liabilities™ in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. The estimated non-current portion of the undiscounted insurance liabilities
included in “Other long-term cbligations™ at December 31,2015 and 2014 were $114.3 million and $106.3 million, respectively,
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Foreign Operations

The financial statements and transactions of our foreign subsidiaries are maintained in their functional cumrency and translated into U.S. dellars in
accordance with ASC Topic 830, “Foreign Cuirency Matters”. Translation adjustments have been recorded as “Accumulated other comprehensive loss”, a
separate component of “Equity”,

Income Tuxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with the provisions of ASC Topic 740, “Income Taxes” (“ASC 740™). ASC 740 requires an asset and liability
approach which requires the recognition of deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of
temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce
deferred income tax assets when it is more likely than not that a tax benefit will not be realized.

We account for uncertain tax positions in accordance with the provisions of ASC 740. We recognize accruals of interest related to unrecognized tax
benefits as a component of the income tax provision.

Valuation of Share-Based Compensation Plaus

We have various types of share-based compensation plans and programs, which arc administered by our Board of Directors or its Compensation and
Personnel Committee, See Note 13 - Share-Based Compensation Plans of the notes to consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding
the share-based compensation plans and programs,

We account for share-based payments in accordance with the provisions of ASC Topic 718, “Compensation-Stock Compensation” (*ASC 7187), ASC 718
requires that all share-based payments issued to acquire goods or services, including grants of employee stock options, be recognized in the statement of
operations based on their fair values, net of estimated forfeitures. ASC 718 requires ferfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in
subsequent periods if actual forfeitures diffor from those estimates, Compensation expense related fo share-based awards is recognhized over the requisite
service period, which is generally the vesting period. For shares subject to graded vesting, our policy is to apply the straight-line methed in recognizing
compensation expense, ASC 718 rcquires the benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation expense to be reported as a financing cash
inflow, rather than as an operating cash inflow in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. This requirement reduces net operating cash flows and
increases net financing cash flows.

New Aecounting Pronouncements

In Novembet 2015, an accounting proncuncement was issued by the FASB te simplify the presentation of deferred income taxes within the balance sheet.
This pronounccment eliminates the requirement that deferred tax assets and liabilities are presented as cutrent or noncurrent based on the nature of'the
undetlying assets and liabilities. Instead, the pronouncement requires all deferred tax assets and liabilities, including valuation allowances, be classified as
noncurrent. This pronouncement is effective for fscal years beginning after December 15, 2016, with carly adoption permitted, We intend to adopt this
pronouncement on January 1, 2017, and the adoption will not have a material impact on our financial position and/or results of operations.

In September 2015, an accounting pronouncement was issued by the FASB which eliminates the requirement that an acquirer in a business combination
account for measurement-period adjustments retrospectively. Instead, an acquirer will recognize a measurement-period adjustment during the period in which
it determines the amount of the adjustment. This pronouncement is effective for fiscal vears beginning after December 15, 2015, with =arly adoption
permitted. We intend to adopt this pronouncement on January 1, 2016, and the adoption will not have a material impact on our financial position and/or
results of operations,

In April 2015, an accounting pronouncement was issued by the FASB to update the guidance related to the presentation of debt issuance costs. This
guidance requires debt issuance costs, related to a recognized debt liability, be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the camrying amount
of the related debt liability rather than being presented as an asset. This pronouncement is effective retrospectively for fiscal years beginning after December
15,2015, with eatly adoption permiited. We intend to adopt this prenouncement on January 1,2016, and the adoption will not have a matetial impact on our
financial position and/or results ofeperations.

On January 1, 2015, we adopted the accounting pronouncement issued by the FASB updating existing guidance on discontinued operations. This
guidance raises the threshold for a disposal to qualify as a discontinued operation and requires rew disclosures of both discontinued operations and certain
other disposals that do not meoct the definition of 2 discontinued operation. This
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pronouncement is aimed at reducing the frequeney of disposals reported as discontinued operations by focusing on strategic shifts that have or will have a
major effect on an entity’s operations and financial results. We will consider this guidance in confunction with future disposals, ifany,

In May 2014, an accounting pronouncement was issued by the FASB to clarify existing guidance on revenue recognition. This guidance includes the
tequired steps to achieve the core principle that a company should recognize revenue when it transfers premised goods or services to custotners in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange (or those goods or services, This pronouncement is effective for fiscal
years and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2017, with early adoption permitted. The guidance permits the use of one of two retrospective
transition methods. We have not yet sclected a transition method nor have we determined the effect that the adoption of the proncuncement may have on our
financial position and/or results of operations.

© NOTE 3 - ACQUISITIONS OF BUSINESSES

On October 19, 2015, October 13, 2015 and June 1, 2015, we acquired three companies, each for an immaterial amount. Two of the companies acquired
ptimarily provide mechanical construction services, and their results of operations have been ineluded in our United States mechanical construction and
facilities services segment, The results of operations for the other company acquired have been included in our United States building services segment, The
purchase price for the acquisition of these businesses is subject to finalization based on certain contingencies provided for in the purchase agreement. The
acquisition of these businesses was accounted for by the acquisition method, and the ptices paid for them have been allocated to their respective assets and
liabilities, based upon the estimated fair values of their assets and liabilitics at the dates of their respective acquisitions.

On July 29, 2013, we completed the acquisition of RepconStricktand, Inc, (“RSI™). This acquisition expands and strengthens our service offetings to new
and existing customers and enhances our position within the industrial services and energy market sectors, Under the terms of the transaction, we acquired
[00% of RSI's stock for total consideration of $463.6 million, The acquisition was funded with cash on hand and $250.0 million from borrowings under our
tevolving credit facility. This acquisition was accounted for using the acquisition meothod of accounting. We acquired working capital of $35.5 million and
other net liabilities of$67.1 million, and have ascribed $267.8 million to geodwill and $227.4 million to identifiable intangible assets in connection with
the acquisition of RSI, which has been included in our United States industral services segment. We expect that $49.0 million of acquired goodwill will be
deductible for tax purposcs.

On December 2, 2013 and May 31, 2013, we acquired two companies, ¢ach for an immaterial amount. These companics primarily provide mechanical
construction services and have been included in our United States mechanical construction and facilities services segment. The purchase price for the
acquisition of these businesses was finalized with an insignificant impact. The acquisition of these businesses was accounted for by the acquisition method,
and the prices paid for them have been allocated to their respective assets and liabilities, based upon the estimated fair values of their respective assets and
liabilities at the dates of their respective acquisitions. We believe thesc businesses further expand our service capabilities into new geographical and/or
technical ateas.

During the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2013, we recorded net reversals of $0.5 million and $6.8 million, respectively, of liabilities
resulting in non-cash income attributable to contingent consideration arrangements relating to prior acquisitions. During the year ended December31,2014,
we recorded an increase of §0.6 million of liabilities resulting in non-cash expense attributable to contingent consideration arrangements relating to prior
acquisitions.
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NOTE 4 - BDISPOSITION OF ASSETS

In January 2014, we sold a subsidiary reported in cur United States building services segment. Proceeds from the sale totaled approximately $1.1 million,
Included in net income for the year ended December 31, 2014 was a loss of $0,6 million from this sale, which is classified as a component of “Selling, general
and administrative expenses” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

On July 22, 2014, we sold a building and land cwned by cne of our subsidiaries reported in the United States mechanical construction and facilities
services segment. We recognized a gain of approximately $11.7 million on this transaction in the third quarter of 2014, which has been classified as a “Gain
on sale of building™ in the Consolidated Statements of Operations,

Due to a historical pattemn of losses in the construction epetations of our United Kingdom segment and our negative assessment of construction matket
conditions in the United Kingdom for the foreseeable future, we announced during the quarter ended June 30, 2013 our decision to withdraw from the
construction market in the United Kingdom. During the third quatter of 2014, we ceased construction operations in the United Kingdom. The results of the
construction operations of our United Kingdom segment for all periods are presented in owr Consolidated Financial Statements as discontinued operations,

The resulis of the discontinued operation are as follows (in thousands):

For the twelve months ended December 34,

2015 2014 2013
Revenues b 3823 § 19,297 § 83,631
Loss from discontinued operation, net of income taxes $ ©0 3 (4,690) § {23,069)
Diluted loss per share from discontinued operation $ 000y § (0.07) % {0.34)

Included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 arc the following major classes of assets and liabilities
associated with the discontinued operation (in thousands);

Deeember 31, December 31,
2015 2014

Assets of discontinued operation:

Current assets $ 2,525 % 6,265
Non-current assets 3 — 3 278
Liabilities of discontinued operation:

Current liabilities $ 4407 3% 10,743
Non-current liabilities $ — % 94

At December 31, 20135, the assets and liabilities of the discontinued operation consisted of accounts receivable, contract retentions and contract warranty
obligations that are expected to be collected or fulfilled in the ordinary course of business. Additionally at December 31, 2015, there remained $0.5 millien
of obligations related to employee severance and the termination of leased fecilities, which is expected to be paid during the first halfof2016. The settlement
of the remaining asscts and liabilities may result in additional income and/or expenses. Such income and/or expenses are expected to be immaterial and will
be reflected as an additional component of “Loss from discontinued eperation” as incurred.
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NOTE 5 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following tables summearize our calculation of Basic and Diluted Eamings (Loss) per Common Share (“EPS™) for the years ended December 31, 2015,
2014 and 2013 (in thousands, cxcept share and per share data):

2015 2014 2013
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations attributable to EMCOR Group, Inc. common stackholders 3 172,346 § 173,354 % 146,861
Loss from discontinued operation, net of income taxes (60) (4,690) (23,069)
Net income atiributable to EMCOR Group, Inc. commeon stockholders $ 172,286 % 168,664 § 123,792
Denominator;
Weighted average shares outstanding used to compute basic earnings (loss) per common share 62,789,120 66,331,886 67,086,299
Effect of dilutive securities—Share-based awards 518,392 730,623 990,542
Shares used to compute diluted earnings {loss) per common share 63,307,512 67,062,509 68,076,841
Basic eamings (loss) per common sharc:
From continuing operations atfributable to EMCOR Group, In¢. common stockholders % 274 % 261 % 219 -
From discontinued operation {0.00) 0.07) (0.34)
Net income attributable to EMCOR Group, Inc. common stockhelders 5 274 % 254 % 1.85
Diluted camings (loss) per common share:
From continuing operations attributable to EMCOR Group, Inc. common stockholders $ 272 % 259 % 2.16
From discentinued operation {0.00} (0.07) 0.34)
Net income attributable to EMCOR Group, Inc. common stockholders % 272 3 252 % 1.82

There were no anti-dilutive awards for the years ended December31,2015,2014 and 2013.
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Inventories as of December 31,2015 and 2014 consist of the following amounts (in thousands):

2315 2014
Raw materials and construction materials 3 23239 § 23,330
Work in process 14,306 23,524
$ 37,545 § 46,854

NOTE. 7 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets consisted of the following amounts as of December 31, 2015 and 2014
(in thousands):

2015 2014

Machinery and equipment 3 123,211 8 120,528
Vehicles 51,673 45,036
Fumiture and fixtures 20,730 20,693
Computer hardware/software 05,993 89,638
Land, buildings and leasehold improvements 88,877 81,206
Construction in progress 5,688 6,926
386,172 364,027

Accumulated depreciation and amortization (264,154} (241,849)
3 122018 § 122,178

Depreciation and amortization expense related to property, plant and equipment, including capitat leases, was $36.3 million, $36.5 million and §36.3
million for the years ended December 31,2015, 20114 and 2013, respectively,

NOTE 8 - GOODWILL AND IDENTIFIABLE INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill at December 31, 2015 and 2014 was approximately $843.2 million and $834.1 million, respectively, and reflects the excess of cost over fair
market value of net identifiable assets of companies acquired. Goodwill attributable to companies acquired in 2015 has been valued at $9.1 million. No
companies were acquired in 2014, ASC Topic 805, “Business Combinations” (“ASC 8057) requires that all business combinations be accounted for using the
acquisition method and that certain identifiable intangible assets acquired in & business combination be recognized as assels apart from goodwill. ASC Topic
350, “Intangibles-Goodwill and Other” (“ASC 350™) requires goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets with indefinite useful lives not be amortized,
such as trade names, but instead tested at least annually for inpairment (which we test cach October 1, absent any impairment indicators) and be written down
if impaired, ASC 350 requires that goodwill be allocated to its respective reporting unit and that identifiable intangible assets with finite lives be amertized
over their useful lives, As of December 31, 2015, approximately 45.6% of our goodwill related to our United States industrial services segment,
approximately 27.1% of our goodwill related to our United States building services segment, approximately 26.8% related to our United States mechanical
construction and facilities services segment and approximately ¢.5% related to our United States electrical construction and facilities services segment,

We test for impairment of goodwill at the reporting unit level. Cur reporting units are consistent with the reportable segments identified in Note 17,
“Segment Information”, of the notes to consolidated financial statements. In assessing whether our goodwill is impaired, we utilize the two-step process as
prescribed by ASC 350. The first step of'this test compares the fair value of the reperting unit, determined based upon discounted estimated future cash flows,
to the carrying amount, including goodwili, If the fair value exceeds the carrying amount, no further analysis is required and no impairment loss is
recognized. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds the fair value, the goodwill of the reporting unit is potentially impaired and step two of the
goodwill impairment test would need to be performed to measure the amount of an impairtent loss, ifany. In the second step, the impairment is computed by
comparing the implied fair valuc of the teporting unit's goodwill with the carrying amount of the goodwill. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s
goodwill is greater than the implied fair value ef its goodwill, an impairment 1oss in the amount of the excess is recognized and charged to operations. The
weighted average cost of capital used in cur annual testing for
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impairment as of October 1, 2015 was 11.1%, 11.1% and 11.0% for our domestic construction segments, our United States building services segment and our
United States industrial services segment, respectively, The perpetual growth rate used for our annual testing was 2.7% for all of our domestic segments,
Unfavorable changes in these key assumptions may affoct future testing results and cause us to fail step one of the goodwill impairment testing process. For
example, keeping all other assumptions constant, a 50 basis point increase in the weighted average costs of capital would cause the estimated fair value of
our United Stated industrial services segtment to approach its camying value. A 50 basis point increase in the weighted average costs of capital would not
significantly reduce the excess of the estimated fair value compared to the carrying value for any of our other domestic segments. In addition, keeping all
other assumptions constant, a 5¢ basis point reduction in the petpetual growth rate would not significantly reduce the excess of the estimated fair value
compared to the carrying value for any of our domestic segments. For the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, no impairment of our goodwil
was recognized,

We also test for the impairment of trade names that are not subject to amortization by calculating the fair value of such trade names using the “relief from
royalty payments” methedology. This approach involves two steps: {a) estimating reasoniable royalty rates for cach trade name and (b) applying these royalty
rates to a net revenue stream and discounting the resulting cash Hows to determine fair value. This fair value is then compared with the carrying value of each
trade name, If the canying amount of the trade name is greater than the implied fair value of the trade name, an impairment in the amount of the excess is
recognized and charged to operations. For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2013, no impairment of our trade names was recognized. The annual
impairment review of our trade names for the year ended December 31, 2014 resulted in a §1.5 million non-cash impairment charge as a result of a change in
the fair valug of subsidiary trade names associated with certain ptior acquisitions reported within our United States mechanical construction and facilities
scrvices segment and our United States building services segment.

In addition, we review for the impairment of other identifiable intangible assets that are being amortized whenever facts and circumstances indicate that
their carrying values may not be fully recoverable. This test compares their carrying values to the undiscounted pre-tax cash flows expected to result from the
use of the assets. [fthe assets are impaired, the assets are written down to their fair values, generally determined based on their future discounted cash flows,
For the years ended December 31,2015, 2014 and 2013, no impairment of our other identifiable intangible agsets was recognized.

Our development of the present value of future cash low projections used in impairment testing is based upon assumptions and estimates by management
from a review of cur opetating results, business plans, anticipated growth rates and marging and weighted avernge cost of capital, among others. Those
assumptions and estimates can change in filture periods, and other factors used in assessing fair value are outside the contrel of management, such as interest
rates. There can be no assurancces that our estimates and assumptions made for purposcs of our goodwill and identifiable intangible assct impainment testing
will prove to be accurate predictions of the future. If our assumptions regarding futute business performance plans or anticipated growth rates and/or margins
are not achieved, or there is a rise in interest rates, we may be required to record goodwill and/or identifiable intangible asset impairment charges in future
periods. It is not possible at this time to determine if any such [uture impairment charge would result or, i it does, whether such a charge would be material,

The changes in the cartying amount of goodwill by reportable segments duting the vears ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows (in
thousands):

United States United States
electrieal mechanical
construction construction United States United States
and facilities and [acilities building Industrial
services segment services segment services segment services segment Total
Balance at December 31,2013 3 3,823 % 217,255 3§ 229204 % 384,543 § 834,825
Acquisitions, sales and purchase price
adjustments — — {819} 96 {723)
Balance at December 31, 2014 3,823 217,255 228,385 384,639 834,102
Acquisitions, sales and purchase price
adjustments — R816 252 — 9,068
Balance at December 31,2005 3 3823 § 226,071 §% 228,637 % 384,639 § 843,170

The aggregate goodwill balance as of December 31, 2013 included $210.6 million of accumulated impairment charges, which were comprised 0£'$139.5
million within the United States building services segment and $71.1 million within the United States industrial services segment.
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Identifiable intangible asscts as of Decembet 31, 2015 and 2014 consist of the following (in thousands):

Contract backlog

Developed technology/Veador network
Customer relationships
Non-competition agrecments

Trade names (amortized)

Trade names (unamortized)

Total

Contract backlog

Developed technology/Vendor network
Customer relationships
Non-competition agreements

Trade names (amortized)

Trade names (unamortized)

Total

December 31, 2015

Gross Accumulated
Carrying Acenmulated Impairment
Amount Amortization Charge Total
47745 § (47,745) % — 3 —
95,661 (40,482) — 55,179
430,356 (141,695) 4,834) 283,827
10,220 (9,832) — 388
21,248 {(12,410) —_ 8,838
174,039 — (49.437) 124,602
779,269 § (252,164) $ 54,271} § 472,834
Doeember 31, 2014
Gross Accumulated
Carrying Accumulated Impairment
Amount Amortization Charge Total

47,620 $ (47,620) $ —  § —
95,661 (35,347) — 60,314
425873 (112,457 (4,834) 308,582
9,980 (9,330) —_ 050
21,248 (9,515) -— 11,733
170,218 — (49437 120,781
770,600 § (214,269) § (54,271) § 502,060

Identifiable intangible assets attributable to companies acquired in 2015 have been valued at $8.7 million. No companies were acquired in 2014, See Note
3 - Acquisitions of Businesses of the notes to consolidated financial statoments for additional information. The identifiable intangible amounts are amortized
on a straight-line basis. The weighted average amortization periods for the unamortized balances remaining are, in the aggregate, approximately 11 ycars,
which are comprised of the following: 11.5 years for developed technelogy/vendor network, 11 years for customer relationships, 1.5 years for non-

competition agreements and 4 vears for ttade names,

Amortization expense related to Identifiable intangible asgets with finite lives was $37.9 million, $38.0 million and $31.0 million for the years ended
December 31,2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The following table presents the estimated future amortization expense of identifiable intangible assets in

the following years (in thousands)

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
Thereafter
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NOTE ¢-DEBT
Credit Facilities

Until November 25, 2013, we had a revolving credit agreement (the “2011 Credit Agreement™) as amended, which provided for a revolving credit facility
of $750.0 million. The 2011 Credit Agrcement was cffective November 21, 2011, Effective November 25, 2013, we amended and restated the 2011 Credit
Agreement to provide for a $750.0 million revolving credit facility (the “2013 Revolving Credit Facility™) and a $350.0 million term loan (the “Term Loan™)
(collectively referred to as the “2013 Credit Agreement™) expiring November 25, 2018. The proceeds of the Term Loan were used to repay amounts drawn
under the 2011 Credit Agreement. We may increase the 2013 Revolving Credit Facility to $1.05 billion if additional lenders are identified and/or existing
lenders are willing to increase their cument commitments; and we may allocate up to $250.0 millien of available capacity under the 2013 Revolving Credit
Facility to letters of eredit for our account or for the account of our subsidiaries. The 2013 Credit Agreement is guaranteed by most of our direct and indirect
subsidiaries and is secured by substantially all of our assets and most of the asscls of most of our subsidiaries. The 2013 Revolving Credit Facility and the
Term Loan contain varicus covenants providing for, among other things, maintenance of certain financial ratiog and certain limitations on payment of
dividends, cormmon stock repurchases, investinents, acquisitions, indebtedness and capital expenditures. We were in compliance with all such covenants as
of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014. A commitment fec is payable on the average daily unused amount under the 2013 Revolving Credit Facility,
which ranges from 0.20% to 0,30%, based on certain financial tests. The fee was 0.20% ol the unused amount as of December 31, 20135, Borrowings under the
2013 Credit Agreement bear intcrest at (1) a rale which is the prime commercial lending rate announced by Bank of Montreal from time to time {3.50% at
December 31, 2015) plus 0.25% to 0.75%, based on certain financial tests or (2) United States dollar LIBOR (0.42% at December 31, 2015) plus 1.25% to
1.75%, based on certain financial tosts. The intorest rate in effect at December 31, 2015 was 1.67%. Fees for letters of credit issued under the 2013 Revolving
Credit Facility range from 1.25% to 1.75% of the respective face amounts of outstanding letters of credit and arc computed based on certain financial tests.
We capitalized approximately $3.0 million of debt issuance costs associated with the 2013 Credit Agreement. This amount is being amortized overthe life of
the agreement and is included as part of interest expense. We are required to make principal payments on the Term Loan in installments on the last day of
March, June, September and December of each year, commencing with the calendar quarter onded March 31, 2014, in the amount of $4.4 million, with a final
payment of all unpaid principal and interest due and payable on November 25, 2018, As of December 31, 2615 and December 31, 2014, the balance on the
Term Loan was $315.0 million and $332.5 million, respectively, As of December 31,2015 and December 31, 2014, we had approximately $99.0 million and
$95.5 million of letters of credit cutstanding, respectively. There wore no borrowings ocutstanding under the 2013 Revolving Credit Facility as of
December 31,2015 and December 31,2014,

Long-term debt in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets consisted of the following amounts as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 (in thousands):

2015 2014
Tenm Loan, interest payable at varying amounts throngh 2018 5 315,000 % 332,500
Capitalized Lease Obligations, at weighted average interest rales fiom 3.0% to 5.8% payable in varying amounts
through 2020 3,869 2,883
Other, payable through 2019 44 37
318,913 335,440
Less: current maturities 18,848 19,041

3 300,065 § 316,399

Capitalized Lease Obligations

See Note 15 - Commitments and Contingencies of the notes to consolidated financial statements for additional information,
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NOTE 10 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

We use a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value, The hierarchy, which gives the highest priority
to quoted prices in active markets, is comprised of the following three levels:

Level | — Unadjusted quoted matket prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2 — Obgervable inputs, other than Level 1 inputs. Level 2 inputs would typically include quoted prices in markets that are not active or financial
instruments for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 — Prices or valuations that require inputs that are both significant to the measurement and unobservable.

The following tables provide the assets and liabilities carried at fair vaiue measured on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014
(in thousands):

Assets at Fair Value as of December 31, 2015

Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Cash and cash equivalents {1} $ 486831 8 — % — § 486,831
Restricted cash @ 4,232 — —_ 4,232
Deferred compensation plan assets G) 7,497 — — 7,497
Total $ 498560 § — 3 — 8§ 498,560

Assets at Fair Value as of December 31, 2014

Assef Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Cash and cash equivalents (1 $ 432056 $ — % — § 432,056
Restricted cash @ 6,474 - — 6,474
Deferred compensation plan assets () 3,139 — — 3,139
Total § 441,669 § — 5 — § 441,669

(1) Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of money market funds with original maturity dates of three months or less, which are Level 1 assets. At December 31, 2015 and
2014, we had $151.4 million and $156.7 million, respectively, in money market funds.

{2) Restricted cash is classified as “Prepaid expenses and other” in our consolidated balence sheets.

(3) Deferred compensation plan assets are classified as “Other assets” in our consolidaled balance sheels.

We believe that the camying values of our financial instruments, which include accounts receivable and other financing commitments, approximate their
fair values due primarily to their short-term maturities and low risk of counterparty default. The carrying value of our debt associated with the 2013 Credit
Agpreement approximales its fair value due to the variable rate on such debt.

NOTE 11 - INCOME TAXES

Our2015 income tax provision from continuing operations was $106.3 million compared to $103.5 million for2014 and $82.3 million for2013. The
actual income tax rates on income fiom continuing operations before income taxes, less amounts attributable to noncontrolling interests, for the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, were 38.1%, 37 4% and 35.9%, respectively. The increase in the 2015 income tax provision compared to 2014 was
predominantly due to certain increases in the state tax prevision attributable to the mix of eamings and the effect of a change in the United Kingdom
statutory tax rate on deferred tax assots, The increase in the 2014 income tax provision compared to 2013 was primarily due to the effect of increased income
before income taxes and the 2013 reversal of reserves for previcusly unrecognized income tax benefits.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the amount of unrecognized income tax benefits was $4.8 million and $5.2 million (of which $3.0 millien, if
recognized, would favorably affect our effective income tax rate), respectively,
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NOTE 11 - INCOME TAXES - (Continued)

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, we had an accrual of $0.4 million and $0.3 millien for the payment of interest refated to unrccognized income tax
benefits included in the Consclidated Balance Sheets, respectively. During each of the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, we recognized
appreximately $0.1 million in interest expense related to our unrecognized income tax benefits, In addition, we reversed less than $0.1 million and $0.1
million of acerued inferest expense related to our unrccoghized income tax benefits for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. As of
Decentber 31,2015 and 2614, we had total income tax reserves included in “Other long-term liabilities” o£$5.2 million and $5.5 million, tespectively. We
record interest expense on unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense.

A reconciliation ofthe beginning and end of year unrecognized income tax benefits is as follows (in thousands):

2015 2014
Balance at beginning of year $ 5203 % 3,1t6
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year 611 1,053
Additions based on tax positions related to prior years — 2,816
Reductions for tax positions of prioryears (1,053) (1,162}
Reductions for expired statute of limitations — (620)
Balance at end of year $ 4,761 § 5,203

It is reasonably possible that approximalely $4.1 million of unrecognized income tax benefits at December 31, 2015, primarily telating to uncertain tax
positions attributable to tax return filing positions, may decrease in the next twelve months as a result of estimated settloments with taxing authoritios and the
expiration of applicable statutes of limitations.

We file income tax returns with the Internal Revenue Service and various state, local and foreigh tax agencies. The Company is cutrently under
examination by the Internal Revenue Service and various taxing authorities for the years 2008 through 2014, During the first quarter of 2014, the Internal
Revenue Service finalized its audit of our federal income tax retums for the years 2010 through 2011, We agreed to and paid an assessment, for an immaterial
amount, propesed by the Internal Revenue Service pursuant to such audit.

The income tax provision in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 consisted
ofthe following {in thousands):

2015 2014 2013

Current:
Federal provision ) 94405 % 80,852 § 60,449
State and local provisions 21,320 14,532 2,897
Foreign provision 831 2,396 7,083
116,556 97,780 70,429
Deferred (10,300) 5,748 11,857
$ 106,256 §$ 103,528 § 82,286
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NOTE 11 -INCOME TAXES ~ (Continued)

Factors accounting for the variation from U8, statutory income tax rates from continuing operations for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and
2013 were as follows (in thousands):

2015 2014 2013

Federal income taxes at the statutory rate $ 97,588 % 98,576 % 81,448
MNoncontrolling inferests 7 (1,667) (1,24
State and local income taxes, net of federal tax benefits 12,590 9,944 9,446
State tax reserves 62 (38) (6,529)
Permanent differences 3,096 2,961 3,226
Domestic manufacturing deduction (6,604) (5,008) 4,778)
Foreign income taxes (including UK statutory rate changes) (361) (1,237} 1,183
Federal tax reserves 14 62 263
Other (52) (65) (726)

b 106,256 § 103,528 § 82,286

The components of the net deferred income tax liability are included in “Prepaid expenses and other” of$36.0 million, “Other assets” of $11.3 million, and
“Other long-term obligations” of $167.9 million at December 31, 2013, and the components of net deferred income tax liability are included in “Prepaid
expenses and other® of$29.3 million, “Other assets” of $16.6 million, and “Other long-tern obligations™ of $173.7 million at December 31, 2014 in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The amounts recorded for the years ended Decomber31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows (in thousands):

2015 2014
Deferred income tax assets:
Excess ofamounts expensed for financial statement purposes over amounts deducted for income tax purposes:
Insurance liabilitics 3 58,582 3 54,351
Pension liability 6,255 10,142
Deferred compensation 28,033 17,886
Other {including liabilities and reserves) 28,562 31,828
Total deferred income tax assets 121,432 114,207
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets (805} (2,024)
Net deferred income tax assets 120,627 112,183
DPeferred income tax liabilities:
Costs capitalized for financial statement puiposes and deducted for income tax purposes:
‘Goodwill and identifiable intangible assets (218,715) (216,126}
Other, primarily depreciation of property, plant and equipment (22,510) {23,884}
Total deferred income tax liabilities (241,225) (240,010)
Net deferred income tax liabilities $ (120,598) § (127,827)

We file a consolidated federal income tax return including all of cur ULS. subsidiaries. As of December 31,2015 and 2014, the total valuation allowance on
net deferred income tax assets was approximately $0.8 million and $2.0 million, respectively, related to state and local net operating losses, The reason for
the net decrease in the valuation allowance for 2015 was related to the utilization of state and local net operating loss carryforwards. Although realization is
not assured, we believe it is more likely than not that the deferred income tax asset, net of the valuation allowance discussed above, will be realized. The
amount of the deferred income tax asset considered realizable, however, could be reduced if estimates of future income are reduced,
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NOTE 11 ~-INCOME TAXES - {Continuned)

At Decomber 31, 2015, we had trading losses for United Kingdom income tax purposes of approximately $23.4 million, which have no expiration date.
Such losses are subject to review by the United Kingdom taxing authority. Realization of the deferred income tax asssts is dependent on our generating
sufficient taxable income, We believe that the deferted income tax agsets will be realized through projected future income.

Income before income taxes from continuing opetations for the years ended Docember31,2015,2014 and 2013 consisted of the fellowing (in thousands):

2015 2014 2013
United States $ 264867 % 265,529 % 219,300
Foreign 13,956 16,116 13,409
$ - 278823 % 281,645 % 232,708

As of December 31, 2015, we had undistributed foreign eamings from our United Kingdom subsidiary of approximately $21.9 million for which we have
not recorded a deferred tax liability, as we have provided taxes on a significant portion of such earnings in prior periods and the eamings on which income
taxes have not been provided are indefinitely reinvested. As of December 31,2015, the amount ofcash held in the United Kingdom was approximately $46.5
million which, if repatriated, should not result in any fedetal ot state income taxes. As of December 31, 2015, we had undistributed foreign ¢amings from our
Puerto Rico subsidiaty of approximately $1.4 million for which we have not recorded a deferrad tax liability as such eamings are indefinitely reinvested. As
of December 31, 2015, the amount of cash held in Puerto Rico was approximately $3.0 million which, if repatriated, may result in federal and state income
taxes of approximately $0.5 million.

NOTE 12 - COMMON STOCK
As of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, there were 61,067,868 and 62,981,229 shares of our common stock cutstanding, respectively.

We have paid quarterly dividends since October 25, 2011, In December 2013, our Beard of Directors announced its intention to increase the regular
quarterly dividend to $0.08 per share commencing with the dividend to be paid in the first quatter cf 2014, We currently pay a regular quarterly dividend of
$0.08 per share.

On September 26, 2011, our Board of Directors authorized us to repurchase up to $100.0 million of our outstanding common stock. On December 5,2013,
October 23, 2014 and October 28, 2015, our Board of Directors authorized us to repurchase up to an additional $100.0 million, $250.0 million and $200.0
million of our outstanding common stock, respectively. During 2015, we repurchased approximatefy 2.3 million shares of our eommon stock for
approximately $112.3 million. Since the inception of these repurchase programs through December 31, 2015, we have repurchased 9.9 million shares of our
common stock for approximately $395.9 million. As of December 31, 20135, there remained authorization for us to repurchase approximately $254.1 million
of our shares. The repurchase programs do not obligate the Company to acquire any pacticular amount of common stock and may be suspended,
recommenced ot discontinuoed at any time or from time to time without prior notice, Repurchases may be made from time to time to the extent pemnitted by
securities laws and other legal requirements, including provisions in our credit agreement placing limitations en such repurchases. The repurchase programs
have been and will be funded from our operations.

NOTE 13 - SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

We have an incentive plan under which stock options, stock awards, stock units and other share-based compensation may be granted to officers, non-
employee directors and key employees of the Company. Under the terms of this plan, 3,250,000 shares were authorized and 1,849,266 shares are available for
grant or issuance as of December 31, 2015, Any issuances under this plan are valued at the fair market value of the common stock on the grant date. The
vesting and expiration of any stock option grants and the vesting schedule of any stock awards or stock units are determined by the Compensation and
Personnel Committee of our Board of Directors at the time of the grant. Additionally, we have outstanding stock options that were issued under other plans,
and no further grants may be made under those plans.
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NOTE 13 - SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS - (Continued)

The following table summarizes activity regarding our stock options and awards ot shares and stock units since December 31, 2012:

Stock Optians Resiricted Stock Units
Weighted Welghted
Averape Average
Shares Price Shares Price

Balance, December 31,2012 1,796,377 § 17.15 Balance, December 31,2012 588,907 § 28.56
Granted — —  Granted 192,617 § 36,26
Expired — —  Forfeited (15,298) § 2938
Exercised (485,680 $ 14,55  Vested (155423) § 2177
Balance, December 31,2013 1,310,697 % 18,12 Balance, December 31,2013 610,803 % 31.17
Granted — —  Granted 176418 % 43,06
Expired — —  Forfeited {500y $ 43.76
Exercised (743,923) § 13,52  Vested (152,423) § 3246
Balange, December 31,2014 566,774 $ 24,15 Balance, December 31,2014 634298 § 34.16
Granted — —  Granted 241274 § 4523
Expired (30,000) § 1209  Forfeited (3,587) % 29.56
Exercised (230,048) § 26,71  Vested (266,497) § 32.17
Balance, December31,2015 306,726 % 23.42  Balance, December 31, 2015 605488 % 3947

We recognized $8.8 million, $8.1 million and $6.9 million of compensation expense for stock units awarded to non-employee directors and employecos
purseant to incentive plans for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respeciively. We have $6.6 million of compensation expense, net of
income taxes, which will be recognized over the remaining vesting periods of up to approximately four years, In addition, an aggregate of 93,399 restricted
stock units granted to an employee and our non-employee directors vested as of December 31, 2015, but issuance has been deferred for certain periods up to
five years orupon retircment.

All outstanding stock options were filly vested as of December 31, 2012; therefore, no compensation expense was recognized for the years ended
December31,2015,2014 and 2013.

As a result of stock option exercises, $3.8 million, $6.9 million and $5.2 million of proceeds were received during the years ended December 31, 20135,
2014 and 2013, respectively, The income tax benefit detived in 2015,2014 and 2013 as a result of such exercises and share-based compensation was $1.6
million, $8.6 millien and $5.2 million, respectively, of which $1.7 million, $8.3 million and $4.6 million, respectively, represented cxcess tax benefits, The
total intrinsic value of options (the amounts by which the stock price exceeded the exercise price of the option on the date of exercise) that were exercised
during 2015,2014 and 2013 was $4.6 million, $23.5 million and $12.5 million, tespectively.

At December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, 306,726 options, 566,774 options and 1,310,697 options were exercisable, respectively. The weighted average
exercise price of cxercisable options at December31,2015,2014 and 2013 was approximatcly $23.42, $24,15 and $18.12, respectively. The total aggregate
intrinsic value of options outstanding and exercisable as of December 31, 2015,2014 and 2013 were approximately $7.6 million, $11.5 million and §31.9
million, respectively.

The following table summarizes information about our steck options as of December 31, 20135:

Stock Options Outstanding and Exercisable

Range of Weighted Average Weighted Average
Exercise Prices Number Remaining Life Exercise Price
$20.42 - $20.54 110,000 1.41 Ycars 32043
$22.52-%24 .48 140,000 3.31 Years §23.92
$27.32-529.26 56,726 0.54 Years $27.96
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NOTE 13 - SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS - (Continued}

We have an employee stock purchase plan. Under the terms of this plan, the maximum number of shares of our common stock that may be purchased is
3,000,000 shares. Generaily, our corporate employees and non-union employees of our United States subsidiaries are eligible to participate in this plan,
Employees covered by collective bargaining agreements generally are not eligible to participate in this plan.

NOTE 14 - RETIREMENT PLANS

Defined Benefit Plans

Our United Kingdom subsidiary has a defined benefit pension plan covering all eligible employees {the “UK Plan™}; however, no individual joining the
company aiter October 31, 2001 may participate in the plan, On May 31, 2010, we curtailed the future accrual of benefits for active employees under this
plan.

We acocount for our UK Plan and other defined benefit plans in accordance with ASC 715, “Compensation-Retirement Benefits” (“ASC 715”). ASC 715
requires that (a) the funded status, which is measured as the difference between the fair value of plan assets and the projected benefit obligations, be recorded
in our balance sheet with a corresponding adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) and (b) gains and losses for the differences between
actuarial assumptions atd actual results, and unrccognized service costs, be recognized through accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), These
ameunts will be subsequently recognized as net periodic pension cost.

The change in benefit obligations and assets of the UK Plan for the years ended December 31,2015 and 2014 consisted of the following components (in
thousands);

2015 2014
Change in pension benefit ebligation
Benefif obligation at beginning of year $ 332,806 § 308,877
Interest cost 11,603 14,027
Actuarial (gain) loss (21,707) 40,906
Benefits paid {9,604) 9,915)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes (17,273) (21,089
Benefit obligation at end of year 295,825 332,800
Change in pension plan asscis
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 282,095 269,811
Actual return on plan assets 569 34,012
Employer contributions 5,631 6,028
Benefits paid {9,604) (9,915)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes (15,136) (17,841)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 263,555 282,095
Funded status at end of year $ (32270) % (50,711)

The actuarial gain in 20135 and actuarial loss in 2014 resulted from fluctuations in corporate bond yields leading to changes in the discount rate
assumptions as disclosed below.

Amounts not yet reflected in net periodic pension cost and included in accumulated other comprehensive loss:

2015 2014
Unrecognized losses $ 88,818 § 102,673

The underfunded status of the UK Plan 0£$32.3 million and $50.7 million at December 31,2015 and 2014, respectively, is included in *Other long-term
obligations” in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. No plan assets are expected to be returned to us during the year ended December 31, 2016,
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NOTE 14 - RETIREMENT PLANS - (Continued)

The weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows;

2015 2014
Discount rate 3.8% 3.6%

The weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic pension cost for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

2015 2014 2013

Discount rate 3.6% 4.6% 43%
Annual rate of return on plan assets 6.3% 6.7% 6.7%

The annual rate of return on plan assets has been determined by modeling possible retums using the actuary’s portfolio return calculator and the fair value
of plan assets. This models the long term expected retums of the various asset classes held in the pottfolio and allows for the additional benefits of holding a

diversified porifolio. For measurement purposes of the liability, the annual rates of inflation of covered pension benefits assumed for each of 2015 and 2014
was 2.0%,

The components of net periodic pension cost of the UK Plan for the years ended December 31,2015, 2014 and 2013 were as follows (in thousands):

2015 2414 2013
Interest cosi $ 11,603 % 14,027 3 12,326
Expected retum on plan assets (16,181) (16,888) {14,369}
Amortization of unrecognized loss 2,526 2,029 2,560
Net periodic pension cost $ (2,052) % (832) §$ s517

Actuarial gains and losses are amortized using a corridor approach whereby cumulative gains and losses in excess of the greater of 10% of the pension
bencfit obligation or the fair value of plan assets are amottized over the average life expectancy of plan participants. The amortization period for 2015 was 27
yeats.

The reclassification adjustment, net of income taxes, for the UK Plan from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic pension cost for the
years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 was approximately $2.0 million, $1.6 million and $2.0 million, respectively, which was classified as a
companent of “Cost of sales” and “Selling, general and administrative expenses” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The estimated uniecognized
loss for the UK Plan that will be amortized [rom accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic pension cost over the next year is approximately
$1.8 million, net of income taxes,

UK Plan Assets

The weighted average asset allocations and weighted average target allocations at December 31,2015 and 2014 were as follows:

Target
Aszet December 31, December 31,
Asset Category Allocation 2015 2014
Equity securities 45.0% 43.3% 43.2%
Debt securities 55.0% 56.3% 56.6%
Cash —% 0.4% 0.2%
Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
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NOTE 14 - RETIREMENT PLANS - (Continued}

Plan assets of our UK Plan are invested in marketable equity and equity like securities through various funds. These funds invest in a diverse range of
investments, trading in the United Kingdon, the United Statcs and other international locations, such as Asia Pacific and other European locations. Debt
scourities arc invested in funds that invest in UK corporate bonds and UK government bonds.

The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy discussed in Note 10 - Fair Valug Measurements, the fair value of assets of the UK
Plan as of December 31, 2615 and 2014 (in thousands):

Assets at Falr Value as of December 31, 2015

Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Equity and equity like investments 3 — 8 114213 % — 3 114,213
Corporate bonds — 114,434 —_ 114,434
Govemment bonds — 34,011 — 34,011
Cash 897 — — 897
Total $ 897 § 262,658 % — 3 263,555

Assets at Fair Valee as of December 31, 2014

Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Bquity and equity like investments 3 — 3 121,739 % — 3 121,739
Corporate bonds — 124,380 — 124,380
Govemment bonds — 35,319 — 35319
Cash 657 — — 657
Total 3 657 % 281438 § — 5 282,095

In regards to the plan assets of our UK Plan, investment amounts have been allocated within the fair value hicrarchy across all three levels. The
characteristics of the assets that sit within each level are summarized as follows:

Level 1-This asset represents cash.
Level 2-These assets are a combination of the following:

{a}  Assets that are not exchange traded but have a unit price that is based on the net asset value of the fund. The unit prices are not quoted but the
underlying assets held by the fund are either;

(i) held in a variety of listed investments

(if) held in UK treasury bonds or corporate bonds with the asset value being based on fixed income streams. Some of the undetlying bonds are also
listed on regulated markets.

It is the value of'the underlying assets that have been used to calculate the unit price ofthe fund.

{b)  Assets that are not exchange traded but have a unit price that is based on the net asset value of the fund, The unit prices are quoted. The underlying
assets within these funds comprise cash or assets that are listed on a regulated market (i.e,, the values are based on observable market data) and it is
these values that are used to calculate the unit price of the fund.

Level 3-Assets that are not exchange traded but have a unit price that is based on the net asset value of the fund. The unit prices are not quoted and are not
available on any market.
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The table below sets forth a summary of changes in the fair value of the UK Plan’s Level 3 assets for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 (in
thousands):

Equity and Equity Like Investments 2015 2014
Start of year balance 3 — 8 5,196

Actual return on plan assets, relating to assets still held at reporting date — —
Purchases, sales and settlements, net — (4.889)
Change due to exchange rate changes — (307

End of year balance 3 — 8 —

The investment policies and strategies for the plan assets are established by the plan trustees (who are independent of the Company) to achieve a
reasonable balance between risk, likely return and administration expense, as well as to maintain funds at a level to meet minimum funding requirements, In
order to ensure that an appropriate investment sirategy is in place, an analysis of the UK Plan’s assets and liabilities is completed periodically.

Cash Flows:
Contributions

Qur United Kingdom subsidiary expects to contribute approximately $5.4 million to its UK Plan in 2016.
Estimated Future Benefit Payments

The following estimated benefit payments are expected to be paid in the following years (in thousands):

Pension

Boenefits
2016 $ 9,509
2017 3 9,869
2018 $ 10,974
2019 $ 11,717
2020 3 11,842
Succeeding five years $ 65,494

The following table shows certain information for the UK Plan where the accumulated benefit obligation is in excess of plan assets as of December 31,
2015 and 2014 (in thousands):

2015 2014
Projected benefit obligation $ 295,825 3% 332,806
Accumulated benefit obligation $ 295,825 % 332,800
Fair value of plan assets $ 263,555 % 282,095

We also sponsor two U.S. defined benefit plans in which participation by new individuals is frozen. The benefit obligation associated with these plans as of
Decomber 31,2015 and 2014 was approximately $7.0 million and $6.7 million, respectively, The estimated fair value of the plan assets as of December 31,
2015 and 2014 was approximately $4.9 million and $5.1 million, respectively. The plan assets are considered Level 1 assets within the fair value hierarchy
and are predominantly invested in cash, equities, and equity and bond funds, The pension liability balances as of December 31,2015 and 2614 are classified
as “Other long-tetm obligations™ in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets, The measurement date for these two plans is December 31 of each year.
The major assumpticns used in the actuarial valuations to determine benefit obligations as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 included discount rates of 4.00%
and 3.80% for 2015 and 4.50% and 4.30% for2014 . Also, included was an expected rate of return of 7.00% for both 2015 and 2014, The reclassification
adjustment, net of income taxes, from accumulated other comprehensive loss inte net periedic pension cost for the years ended December 31, 2015,2014 and
2013 was approximately $0.2 million, $0.2 million and $0.3 million, respectively, which was classified as a component of “Selling, gencral and
administrative expenses” in the Consclidated Statements of Operations. The estimated loss for these plans that will be amortized
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from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic pension cost over the next year is approximately $0.2 million, net of income taxes. The future
estimated benefit payments expected to be paid from the plans for the next ten years is approximately $0.4 million per year.

Multiemployer Plans

We participate in over 200 nultiemployer pension plans (“MEPPs™) that provide retirement benefits to cortain union employees in accordance with various
collective bargaining agreements (“CBAs"™). As one of many participating employers in these MEPPs, we are responsible with the other participating
employers for any plan underfunding. Qur contributions to a particular MEPP are established by the applicable CBAs; however, our required contributions
may increase based on the tunded status of an MEPP and legal requirements of the Pension Protection Act of 2006 (the “PPA™), which requires substantially
underfunded MEPPs to imploment a fanding improvement plan (“FIP"} or a rehabilitation plan (“RP™} to improve their fundcd status. Factors that could
impact the funded status of an MEPP inelude, without limitation, investment performance, changes in the participant demographics, decline in the number of
contributing employers, changes in actuarial assumptions and the utilization of extended amortization provisions,

An FIP or RP requires a particular MEPP to adopt measures to cogreet its underfunding status, These measures may inelude, but ate not limited to: (a) an
increase in our contribution rate as a signatory to the applicable CBA, (b) a reallocation of the contributions alteady being made by participating employers
for vaticus benefits to individuals participating in the MEPP and/or (¢} a reduction in the benefits to be paid to future and/or current retirees. In addition, the
PPA requires that a 5% surcharge be levied on employer contributions for the first year commencing shortly after the dale the employer receives notice that
the MEPP s in critical status and a 10 surcharge on each succeeding yearuntil a CBA is in place with terms and conditions consistent with the RP.

We could also be cbligated to make payments to MEPPs if we either cease to have an obligation to confribute fo the MEPP or significantly reduce our
contributions to the MEPP because we reduce our number of employees who are covered by the relevant MEPP for various reasons, including, but not limited
to, layoffs or closure of a subsidiary assuming the MEPP has unfunded vested benefits, The amount of such payments (known as a complete or partial
withdrawal liability) would equal our proportionate share of the MEPPs' unfunded vested benefits. We believe that certain of the MEPPs in which we
participate may have unfunded vested benefits. Due to uncertainty regarding future factors that could trigger withdrawal liability, as well as the absence of
specific information rogarding the MEPP’s current financial situation, we are unable to determine (a) the amount and timing of any future withdrawal
liability, if any, and (b) whether our participation in these MEPPs could have a material adverse impact on our financial position, results of operations or
liquidity. We did not record any withdrawal liability for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, We recorded a withdrawal liability of approximately
$0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2013.

The following tablg lists all domestic MEPPs to which our contributions exceeded $2.0 million in 2015, Additionally, this table also lists all domestic
MEPPs to which we contributed in 2015 in excess of $0.5 million for MEPPs in the critical status, “red zone” and $1.0 million in the endangered status,
“orange or yellow zones”, as defined by the PPA (in thousands):

PPA Zune Status [0 Contributions Coutributlons greater
EIN/Pensian Plan FIF/RE than 5% of ot plan Expiration

Pension Fund Nuiber 2015 2014 Status 2015 2014 2013 contributions (2 dateof CBA
Plumbers & Pipefitters Jmuary 2016 to
Waticnal Pension Fund 52-6152779 001 Yellow Yellow Taplemented £ 12021 $ 10425 8 12,509 No Auvgust 2019
Sheet Metal Workers April 2016 to
Watlgnal Pension Fund 52-6112463 001 Yellow Yellow Implemented 10,891 8977 5476 No June 2020

February

Netienal Electrical Benefit 20160
Fund 53-0LR1657 001 Green Green N/A 3,512 1.985 7,986 No September 2020
Pension, Hespitalization &
Benefit Pian of the
Electrical Industry- May 2016 to
Peusion Trst Account 13-6123601 001 Green Green NiA 7543 6219 6,189 No January 2013
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PPA Zonc Status (1) Contributiens Contributions greater

EIN/Pension Plan FIF/RP than 5% oftolal plan Expiratlon

Pension Fund Number 25 2014 Status 2015 2014 2013 contributions ) date of CBA
National Automatic
Sprinkler Industry Pension March 2816 to
Fund 52.6034620 001 Red Red Implemented 6,697 6,000 4,226 Ne Jung 2017
Central Pension Fund ofthe
International Union off
Operating Engineers and January 2016 to
Partivipaling Employers 36-6032390001 Green Green N/A 6,465 G518 6,296 Noe November 2019
Rlecirical Contractors
Association of the City of
Chicago Local Union 134,
IBEW Joint Pension Trust May 2016 40 June
of Chicage Pension Plan 2 51-6030753 002 Green Green NiA 5,759 4,051 2412 No 2016
Plumbers Fipefitters &
Mechanical Equipment
Service Local Union 392
Pension Man 31-0655223 001 Red Red Implemented 5,554 4962 4,128 Yes June 2019
Sheet Metal Workers
Pension Plan of Northem June 2014 1o June
Califpmia 51-6115939001 Red Red Implemented 4.85] 3467 3,658 No 2018
U.A. Local 393 Pension June 2016 te June
Trugs Fund Defined Benelit 94-6359772 002 Green Green N/A 4,597 3,585 2311 Yes 2018
Pipefillers Union Local - January 2016
537 Pension Fund 51-603085% 601 Green Green N/A 3,939 2981 3,690 Yes to August 2017
Northern California Pipe Tune 2016 to June
Trades Pension Plan 94-3190386 001 Green Green N/A 3,544 3,270 2,258 Yes 2018
Eighth District Electrical Febraary 2016 to
Penslan Furid 84-6100393 001 Green Green N/A 3418 2,695 3005 Yes May 2018
Southem Califomia IBEW- May 2016 to
NECA Pension Trust Fund 95-6392774 001 Omange Yellow Implemented 2,894 2,776 3,215 Ne November2012
Southern California Fipe June 2016 to
Trades Retirement. Fand 51-6108443 001 Green Green N/A 2,743 2,363 5498 Nao August 2019
Elgetrical Workers Logal June 2016
No. 26 Pengion Trust Fund 52-6117919 001 Green Green N/A 2,620 2,380 2,878 Yes to July 2018
LA, Plumbers Local 24
Pension Fund 22-6042823 §01 Green Green N/A 2,431 1,998 1,330 Yes April 2016
Sheet Melal Workers
Pension Plan of Sonthem
Californin, Arizona & June 2016 to June
Novada 95-6052257 061 Red Red Lmplemented 2310 1824 1,271 No 2020
San Diego Electrical Seplember 2016 to
Pension Plan 95-6101801 001 Red Green Pending 2,109 1378 2,162 Yes May 2020
U.A, Local 38 Defined Junc 2016 lo June
Benefit Pension Plan 94-1285319001 Yellow Yellow Implemented 1,526 1,605 1,522 No 2017
Boilermoker-Blacksmith April 2017 to
Nalional Pension Trusi 43-6168020 001 Yellow Yellow Implemented 1,367 1,117 1828 No September 2013
PMutbing & Pipe Fitting
Local 2 k9 Pension Fund 34-6682376 001 Red Red lmplemented 1,262 1,107 1,142 Yes My 2017
Building Trades United
Pension Trast Fund
Milwaukee and Vicinity 51-6049409 001 Yellew Yellow Tmplemented 11 1,033 o138 No May 2016
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PPA Zone Status 1) Contributions Caontributions greater
EIN/Tension Plan FIP/RP than 5% oftetal plan Expiration

Pensien Fund Number 2015 2014 Status Wis 2084 2813 contributions () daie of CBA
Steamfitters Local Union April 2017 40
No.420 Pension Plan 23-2004424 601 Red Red Tmpleimented 845 862 831 Ma May 2017
U.A. Local 467 Defined Fune 2016 1o June
Benefit Plan 94-2353807 005 Red Red Tmplemented 844 787 538 No 20tE
Plumbers & Pipefittors
Locat 162 Peasion Fund 31-6125999 001 Red Red Implemented G} 814 g8 70 Yes May 2019
Other Multicmployer
Pension Plans 40,395 44,248 48,724 Various
Telal Coniributions $ 147,056 $137,991 $ 141,271

(1) The zone slatus represents the most recent available information for the respective MEPP, which may be 2014 or carlier for the 2015 year and 2013 or earlier for the 2014 year.

(2) This information was cbtained from the respective plans” Form 5500 (“Forms”) for the most current available filing, These dates may not correspond with our fiscal year
contributions, The above noted percentages of contributions are based upon disclosures contained in the plans’ Forms. Those Forms, among other things, disclose the names of
individual participating employers whose annual contributions account for more than 5% of the aggregate annual amount contributed by all participating employers for a plan
year, Accordingly, if the annual contribulion of two or mere of our subsidiaries each accounted for less than 5% of such contributions, but in the aggregale accounted for in
excess of 5% of such cenlribuiions, thal grealer percentage is not available and accordingly is not disclosed.

(3) For these respeclive plans, a funding surcharge was currently in effect for 2015,

The nature and diversity of our business may result in volatility in the amount of our contributions to a particular MEPP for any given period. That is
because, in any given market, we could be working on a significant project and/or projects, which could result in an increase in our direct labor force and a
conesponding increase in our contributions to the MEPD(s) dictated by the applicable CBA. When that particular project(s) finishes and is not replaced, the
number of participants in the MEPP(s) who are employed by us would also docrease, as would our level of contributions to the particular MEPP(s).
Additicnally, the amount of centributions te a particular MEPP could also be affected by the terms of the CBA, which could require at a particular time, an
inerease in the contribution rate and/or surcharges. Our contributions to various MEPPs did not increase as a result of acquisitions made since 2013,

We also participate in two MEPPs that are locatod within the United Kingdom for which we have contributed $0.2 million, $0.2 millien and $0.3 million
forthe years ended December3 1, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The information that we have obtained relating to these plans is not as readily available
and/or as cemparable as the infermation that has been ascertained in the United States. Based upon the most recently available information, one of the plans
is 100% funded, and the other plan is between 65% and less than 80% funded. A recovery plan has been put in place for the plan that is less than 80%
funded, which requires higher contribution amounts to be paid by our UK operations,

Additienally, we contribuie to certain multiemployer plans that provide post retirement benefits such as health and welfare benefits and/or defined
contribution/annuity plans, among others. OQur contributions to these plans approximated $108.1 million, $98.3 million and $93.5 million for the years
ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Our contributions to other post retirement benefit plans did not increase as a result of acquisitions
made since 2013, The amount of contributions to these plans is also subject for the most part to the factors discussed above in conjunction with the MEPPs,

Defined Contribution Plans

We have defined contribution retirement and savings plans that cover eligible employees in the United States. Contributions to these plans are based on a
percentage ofthe employee’s base compensation, The expenses recognized for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 for these plans were $26.5
million, $25.3 million and $22.6 million, respectively. At our discretion, we may make additional supplemental matching contributions to a defined
contribution retirement and savings plan. The expenses recognized related to additional supplemental matching for the years ended December 31, 2015,
2014 and 2013 were $4.8 million, $4.3 million and $4.0 million, respectively.
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Our United Kingdom subsidiaty has defined contribution retirement plans. The expense recognized for the years ended December 31,2015, 2014 and 2013
was $4.0 million, $4.5 million and $4.0 million, respectively.

NOTE 15 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitments

We lease land, buildings and equipment under various leases. The leases frequently include renewal options and escalation clanges and require us to pay
for utilities, taxes, insurance and maintenance expenses,

Future minimum payments, by year and in the aggregate, under capital leases, non-cancelable operating leases and related subleases with initial or
remaining terms of one or more years at December 31, 2015, were as follows {in thousands);

Capital Crperating Sublease
. Leases Leases Income
2016 $ 1459 3 58,918 3 558
2017 837 47,670 257
2018 650 36,637 126
2019 1,093 28,199 63
2020 - 77 21,854 —
Thereafter — 46,283 —
Total minimum lease payments 4116 3 239,561 §$ 1,004
Amounts representing interest 247)
Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 3,869

Rent expense for operating leases and other rental items, including short-term equipment rentals charged to cost of' sales for our construction contracts, for
the years ended December 31, 2015,2014 and 2013 was $122.0 million, $118.4 million and $118.6 million, respectively. Rent expense for the years ended
December 31, 2015,2014 and 2013 was reported net of sublease rental income of $1,2 million, $1.3 million and $1.2 million, respectively,

Contractual Guarantees

We have agreements with our executive officers and certain other key management personnel providing for severance benefits for such employees upon
termination of their employment under certain circumstances.

From time to time in the ordinary course of business, we guarantoe cbligations of our subsidiaries under certain contracts. Generally, we ate liable under
such an arrangement only if our subsidiary fails to perform its obligations under the contract, Historically, we have not incurred any substantial liabilitics asa
consequence of these guarantees,

The terms of our construction contracts frequently require that we obtain from surety companies (“Surety Companies™} and provide to our customers
payment and performance bonds (“Surcty Bonds”) as a conditien te the award of such contracts. The Surety Bonds secure our payment and performance
obligations under such contracts, and we have agreed to indemnify the Surety Companies for amounts, if any, paid by them in respect of Surety Bonds issued
on our behalf. In addition, at the request of labor unions representing certain of our employees, Surety Bonds are sometimes provided to secure obligations
for wages and benefits payable to or for such empleyees, Public sector contracts require Surety Bonds more frequently than private sector contracts, and
accordingly, our bonding requirements typically increase as the amount of public sector work increases. As of December 31, 2015, based on our percentage-
of-completion of our projects covered by Surety Bonds, our aggregate estimated exposure, had there been defaults on all our then existing contractual
obligations, was approximately §1.2 billion. The Surety Bonds are issued by Surcty Companies in retumn for preminms, which vary depending on the size and
type of bond.

We are subject to regulation with respect to the handling of certain materials used in construction, which are clasgsified as hazardous or toxic by federal,

state and local agencies. Our practice is to avoid participation in projects principally involving the remediation or removal of such materials. However, when
remediation is required as part of our contract performance, we believe
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we comply with all applicable regulations goveming the discharge of material into the environment or otherwise relating to the protection of the
environment.

At December 31,2013, we employed approximately 29,000 people, approximately 56% of whom are represented by various uniens pursuant to more than
375 collective bargaining agreements between our individual subsidiaties and local unions. We believe that our employee relations are generally good. Only
two of these collective bargaining agreements are national orregional in scope.

Restructuring expenses were $0.8 million, $1.2 miflion and $0.6 million for 2015,2014 and 2013, respectively. The 2015 restructuting expenses included
$0.9 million of employee severance obligations and a reversal of $0.1 million relating to the termination of leased facilities. The 2014 restructuring expenses
included $0.6 million of employee severance obligations and $0.6 million relating to the termination of leased facilities. The 2013 restructuring expenscs
included $0.5 million of employes severance obligations and $0.1 million relating to the termination of leased facilities. As of December 31,2015,2014 and
2013, the balance of our restructuring related obligations yet to be paid was $¢.1 million, $0.3 million and $0.2 million, respectively. The majority of
obligations outstanding as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 were paid during 2015 and 2014, respectively. The cbligations outstanding as of December 31,
2015 will be paid during the first halfof2016.

The changes in restructuring activity by reportable scgmonts during the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 were as follows (in
thousands);

United States United Stafes
electrieal mgchanical
construction construction United S¢ates
and facilities and facillties building Corporate
services segment services segment services scgment Administration Tatal

Balance at December31,2013 $ 30 $ 164 $ — $ — $ 194
Charges 638 230 — 300 1,168
Payments @13) (368) — (300} {1,081)
Balance at December 31,2014 255 26 — —_ 281
Charges (106) 6 924 — 824
Payments (149) (32) {843) — (1,024}
Balance at December31,2015 3 — 8 — 3 81 3 — 3 gl

A summary of restructuring expenses by repottable segments recognized for the year ended December 31, 2015 was as fellows (in thousands):

United States United States
clectrical mechanical
construction construction United States
and faeilities and facilities building Corporate
services segment services segment services segment Administration Total

Severance 3 — 3 6 % 924 -— 3 930
Leased facilities {106) — — — (106)
Total charges ' 3 (106) § 6% 924 $ 0 — '8 7824

Government Coniracts

As a government contractor, we are subject to U.S, government audits and investigations relating to our operations, fines, penalties and compensatory and
treble damages, and possible suspension or debarment from doing business with the government. Based on cwrently available information, we believe the
outceme of ongoing governtnent disputes and investigations will not have a material impact on our financial position, results of operations or liguidity.

69




Table of Contents

EMCOR Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 15 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - (Centinued)

Legal Matters

One of our subsidiaries was a subcontractor o a mechanical contractor (“Mechanical Contractor™) on a construction project where an explosion oceutred.
An investigation of the matter could not determine who was responsible for the explosion. As a result of the explosion, lawsuits have been commenced
against various parties, but, to date, no lawsuits have been commenced against our subsidiary with respect to personal injury or damage to property as a
consequence of the explosion. However, the Mechanical Contractor has asserted claims, in the context of an arbitration proceeding against cur subsidiary,
afleging that our subsidiary is responsible for a portion of the damages for which the Mechanical Contractor may be liable as a result of: (a) personal injury
suffered by individuals as a result of the explosion and (b) the Mechanical Centractor’s legal fees and associated management costs in defending against any
and all such claims. In the most recent filing with the Arbitrator, the Mechanical Contractor has stated claims against our subsidiary for alleged violations of
the Connecticut and Massachusetts Unfair and Deceptive Trade Practices Acts in the ongoing arbitration proceeding. Further, the general contractor (a8
assignee of the Mechanical Coniractor) on the construction project, and for whom the Mechanical Contractor worked, has alleged that our subsidiary is
responsible for losses asserted by the owner of the project and/or the general contractor because of delays in completion of the project and for damages to the
owner’s property. We believe, and have been advised by counsel, that we have a number of meritorious defenses to all such matters. We believe that the
ultimate outcome of such matters will not have a material adverse effect on cur consolidated financial position, results of operations or liquidity.
Notwithstanding our assessment of the final impact of this matter, we are not able to estimate with any certainly the amount of loss, if any, which would be
associated with an adverse resolution.

One of our subsidiaries, USM, Inc, (*UUSM™), doing business in California provides, among other things, janitorial services to its customers by having those
setvices performed by independent janitorial companies, USM and one of its customers, which owns retail stores (the “Customer™), were co-defendants in a
fedetal clags action lawsuit brought by six employees of USM’s Califomia janitorial subcontractors, The action was commenced on September 5,2013 ina
Superior Court of California and was removed by USM on November 22, 2013 to the United States District Court for the Northem District of California. The
employees alleged in their complaint, among other things, that USM and the Customer, during a period that began before our acquisition of USM, violated a
California statute that prohibits USM fiom entering into a contract with a janitorial subcontractor when it knew or should have known that the contract did
not include funds sufficient to allow the janitorial subcontractor to comply with all local, state and federal laws or regulations goverming the labor or services
to be provided. The employees asserted that the amounts USM paid to its janitorial subcontractors were insufficient to allow those janitorial subcontractors to
meet their obligations regarding, among other things, wages due for all hours their employecs worked, minimum wages, overtime pay and meal and rest
breaks. These etnployees sought to represent not only themselves, but also all other individuals who provided janitorial services at the Customer’s stores in
California during the relevant four-year time period. We do not believe USM or the Customer violated the California statute or that the employees could have
brought the action as a class action on behalt of other employees of janitorial companies with whom USM subcontracted for the provision of janitorial
services to the Customer. The plaintiffs sought a declaratory judgment that USM had violated the California statute, monetary damages, including all unpaid
wages and interest thereon, restitution for unpaid wages, and an award of attorneys’ fees and costs.

USM and its Customer have settled cluims asserted in the class action pursuant to the terms of 2 consent decree approved by the federal judge in the United
States District Court for the Northern District of Califomia on February 16, 2016, which followed a determination by the Court of the consent decree’s
fairness, adequacy and reasonableness, Under the terms of the congent decree, USM will () pay an aggregate of $1.0 million (i) for monetary relief to the
members of the class, (ii) for awards to the class representative plaintiffs, (iii) for Califormia Labor Code Private Attormey General Act payments to the State of
California for an immaterial amount, and (iv) for all costs of notice and administration of the claims process, (b) pay to counsel for the class an aggregate of
$1.3 million, of which $0.2 million has been allocated for their reimbursable costs and litigation expenses and $1.1 million has been allocated for atterneys’
Fees, and {c¢) monitor USM's California subcontractors providing janitorial services to its Customer in accordance with agreed wpon procedures designed
principally to ensure janitorial employees of those subcontractors are paid no less than minimum wage. The settlement amount was accrued for as of
December 31,2014, During 2015, a payment of $1.0 milliocn was made to a third party claims administrator who was holding the funds pending approval by
the Court of the consent decree, and the balance of $1.3 millien was paid in February 2016 after final approval by the Court.

We are involved in scveral other proceedings in which damages and claims have been asserted against us. Other potential claims may exist that have not
yct been asserted against us. We believe that we have a number of valid defenses to such proceedings and claims and intend to vigorously defend ourselves.
We do not believe that any such matters will have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or liquidity. Litigation is subject to
many uncertainties and the outcome of litigation is not predictable with assurance, i is possible that some litigation matters for which reserves have not been
established could be
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decided unfavorably to us, and that any such unfavorable decisions could have a material adverse effect on our financial position, resnlts of eperations or
liquidity.

NOTE 16 - ADDITIONAL CASIH FLOW INFORMATION

The following presents information about cash paid for interest, income taxes and other non-cash financing activities for the years ended December 31,
2015,2014 and 2013 (in thousands):

2015 2014 2013
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest 3 7,068 § 7421 $ 10,568
[ncome taxes $ 99,754 § 88277 § 104,324
Non-cash financing activities;
Assets acquired under capital lease obligations $ 3,847 % 93 % 414

NOTE 17 - SEGMENT INFORMATION

We have the following reportable segments: (a) United Siates electrical construction and facilities services (involving systems for electrical power
transmission and distrdbution; premises electrical and lighting systems; low-voltage systems, such as fire alarm, security and progess control; voice and data
communication; roadway and transit lighting; and fiber optic lines); (b) United States mechanical construction and facilities services {(involving systems for
heating, ventilation, air conditioning, refrigeration and ¢lean-room process ventilation; fite protection; plumbing, ptocess and high-purity piping; controls
and filtration; water and wastewater treatment and central plant heating and cooling; cranes and rigging; millwrighting; and steel fabrication, erection and
welding); (¢} United States building services; (d) United States industrial services; and (¢) United Kingdom building services. The “United States building
services” and “United Kingdom building services” segments principally consist of those operations which provide a portfelio of services needed to support
the operation and maintenance of customets’ facilities, including commercial and government site-based operations and maintenance; facility maintenance
and services, including reception, security and catering services; outage services to utilities and industrial plants; military base operations support services;
mobile maintenance and services; floor care and janitorial services; landscaping, lot sweeping and snow removal; facilifies management; vendor
management; call center services; installation and support for building systems; program development, management and maintenance for energy systems;
technical consulting and diagnostic services; infrastructure and building projects for federal, state and local governmental agencies and bodies; and small
modification and retrofit projects, which services are not generally related to customers’ construction programs. The segment “United States industrial
services” principally consists of these operations which provide industrial maintenance and services, including those for refincrics and petrochemical plants,
including cn-site repairs, maintenance and service of heat exchangers, towers, vessels and piping; design, manufacturing, repair and hydro blast cleaning of
shell and tube heat exchangers and related equipment; refinery tumaround planning and engineering services; specialty welding services; overhaul and
maintenance of critical process units in refineries and petrochemical plants; and specialty technical services for refineries and petrochemical plants,
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EMCOR Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 17 - SEGMENT INFORMATION - (Continued)

The following tables present information about industry segments and geographic areas for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 (in

thousands):

Revenues from unrelated entities:
United States electrical construction and facilities services
United States mechanical construction and facilities services
United States building services
United States industrial services
Total United States operations
United Kingdom building services

Total wotldwide operations

Total revenues:
United States electrical construction and facilities services
United States mechanical construction and facilities services
United States building services
United States industrial services
Less intersegment revenues
Total United States operations
United Kingdom building services
Total worldwide operations

Operating income (loss):
United States electrical constrction and facilities services
United States mechanical construction and facilities services
United States building services
United Statcs industrial services
Total United States operations
United Kingdom building services
Corporate administration
Restrugturing expenses
Impairment foss on identifiable intangible assets
Gain on sale ofbuilding
Total worldwidc operations
Other corporate iterns:
Interest expense
Interest income

Income from continuing operations before income taxes
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2015 2014 2013
1,367,142 $ 1311988 & 1345750
2,312,763 2201212 2,329,834
1,739,259 1,721,341 1,794,978
922,085 839,980 519413
6,341,249 6,074,521 5,989,075
377,477 350,444 343,552
6718726 $ 6424965 § 6333527
1378620 § 1326547 5§ 1,371,979
2,326,683 2,219,886 2,387,072
1,794,086 1,762,697 1,839,129
923,648 842,040 522,417
{81,788) (76,649) (130,622)
6,341,249 6,074,521 5.989,975
377,477 350,444 343,552
6718726 $ 6424965 $ 6,333,527
82,225 % 905873 $ 98,114
138,688 114,418 93,765
70,532 65,885 67,225
56,469 63,159 38,763
347,914 334,335 297 867
11,634 15,011 13,021
(71,642) (68,578) {69,891}
(824) £1,168) (647)
— (1,471) —
— 11,749 —
287,082 289,878 240,350
(8.932) 9,075) (8,769)
673 842 1,128
278,823 § 281645 § 232,700
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 17 - SEGMENT INFORMATION - (Continued)

Capital expenditures:

United States electrical construction and facilities services
United States mechanical construction and facilities setvices
United States building services

United States industrial services

Total United States operations

United Kingdom building services

Corporate administration

Total worldwide cperations

Depreciation and amortization of Property, plant and equipment;

United States electrical construction and facilities services
United States mechanical construction and facilities services
United States building services

United States industrial services

Total United States operations

United Kingdom building services

Corporate administration

Total worldwide operations

Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts:

United States electrical construction and facilities services
United States mechanical construction and facilities services
United States building services

United States industrial services

Total United States operations

United Kingdom building services

Total worldwide operations

Billings in excess of costs and estimated eamnings on uncompleted contracts:

United States electrical construction and facilities services
United States mechanical construction and facilities services
United States building services

United States industrial services

Total United States operations

United Kingdom building services

Total worldwide operations
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2015 2014 2013
6,063 6,671 6,164
5345 8,631 2,866
7233 10,589 7,579

11,073 9,139 10,281
20,714 35,030 32,890
5,298 1,935 1,536
448 1070 1,071
35,460 38,035 35497
4,676 4237 3,640
7,624 7,600 7280
9,334 10,660 11,288
9,629 9,839 8,781
31,763 32,336 30,989
3,603 3305 4477
928 883 844
36,294 36,524 36310
39,116 32464 28,983
46,220 43443 38,804
20,959 18,555 14,957
3358 281 5
169,653 94,743 82,754
8,081 8458 7973
117,734 103,201 90,727
139,857 114422 118458
238,463 199,083 205,974
44476 38,059 30,827
1,170 1,516 805
423,966 153,980 356,064
5269 14,575 25231
429,235 168,555 381,295
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 17 - SEGMENT INFORMATION - (Centinued)

Long-lived assets:
United States electrical construction and facilities services $
United States mechanical construction and facilities services
United States building services
United States industrial services

Total United States operations
United Kingdom building services
Corporate administration

Total worldwide operations $

Total assets:
United States electrical construction and facilities services g
United States mechanical construction and facilitics services
United States building services
United States industrial services

Total United States operations
United Kingdom building services
Corporate admindstration

Total worldwide operations b

2018 2014 2013
20,139 § 18,792 $ 16,512
296,633 288,161 193,790
378,367 392,364 406,498
730,413 750,101 772,209
1,425,552 1449418 1,489,009
10,927 6,399 8831
1,543 2,023 1,896
1,438,022 § 1458340 §$ 1,499,736
172,525 $ 332,150 8 329,742
894,366 793,056 795256
721,653 737,082 756,785
883,338 954,018 $40,916
2,871,882 2,816,306 2,822,699
133,782 130,340 160,828
540,866 442321 482,388
3546470 $ 3388967 $ 3465915

The results of our United States mechanical construction and facilities services segment included revenues of $12.1 million recognized during the fourth
quarter of 2015 as a result of the settlement of a claim on an institutional project located in the southeastern United States. Our United Kingdom building
services segment recognized income of $4.8 million during the second quarter of 2014, which has been recorded as a reduction of "Cost of sales" in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2014, as a result of a reduction in the estimate of certain accrued contract costs that
were no longer expected to be incurred within its building services operations. Our corporate administration operating loss for the year ended December 31,
2013 was reduced by the teceipt of an insurance recovery of approximately $2.6 million that was received in Jannary 2013 associated with a previously
disposed of operation, which has been classified as a compenent of "Cost of sales” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations,

74




Tabte of Contents

EMCOR Group, Inc. and Subsidiarics
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 18 -SELECTED UNAUDITED QUARTERLY INFORMATION
{In theusands, except per share data)
Quarterly and year-to-datc computations of per share amounts are made independently; therefore, the sum of per share amounts for the quarters may not

equal per share amounts for the year. The results of the construction operations of our United Kingdom segment for all periods are presented as discontinued
operations.

March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dee. 31
2015 Quarterly Results
Revenues 3 1,589,187 § 1,652,585 § 1,699,128 § 1,777,826
Gross profit $ 216,929 § 239,527 § 235402 § 252,621
Impairment loss on identifiable intangible asscts $ — 3 — % — —
Gain on sale of building $ — % — % — —
Net income attributable to EMCOR Group, Inc. $ 32,849 % 46,849 % 41,522 § 51,066
Basic EPS from continuing operations 5 G53 § 075 3% 666 % 0.81
Basic EPS from discontinued operation ©.ol) 0.00) (0.00) 0.01
5 052 % 075 § 066 $% 0.82
Diluted EPS from continuing operations $ 052 § 074 § 066 $ 0.80
Diluted EPS from discontinued operation {0.00) (0.00) {0.00) ¢.01
$ 052 8§ 074 % 066 § 0.81
March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dee. 31
2014 Quarterly Results
Revenues $ 1,590,539 § 1,552,919 § 1,566,711 § 1,714,796
Gross profit $ 216,203 § 220241 § 222229 § 248,573
Impairment loss on identifiable intangible assets 8 — 3 — 3 — 3 1,471
Gain on sale of building $ — § — % 11,749 § —
Net income-attributable to EMCOR Group, Tne, $ 41,26 % 39513 § 45,024 § 42,466
Basic EPS from continuing operations $ 064 § 061 § 068 § 0.67
Basic EPS from discontinued operation (0.03) {0.02} {0.01) (0.01})
$ 06l 3% 059 3 0.67 % 0.60
Diluted EPS from continuing operations $ .64 § 061 § 0.68 § 0.66
Diluted EPS flom discontinued operation 0.03) (0.02) {0.01) ©.01)
$ 061 § 059 % 067 § 0.65
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of EMCOR Group, In¢. and subsidiaries:

We have andited the accompanying consclidated balance sheets of EMCOR Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2015, Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15{a). These financial statements and schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a fest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation, We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of EMCOR Group, Inc.
and subsidiaries at December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2015, in conformity with U.S. gencrally accepted accounting principles, Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule,
when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), EMCOR Group, Inc. and
subsidiaries’ intetnal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015, based on criteria established in Internal Control-lntegrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 Framework) and our report dated February 25, 2016 expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon.

Stamford, Connecticut /s/ Ernst & Youwne LLP

February 25,2016
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Report of Independent Registered Public Aceounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of EMCOR Group, Inc. and subsidiaries:

We have audited EMCOR Group, Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015, based on criteria established in
Internal Control-Integrated Framewotk issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orpanizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 Framework) (the COSO
criteria), EMCOR Group, Inc, and subsidiaries’ management is responsible for meintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its
assessment of the cffectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s intemal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our andit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness oxists, tosting
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for cur opinion,

Acompany’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control
over financial repotting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, acowrately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and {3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material etfect on the financial statements,

Because ol its inherent limitations, intemal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectivenoss to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, EMCOR Group, Inc. and subsidiaties maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial rcporting as of
December 31,2015, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Qversight Board (United States), the consclidated balance
sheets of EMCOR Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of operations, compiehensive
income, equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the petiod ended December 31, 2015 and our report dated February 25, 2016 exprassed an
unqualified opinion thereon.

Starnford, Connecticut /s/ Ernst & Youna LLP

February 25,2016
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not applicable.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Based on an evaluation of our disclosure contrels and procedures (as required by Rules 13a-13(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934), our President
and Chief Executive Officer, Anthony J. Guzzi, and our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Mark A, Pompa, have concluded that ocur
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(g) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) are effective as of the end of the period covered by
this report.

Management’s Report on Internal Coutrol over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate intemal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f) under the Sccurities and Exchange Act of 1934). Our intemal control over financial reporting is a process designed with the participation of our
principal executive officer and principal financial officer or persons performing similar functions to provide reasonable assurance regarding the relisbility of
financial reporting and the preparation of our financial statements for external reporting purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

Our intemal control over financial reporting includes policies and procedures that: (a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect our transactions and dispositions of assets, (b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statewents in accordance with US, generally accepted accounting principles, and that our receipts and expenditures are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of our management and Board of Dircctors and {¢) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or dispoasition of our assets that could have a material effect on our financial statements,

Because of its inherent limitations, our disclosure contrels and procedures may not prevent or detect misstatements. A control system, no matter how well
conceived and operated, can only provide reascnable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Because of the inherent
limitations in ali control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have been
detected. Also, projections of any evaluaticn of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

As of December 31, 20135, our management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the
framework established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
{*C0OS0™). Based on this evaluation, management has determined that EMCOR’s intemal control over financial reporting is effective as of December 31,
2015,

The cffectivencss of our intemal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015 has been audited by Emst & Young LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated in its report appearing in this Anuual Report on Form 10-K, which such report expressed an unqualified opinion
on the cffectivenaess of ourintemal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015,

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In addition, our management with the participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer or persons performing similar functions
has determined that no change in our internal control over financial reporting (as that term is defined in Rules 13(a)-15(f) and 15(d)-15(f) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934) occurred during the fourth quarter of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, our intemal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable.
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PART III
ITEM 1¢. MRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFTICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this Item 10 with respect to directors is incorporated herein by reference to the Section of our definitive Proxy Statement for
the2016 Annual Meeting of Stockholders entitled “Election of Directors”, which Proxy Statement is to be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Comumission pursuant to Regulation 14A not latet than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year to which this Form 10-K relates {the “Proxy Statement”). The
information required by this Item: 10 concerning compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is incorporated herein by reference to
the section of the Proxy Statement entitled “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance”. The information required by this Item 10
concerning the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors and Audit Committee financial experts is incomperated by reference to the section of the Proxy
Statement entitted “Meetings and Commiltees of the Board of Directors” and “Corporate Governance”. Information regarding our executive officers is
contained in Part [ of this Form 10-K following Item 4 under the heading “Executive Officers of the Registrant”, We have adopted a Code of Ethics that
applies to our Chief Executive Officer and our Senior Financial Officers, which is listed en the Exhibit Index.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item 11 is incorporated herein by reference to the sections of the Proxy Statement entitled “Compensation Discussion and

(LS LLIY] noo&

Analysis”, “Exceutive Compoensation and Related Information”, “Potential Post Employment Paymonts”, “Diroctor Compensation”, “Compensation
Committee Interlocks and Insider Paticipation” and “Compensation Committee Report”,

ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item 12 (other than the information required by Section 201(d) of Regulation S-K, which is set forth in Part I, [tem 5 of
this Form 10-K) is incorporated herein by reference to the sections of the Proxy Statement entitled “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners” and
“Security Ownership of Management™.

ITEM 13, CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECT OR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item 13 is incotporated herein by reference to the sections of the Proxy Statement entitled *Compensation Committee
Interlecks and Insider Participation™ and “Corporate Governance™.

ITEM 14, PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Iiem 14 is incorporated herein by teference to the section ofthe Proxy Statement entitled “Ratification of Appointment of
Independent Auditors™,
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULLS

a1

{aX2)

(@x3)

The following consolidated financial statements of EMCOR Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries are filed as part of this report
under Part II, ltem 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data:

Financial Statements:

Consolidated Balance Sheets - December 31,2015 and 2014

Consolidated Statements of Operations - Years Ended December 31,2015, 2014 and 2013
Consolidated Statements Comprehensive Incoms - Years Ended December 31,2015, 2014 and 2013
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Years Ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
Consolidated Statements of Equity - Years Ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The following financial statement schedule is included in this Form 10-K report: Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying
Accounts

All other schedules are omitted because they are not required, are inapplicable, or the information is otherwise shown in
the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

For the list of exhibits, see the Exhibit Index immediately following the signature page hereof, which Exhibit Index is
incerporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchanpge Act of 1934, the Registtant has duly caused this repert to be signed on its
behalfby the undersigred thereunto duly authorized.

Date: February 25,2010

EMCOR GROUP, INC,
{Registrant)

BY: /sf ANTHONY J. GUZZI
Anthony J. Guzzi
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1034, this report has been signad below by the following persons on behalf of'the Registrant
and in the capacities indicated on February 25,2016,

/8! AnTiowy J. Guzzi President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Anthony J. Guzzi (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ MARK A, Pompa Executive Vige President and Chief Financial Officer
Mark A. Pompa (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/s/ STEPHEN W. BERSHAD Chairman of the Board of Directors

Stephen W. Bershad

3/ JOHN W, ALTMEYER Director
John W. Altmeyer
/8! Davip A, B, Brown Director

David A. B. Brown

/sf Larry J, Bumr Director

Larry J, Bump

/8! Ricuaro F. Hano, Jr, Director
Richard F. Hamm, Jr.
/s/ Davip H. LaDLEY Director
David H. Latdley
s/ Jerry E. Rvan Director

Jerry E. Ryan

/8/ STEVEN B. SCHWARZWAELDER Director

Steven B. Schwarzwaelder

/sf MicuagL T, YONKER Director
Michael T. Yonker
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SCHEDULE II - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

(In thounsands)
Balance at
Beginning Costs and Additions Charged Balance at
Description of Year Expenses to Other ¥ Deductions End of Year

Allowance for donbtful accounts
Yecar Ended December 31,2015 3 10,424 2,853 — (2,102) $ 11,175
Year Ended December31,2014 § 11,890 2,918 —_ 4384) % 10,424
Year Ended December 31,2013 $ 11,472 3,533 12 (3.127) 3 11,890

(1) Amount principally relates to business acquisitions and divestitures, and the effect of exchange rate changes,
(2) Deductions primarily represent uncollectible balances of accounts receivable written off, net of recoveries,
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Exhibit

No,

EXHIBIT INDEX

Doscription

Incorporated By Reference (o or
Filed Hercewith, as Indicated Below

2(a-1)
2(a-2)

2(a-3)

3(a-1)

3(a-2)

3(a-3)
3(a4)
3(@-5)
3()
3@

4(a)

4(b)

4(c)

4(d)

Purchase Agreement dated as of February 11, 2002 by and among
Comfort Systems USA, Inc. and EMCOR-CS! Holding Co.

Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of August 20, 2007 between
FR X Ohmstede Holdings LLC and EMCOR Group, Inc,

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of June 17, 2013 by and
among Texas Turnaround LILC, a Delaware limited liability
company, Altair Strickland Group, Inc.,, a Texas corporation, Rep
Holdings LLC, a Texas limifed liability company, ASG Key
Employee LLC, a Texas limited liability company, Repcon Key
Employee LLC, a Texas limited liability company, Gulfstar MBI,
Ltd., a Texas limited partnership, The Trustee of the James T.
Robinson and Diana J. Robinson 2010 Imrevocable Trust, The
Trustee of the Steven Rothbauer 2012 Descendant’s Trast, The Co-
Trustees of the Patia Strickland 2012 Descendant’s Trust, The Co-
Trustees of the Carter Strickland 2012 Descendant’s Trust, and The
Co-Trustees of the Walton 2012 Grandchildren's Trust (collectively,
“Sellers”) and EMCOR Group, Inc.

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of EMCOR filed December 15,
1994

Amendment dated November 28, 1995 to the Restated Certificate of
Incorporation of EMCOR

Amendment dated February 12, 1998 to the Restated Certificate of
Incorparation of EMCOR
Amendment dated January 27, 2006 to the Restated Certificate of
Incorporation of EMCOR
Amendment dated September 18, 2007 to the Restated Certificate of
Incorporation of EMCOR

Amended and Restated By-Laws

Amendment to Article I, Section 6{c) and Section 6(j) of the
Amended and Restated By-Laws

Fourth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of
November 25, 2013 by and among EMCOR Group, Inc, and a
subsidiary and Bank of Montreal, as Agent, and the lenders listed on
the signature pages thereof (the “Credit Agreement™)

Fourth Amended and Restated Security Agreement dated as of
November 25, 2013 among EMCOR, certain of its U.S. subsidiaries,
and Bank of Montreal, as Agent

Fourth Amended and Restated Pledge Agreement dated as of
November 25, 2013 among EMCOR, certain of its U.S, subsidiaries,
and Bank of Montreal, as Agent

Third Amended and Restated Guaranty Agreement dated as of
November 25, 2013 by certain of EMCOR’s U.S, subsidiaries in
favor of Bank of Montreal, as Agent
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Exhibit 2.1 to EMCOR Group, Inc.’s “EMCOR™) Report on Form 8-
K dated Febrnary 14, 2002

Exhibit 2.1 to EMCOR’s Report on Form 8-K (Date of Report
August 20, 2007)

Exhibit 2.1 to EMCOR’s Report ont Form 8-K (Date of Report June
17,2013)

LExhibit 3{a-5) to EMCOR’s Registration Statement on Form 10 as
originally filed March 17, 1995 (“Form 10™)

Exhibit 3(a-2) to EMCOR’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 1995 {“1995 Form

10K™

Exhibit 3{a-3) to EMCOR’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December31, 1997 (“1997 Form [ (¢-K™)

Exhibit 3(a<4) to EMCOR’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31,2005 (“2005 Form 10-K™)

Exhibit A to EMCOR’s Proxy Statement dated Aongust 17,2007 for
Special Meeting of Stockholders held September 18, 2007

Exhibit 3(b) tc EMCOR s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 1998 (*1998 Form 10-K™)

Exhibit 3.1 to EMCOCR’s Report on Form 8-K (Date of Report
Decomber 5,2013)

Exhibit 4(a) to EMCOR’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December31,2013 (*2013 Ferm 10-K™)

Exhibit 4(b) to 2013 Form 10-K

Exhibit 4(c) to 2013 Form 10-K

Exhibit 4(d) to 2013 Form 10-K
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit Incorporated By Reference to or
Na, Deseription Filed Hercwith, as Indicated Below
10(a) Form of Severance Agreement (“Severance Agreement”) between Exhibit 10.1 to the April 2005 Form 8-K
EMCOR and each of Sheldon I, Cammaker, R. Kevin Matz and
Mark A, Pompa
10(b} Form of Amendment to Severance Agreement between EMCOR and  Exhibit 10(c) to EMCOR's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
each of Sheldon I. Cammalker, R. Kevin Matz and Mark A. Pompa quarter ended March 31,2007 (“March 2007 Form 10-Q")
10{c) Letter Agreement dated October 12, 2004 between Anthony Guzzi  Exhibit 10,1 to EMCOR’s Report on Form 8-K {Date of Report
and EMCOR (the “Guzzi Letter Agreement™) October 12, 2004}
10(d) Form of Confidentiality Agreement between Anthony Guzzi and Exhibit C to the Guzzi Letter Agreement
EMCOR
10(e) Form of Indemnification Agreement between EMCOR and each of Exhibit F to the Guzzi Letter Agreement
its officers and directors
10(f-1} Severance Agreement (*Guzzi Severance Agreement™) dated Exhibit D to the Guzzi Letter Agreement
October 25, 2004 between Anthony Guzzi and EMCOR.
10(£-2) Amendment to Guzzi Severance Agreement Exhibit 10(g-2) to the March 2007 Form 10-Q
10{g-1} Continuwity Agreement dated as of June 22, [998 between Sheldon I, Exhibit 10{(c) to the June 1998 Form 10-Q
Cammaker and EMCOR (“Cammeler Continuity Agresment™)
10(g-2} Amendment dated as of May 4, 1999 to Cammaker Continuity Exhibit 10(i) to the June 1999 Form 10-Q
Agreement
10(g-3) Amendment dated as of March 1, 2007 to Cammaker Continuity Exhibit 10(m-3)to the March 2007 Form 10-Q
Agreement
10¢h-1) Continuity Agreement dated as of June 22, 1698 between R. Kevin  Exhibit 10() to the June 1998 Form 10-Q
Matz and EMCOR (“Matz Continuity Agreement”}
10¢h-2) Amendment dated as of May 4, 1999 to Matz Continuity Agreement Exhibit 10(m) to the June 1999 Form 10-Q
10¢h-3) Amendment dated as of January 1, 2002 to Matz Continuity Exhibit 10(0-3} to EMCOR’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
Agreement quarter ended March 31, 2002 (“March 2002 Form 10-Q™)
10¢h-4) Amendment dated as of March 1, 2007 to Matz Continuity Exhibit 10{n-4) to the March 2007 Form 10-Q
Agreement
10(i-1) Continuity Agreement dated as of June 22, 1998 betwoen Mark A, Exhibit 10(g) to the June 1998 Form 10-Q
Pompa and EMCOR (“Pornpa Continuity Agreement™)
10¢i-2) Amendment dated as of May 4, 1999 to Pompa Continuity Exhibit 10(n) to the June 1999 Form 10-Q
Agreement
10(i-3) Amendment dated as of January |, 2002 to Pompa Continuity Exhibit 10{p-3)to the March 2002 Form 10-Q
Agreement
10(-4) Amendment dated as of March 1, 2007 to Pompa Continuity Exhibit 10{o<4)to the March 2007 Form 10-Q
Agreement
106-1) Change of Control Agreement dated as of October 25, 2004 between Exhibit E to the Guzzi Letter Agreement
Anthony Guzzi (“Guzzi™) and EMCOR {“Guzzi Continuity
Agreement”)
10G-2) Amendment dated as of March 1, 2007 to Guzzi Continuity Bxhibit 10{p-2) to the March 2007 Form 10-Q
Agreement
10(-3) Amendment to Continuity Agreements and Severance Agreements Exhibit 10(g) to EMCOCR’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the

with Sheldon 1. Cammaker, Anthony J. Guzzi, R. Kevin Matz and
Mark A, Pompa
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10(k-1) Amendment dated as of March 29, 2010 to Severance Agreoment Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K (Date of Report March 29, 2010) (“March
with Sheldon 1. Cammaker, Anthony J. Guzzi, R, Kevin Matz and 2010 Form 8-K")
Mark A, Pompa
10(k-2) Third Amendment to Severance Agreement dated June 4, 2015 Exhibit 10(k-2) to EMCOR’s Quartetly Report on Form 10-Q for the
between EMCOR and Sheldon I Cammaker quatterended June 30, 2015 (“June 2013 Form 10-Q™)
10(1-1) EMCOR Group, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP*) Exhibit 10 to Form 8-K (Date of Report December 15, 2005)
10(1-2) First Amendment ta LTIP and updated Schedule A to LTiP Exhibit 10(s-2) to 2008 Form 10-K
10(1-3) Second Amendment to LTIP Exhibit 10.2 to March 2010 Form 8-K
10(1-4) Third Amendment to LTIP Exhibit 10(q-4) tc EMCOR’s Quarterly Report on Form [0-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2012 (“*March 2012 Form 10-Q™)
10(1-5) Fourth Amendment to LTIP Exhibit 10(1-5) to EMCOR's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30,2013
10(1-6} Form of Certificate Representing Stock Units issued under LTIP Exhibit 10(t-2) to EMCOR’s Annual Report an Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2007 (“2007 Form 10-K™)
10(1-7} Fifth Amendment to LTIP Filed herewith
10(1-8) Sixth Amendment to LTIP Filed herewith
10(m-1) 2003 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan Exhibit A to EMCOR’s Proxy Statement for its Annual Meeting
held on June 12,2003 (2003 Proxy Statement™}
10{m-2) First Amendment to 2003 Non-Employec Dircetors’ Plan Exhibit 10(u-2) to EMCOR’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
yoar ended December 31, 2006 (“2006 Form 10-K”™)
1) Key Executive Incentive Bonus Plan, as amended and restated Exhibit B to EMCOR’s Proxy Statement for its Annual Mecting
held June 13,2613
10(0) Consents on December 15, 2009 to Transfor Stock Options by Non- Exhibit 10(z) to 2009 Form 10-K
Employee Dirgctors
10(p-1) 2007 Incentive Plan Exhibit B to EMCOR’s Proxy Statement for its Annual Meeting
held June 20, 2007
10(p-2) Option Agreement dated December 13, 2007 under 2007 Incentive Exhibit 10(h)h-2) te 2007 Form 10-K.
Plan between Jerry E, Ryan and EMCOR
10(p-3) Option Agreement dated December 15, 2008 under 2007 Incentive Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K (Date of Report December 15, 2008)
Plan between David Laidley and EMCOR
10(p-4) Form of Optien Agreement under 2007 Incentive Flan between Exhibit 10(h)(h-3)to 2007 Form 10-K
EMCOR and each non-employee director clecting to receive
options as part of annual retainer
10(g-1) Amended and Restated 2010 Incentive Plan Exhibit 10{g-1) to EMCORs Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30,2013
10g-2) Form of Option Agreement under 2010 Incentive Plan between Exhibit 10(i)(i-2) to EMCOR’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
EMCOR and each non-employee director with respect to grant of the quarter ended June 30,2010
cptions upon re-clection at Junc 11, 2010 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders
10{g-3) Form of Option Agteement under 2010 Incentive Plan, as amended, Exhibit 10(q)q) te 2011 Form 10-K

between EMCOR and each non-employee director electing to
receive options as part of annual retainer
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16(9) EMCOR Group, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan Exhibit C to EMCOR’s Proxy Statement for its Annual Meeting
held June 18, 2008
10(s) Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement dated January 3, 2012 Exhibit 10(m){m) to 2011 Form 10-K
between EMCOR and each of Larry J. Bump, Albert Fried, Jr,
Richard F. Hamm, Jr, David H. Laidley, Frank T. MacInnis, Jerty E.
Ryan and Michael T, Yonker
104-1) Director Award Program Adopted May 13, 2011, as amended and  Exhibit 10{n)(n) to 2011 Form 10-K
restated December 14,2011
10(t-2) Form of Amended and Restated Restricted Stock Award Agreement  Exhibit 10{o)(c) to 2011 Form 10-K
dated December 14, 2011 amending and restating restricted stock
award agreement dated June 1, 2011 under Director Award Program
with each of Stephen W. Bershad, David A.B. Brown, Lary J. Bump,
Albert Fried, Jr, Richard F. Hamm, Jr, David H. Laidley, Jerry E.
Ryan and Michael T, Yonker
10{u} Restricted Stock Unit Agreement dated May 9, 2011 between Exhibit 10(o)(0) to EMCOR’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
EMCOR and Anthony J. Guzzi the quarter ended September 30, 2011
10{v} Amendment to Option Agreements Exhibit 10(r)}{r) to 2011 Form 10-K.
10w} Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement dated March , 2012 Exhibit 10(0)(o) to the March 31, 2012 Form 10-Q
between EMCOR and each of Sheldon I, Cammaker, R, Kevin Matz
and Mark A. Pompa
10(x) Form of Non-LTIP Stock Unit Certificate Exhibit 10(p)(p) to the March 31,2012 Form 10-Q
10(y) Form of Director Restricted Stock Unit Agreement Exhibit 10(k)Xk) to EMCOR’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended June 30,2012 (“June 2012 Form 16-Q")
16(z) Director Award Program, as Amended and Restated December 16, Exhibit 10{z) to EMCOR’s Annuat Report on Form 10-K for the year
2014 ended December 31,2014
10(a)a) EMCOR Group, Inc, Voluntary Deferral Plan Exhibit 10{e)e) to 2012 Form 10-K
106(b)(b) Exhibit 10(e}e) to 2013 Form 10-K
First Amendment to EMCOR Group, Inc. Voluntary Deferral Plan
10{c)c) Form of Executive Restricted Stock Unit Agreement Exhibit 10(f)(f) to 2012 Form 10-K
19(d)d) Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement dated October 23, 2013 Exhibit 10{g)g) to 2013 Form 16-K
between EMCOR and Stephen W. Bershad
10{e)e) Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement dated June 11, 2014  Exhibit 10{g)}g) to EMCOR's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
between EMCOR and Stephen W. Bershad the quarter ended Jone 30,2014
LO{EX 1) Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement dated June 11, 2015  Exhibit 10(5){f) to the June 2015 Form 10-Q
between EMCOR and Stephen W. Bershad
FO{g)(z) Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement dated October 29,2015 Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K (Date of Report October 30,2015)
between EMCOR and Steven B. Schwarzwaelder
10(h)(h} Executive Compensation Recoupment Policy Filed herewith
11 Computation of Basic EPS and Diluted EPS for the years ended Note 5 ofthe Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31,2015 and 2014
14 Code of Ethics of EMCOR for Chief Executive Officer and Senior Exhibit 14 to 2003 Form 10K
Financial Officers
21 List of Significant Subsidiaries Filed herewith
23.1 Consent of Emst & Young LLP Filed herewith
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311 Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of Filed herewith
2002 by Anthony J. Guzzi, the President and Chief Executive
Officer
3i2 Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of Filed herewith

2002 by Mark A, Pompa, the Execcutive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer

321 Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of Fumished
2002 by the President and Chief Executive Officer

322 Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbancs-Oxley Act of Fumished
2002 by the Executive Vice President and ChiefFinancial Officer

95 Information concetning mine safety violations or other regulatory Filed herewith
matiers

101 The following materials from EMCOR Group, Inc.’s Annual Report  Filed

on Form 1G-K for the year ended December 31, 2015, formatted in
XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language) (i) the
Consolidated Balance Sheets, {ii) the Consolidated Statements of
Operations, {iii} the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive
Income, {iv) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, (v} the
Consolidated Statements of Equity and {vi) the Notes to
Consaolidated Financial Statements.

Pursnant to Item 601(b){4)(iii) ¢f Regulation $-K, upon request of the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Registrant heteby undertakes to furnish a
copy of any unfiled instrument which defines the rights of holders of long-term debt of the Registrant’s subsidiaries.
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EXHIBIT 100-7)

FIFTH AMENDMENT
TO THE
LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
OF EMCOR GROUP, INC.

WHEREAS, the EMCOR Group, Inc. Long Term Incentive Plan was adopted in 2005 and has since been amended (the aforesaid plan, as amended,
the LTIP);

WIEREAS, Section 8.1 of the LTIP provided that the Board of Directors of EMCOR Group, Inc. (the “Board™) may amend the LTIP, subject to the
terms of Section 8.1; and

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that the LTIP shall be further amended as provide below;
NOW, THEREFORE, the Long Term Incentive Plan is hereby amended as follows:
1. Section 2 is hereby amended to add the following paragraph to the definition of Eamings Per Share:

“Earnings Per Share” for a Three Year Applicable Period commencing on or after January 1, 2015 shall mean the aggregate of the diluted
eamings pet share of the Company’s Common Stock for each of such three years, as reported in the Company’s “Consolidated Statements of
Operations” for such years in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; provided, however, that in computing net income to arrive
at any such year's earnings per share there shall be excluded from the caleulation of such net income (a) non-cash charges associated with the write-
down of balance sheet values of assets, (b) investment banking, consulting, legal, and accounting fees and related disbursements directly associated
with any proposed ot consummated (i) acquisition or investment or (ii) sale or disposition of Company assets or securities, (c) the effect of any
changes in statutory tax rates from those in effect on March 29, 2010, (d) restructuring charges due fo sale or closure of a subsidiary's business, (e)
the cumulative effect of any change in accounting principles, (f) charges associated with withdrawal liabilities relating to multi-employer pension
plans and lump sum type surcharges {as opposed to increases in hourly contribution rates) assessed by multi-employer pension plans, to ameliorate
underfunding in their respective plans and (g) income or loss from discontinued operations; and provided further, however, that the Compensation
Committee may, within the first 90 days of a Three Year Applicable Period, adjust any such period’s Eamings Per Share, to the extent permitted
under Section 162(m} of the Code, to omit the impact on such Famings Per Share of extraordinary items, gains or losses on the acquisition or
disposal of a business, and/or unusual or infrequently oceurring events and transactions,”

2. Except as hereinabove amended, the LTIP, as previously amended, shall remain in full force and effect,
N WITNESS WHEREQF, the undersigned has executed this Amendment as of the 51t day of March 2015.
EMCOR GROUP, INC.

By: s/ Anthonv I. Quzzi
President and Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 10(-8)

SIXTH AMENDMENT
TOTHE
LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN
OF EMCOR GROUP, INC,

WHEREAS, the EMCOR Group, Ine, Long Term Incentive Plan was adopted in 2005 and has since been amended {the aforesaid plan, as amended,
the “LTIP”);

WIIEREAS, Section 8.1 of the LTIP provides that the Board of Directors of EMCOR Group, Inc. (the “Board™) may amend the LTIP, subject to the
terms of Section 8.1; and

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that the LTIP should be further amended as provided below;
NOW, THEREFORE, the LTIP is hereby amended as follows:
1. Effective January [, 2016 now Scction 9.14 is added to read as follows:
“9.14, Recoupment of Awards, All Performance Based Target Bonus awards, that may be granted with respect to Applicable Three Year Periods
commencing on or after January 1, 2016, whether or not vested, will be subject to the Company’s Executive Compensation Recoupment Policy, as
such policy may be amended and In effect fiom time to time (the “Clawback Policy”). By participating in the Plan, including by receiving any award
benelit or payment under the Plan, a Participant will be decmed to have agreed to comply promptly and in full with all terms and conditions of the
Clawback Policy with respeet to such award.”
2. Except as hereinabove amended, the LTIP, as previously amended, shall remain in full force and effect.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Amendment as of the 13t day of January 2016,

EMCOR GROUP, INC,

By: fs! Anthony J. Guzzi
President and Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 10(l)(h)
EMCOR Group, Ine,

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION RECOUPMENT POLICY

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of EMCCR Group Inc. {the “Company™) has adopted the following policy on the recoupment of executive
compensation (the “policy”™). References to the Board herein shall include any commitiee of the Board that has been delegated authority by the Board to
administer and enforce this policy in accordance with its terms,

In the event that the Company is required to prepare an accounting restatement to correct an error that is matetial to its previously issued financial statements
under the securities laws, with respect to any cash or equity-based bonus or other cash or equity-based incentive compensation that was granted, eamed or
became vested based whelly or in part upon the attainment of any financial reporting measure (*incentive-based compensation™) during the three completed
fiscal years immediately preceding the “required financial restatement date,” the Board must seek reimbursement of the amount {computed without regard to
any taxes paid) of any such incentive-based compensation awarded or paid to an Executive or effect the cancellation of unvested and vested equity awards
previously granted to an Executive, if and to the extent the amount of such incentive-based compensation would have been lower had the level of
achievement of the applicable financial reporting measure been calculated based on such restated financial results, unless the Board, or a duly authorized
committee, thereof determines, after a reasonable attermpt to recover such amount, that it would be impracticable to seck such recovery as a result of the
imposition of undue costs on the Company or its shareholders or it would violate non-U.8, law,

The Board will seck the full amount of a recovery under this policy from an affected Executive, absent a determination by the Board in its sole discretion that
such recovery would be impracticable. However, the Board has discretion to determine the form and timing of any such recovery, provided that such recovery
is accomplished in a reasonably prempt manner. The Board will take such steps as it deems necessary in its sole discretion to ensure that all Executives
subject to the policy agree to abide by its terms.

For purposes of this policy, the “required financia) restatement date™ is the earlier to occur ofthe date when the Board concludes, ot reasonably should have
concluded, that the Company’s financial statements contained a material error or the date when a court, regulator or other legally authorized body directs the
Company to issue a restatement to correot such a material error. For the avoidance of doubt, an Executive will be decmed to have received incentive-based
compensation in the fiscal year when the financial reporting measure that is applicable, in whole or in part, to the incentive-based compensation award is
attained, even if the Executive remains subject to additional payment conditions with respect to such award.

If the achievement of a certain financial reporting measure was considered in determining the incentive-based compensation awarded or paid to an Executive,
but the incentive-based compensation was not awarded or paid on a formulaic basis such that the amount of any crroncously awarded incentive-based
compensation cannot be determined directly from the information in the accounting restatement, the Board will determine in its sole discretion the
recoverable amount based on its reasonable estimate of'the effect of the financial restatement,

For purposes of this policy, an “Executive” shall mean any current or former employee who is, or was, an “officer” of the Company for purposes of Section 16
ofthe Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, at any time during the performance period applicable to the incentive-based compensation at issue.

The remedies under this policy are in addition to, and not in lieu of, any legal and equitable claims the Company may have or any actions that may be
imposed by law enforcement agencics, regulators or other authorities. This policy will be administered in a manner that complies with applicable law and
securities exchange listing requirements, The Company may adopt additional recoupment provisions in the future or amend existing requirements as required
by law or rogulation. Subjoct to the forcgoing, the Board shall have the discretionary authotity to make all determinations undet this policy, including the
authority to construe and apply al! relevant terms, and may amend this policy at any time.

Date; December 15,2015



EXHIBIT 11

SEE NOTE 5 TC THE ACCOMPANYING CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR INFORMATION RELATING TO THE CALCULATION OF
BASIC EPS AND DILUTED EPS.



LIST OF SIGNIFICANT SUBSIDIARIES

Dyn Specialty Contracting, Inc.
MES Holdings Corporation
EMCOR Construction Services, Inc.
EMCOR International, Inc,

EMCOR Mechanical/Electrical Services {East), Inc.

EMCOR (UK) Limited

EMCOR Group (UK) plo
EMCOR Facilities Services, Inc,
EMCQR-CSI Holding Co.

FR X Ohmstede Acquisitions Co,
RepconStrickland, Inc.

EXHIBIT 21



EXHIBIT 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements:
(1) Registration Statement (Ferm S-8 No. 333-168503) pertaining to the 2010 Incentive Plan ot EMCOR. Group, Inc.,
(2) Registration Statement (Form 8-8 No. 333-152764) pertaining to the BEMCOR Group, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan,
(3) Registration Statement (Form 8-8 No. 333-147015) pertaining to the 2007 Incentive Plan of EMCOR Group, Inc.,

(4) Registration Statement (Form §-8 No. 333-11294Q) pertaining to the EMCOR Group, Inc. Stock Option Agreements dated as of January 4,
1999, May 3, 1999, January 3, 2000, January 2, 2001, December 14, 2001, January 2, 2002, June 19, 2002, October 25, 2002, January 2,

2003, February 27, 2003, and January 2, 2004, the EMCOR Group, Inc. 2003 Non-Employee Directors' Stock Option Plan and the EMCOR Group,
Inc. 2003 Management Stock Incentive Plan, and

(5) Registration Staternent (Ferm 8-8 No. 333-186926) pettaining to the EMCOR Group, Inc Voluntary Deferral Plan;
of our repotts dated February 23, 2016, with respect to the consolidated [inancial statements and schedule of EMCOR Group, Inc. and subsidiaries, and the

effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of EMCOR. Group, Inc, and subsidiaries, included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) of EMCOR
Group Inc. for the year ended December 31,2013,

Stamford, Connecticut /s/ Ernst & Youna LLP
Febtuary 25,2016



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Anthony J. Guzzi, certify that:

1.
2.

Date;

Thave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K o EMCOR Group, Inc,;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information ineluded in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officen(s) and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)}, and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(D) for the registrant and have:

@) Designed such disclosure controls and precedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designhed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectivencss of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covercd by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report} that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certitying officer{s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of intemal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent fonctions):

a) All significant deficiencies and materia! weaknesses in the design or operation of intemal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to recotd, process, summarize and report [inancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

February 25,2016 fs/ ANTHONY J. GUZZI

Anthony J. Guzzi
President and
Chicf Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Mark A. Pompa, certily that:

L.

2.

Date:

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of EMCOR Group, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or emit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statemonts were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this repert, firly present in all matetial respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e} and 15d-15(e)), and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-I15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disciosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supetvision,
ta ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the peried in which this report is being prepared;

b)  Desigtied such internal control over financial repotting, or caused such intcrnal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supetvision, to pravide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
extermal putposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our cenclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the poriod covered by this repott based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occumed during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report} that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s intermnal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and Thave disclosed, based on our mest recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of intemal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s abilily to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

by}  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

February 25,2016 fsf MARK A, POMPA

Mark A. Pompa
Executive Vice President
and Chicf Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1359,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 946 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of EMCOR Group, Ine. {the “Company™) on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31,2015 as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Comnission on the date hereof {the “Report™), [, Anthony J. Guzzi, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

L. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: February 25,2016 s/ ANTHONY ], GUZZI

Anthony J, Guzzi
President and
Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION %06 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of EMCOR Group, Ine. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K lor the period ended December 31, 2015 as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the *“Report™), I, Mark A, Pompa, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, cettify, pursuant to 18 U,S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 1 5(d) ofthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.
Date:  February 25,2016 /s MARK A, POMPA

Mark A. Pompa
Exccutive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 95

MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

During the reporting period covered by this report, our subsidiary MOR-PPM, Inc. (“PPM") received one significant and substantial citation from the Mine
Safety and Health Administration (*MSHA™) for work performed at Unimin Corporation’s Tunnel City Mine in Tomah, WL The citation was subsequently
terminated by MSHA. The total civil penalty assessed by MSHA related to PPM’s work at the Tunne! City Mine for this repotting period was $1,788,00, PPM
has no other disclosures to report under section 1503 for the Tunnel City Mine for the period covered by this report.

On December 1, 2015, PPM received an imminent danger order dated November 30, 2015 issued by MSHA under Section 107(a) of the Federal Mine
Safety and Health Act of 1977 for work performed at the Blair Plant in Trempealeau County, Wisconsin. The order was terminated within minutes of it being
issued and no employees or equipment were injured or damaged. No civil penalty has been assessed. PPM has no other disclosures to report under section
1503 for the Blair Plant for the peried covered by this report,

During the reporting period covered by this report, PPM received twe citations from MSHA for work performed at the Hi-Crush Wyeville Mine in Wyeville,
Wisconsin, The order was subsequently terminated by MSHA. The total civil penalty assessed by MSHA related to PPM’s wotk at the Wyeville Mine for this
reporting period was $227.00. PPM has no other disclosures to report under section 1503 for the Wyeville Mine for the period covered by this report.

During the reporting period covered by this report, our subsidiary Southern Industiial Constructors, Inc. (“SIC™) received a single proposed civil penalty
assessment of $100.00 fom MSHA related to work perfermed at 3M Corporation’s Pitisboro Plant in Moneure, NC. The citation was subsequently terminated
by MSHA. SIC has no other disclosures to report under section 1503 for the Pittsboro Plant for the period covered by this report.
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A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY EXECUTIVE TO AWARD AND

EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF NASSAU ACTING ON

BEHALF OF THE NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND
WELSBACH ELECTRIC CORP. OF L.IL

RO -2016

WHEREAS, in accordance with all Federal, State and Local Law, the County of
Nassau on behalf of the NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
[“Department”] has received competitive bids for contract H62000-03E, NASSAU
COUNTY TRAFFIC SIGNAL SYSTEM OPERATIONS-PHASE IV- P.LN. 0760.81,
[“Contract™), as more particularly described in the contract documents, a copy of which
are on file with the Clerk of the Legislature; and

WHEREAS, the firm of WELSBACH ELECTRIC CORP. OF L.L

[“Vendor”] has submitied the lowest responsible bid for the work described in
the contract in accordance with all Federal, State and Local Law as determined by the
Department, and

WHEREAS, the funding for this contract is from operational funds approved by

the Nassau County Legislature, and






WHEREAS, the Commissioner of the Department is representing that the total
contract is estimated to be § 2,448,500.00, for a three-year contract, now therefore be it
RESOLVED, that the Rules Committee of the Nassau County Legislature, based
on the representations of the Department and the recommendation of the Commissioner
of the Department, authorizes the County Executive to award and execute the said

contract with the vendor,






COUNTY OF NASSAU
Inter-Departmental Memo

TO: Office of the Cou}lty Executive
Att: Rob Walker, Chief Deputy County Executive

FROM: Department of Public Works
DATE: April 15,2016

SUBJECT: RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD

Contract No: H62000-03E

Title: NASSAU COUNTY TRAFFIC SIGNAL SYSTEM OPERATIONS-PHASE
IV, P.L.N. 0760.81

Bids received on: March 22, 2016

I'have examined the bids submitted for the contract mentioned above. Finding them to bein order, I
recommend this contract be awarded to Welsbach Electric Corp of L.1.., as the lowest responsible
bidder with a total bid amount of $ 2,448,500. 1In order to facilitate processing of the above
referenced contract, T request that the attached “Request to Initiate” form be approved.

oA

Shila Shah-Gavnoudias
Commissioner







: o
REQUEST TO INITIATE BT Mum hu;l é‘w(} 6\7 ?f

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS/REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL/REQUEST FOR BID CONTRACT

PART I: Approval by the Deputy County Executive for Operations must be obtained prior to ANY RFQ/RFP/RFBC
[] RFQ ] R¥P m|RFBC [_] In-House or Requirements Work Order

Project Title: __Signal System Operations Phase 4

Department: Public Works Project Manager: Jeff Lindgren Date: 12/4/2015

Service Requested: Provide daily maintenance and operations of the County’s signal communications and ITS infrastrucure

Justification: The Project has received 80% funding match from the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA).

Requested by: Kenneth Arnold, DPW Department/Agency/Office

Project Cost for this Phase/Contract; (Plan/Design/Construction/CM/Equipment)  $2,000,000

Circle appropriate phase

Total Project Cost: _$3.000,000 Date Start Work: 7/2016 Duration:_1,095 days
Includes, design, construction, CM and PM Phase being requested Phase being requested
/ ‘ — 2
Capital Funding Approval: YES NO /M M
s L ¥ SIGNATURE DATE

Funding Allocation (CapitaEroject): 9’&;‘? Z/Gf by 7//‘\ % % /;{p;.//v? &mj‘am—é?"él

See Attached Sheet if multiyear

NIFS Entered : AIM Entered:
SIGNATURE DATE SIGNATURE DATE

Funding Code: Timesheet Code:

use this on all 'encumbrances use this on timesheets

State Environmental Quality Review Act (SEQRA):
Type 1l Action [@D/g_lj, Environmenta] Assessment Form Required|_|
Supplemental Environmental Documentation

s y ""'"'“:_z___ R
[t ,»’/' - e -
Department Head Approval: YES [ NO[7] T
""" . SIGNATURE
DCE/Ops Approval: ves [1 wNo(l

/ A SIGNATURE

PART IE: To be submitted to Chief Deputy County Exeeutive after QunliﬁcatiunslPl‘opo?éfContmcts are received from Responding vendors,

Vendor Quote Comment See Attached Sheet |
L.
2,
3.
4.
DCE/Cps Approval; YES NO Signature

Yersion January 2014






COUNTY OF NASSAU
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

Inter-Departmental Memo

TO: Shila Shah-Gavnoudias, Commissioner
FROM: Kenneth G. Arnold, Assistant to Commissioner
DATE: March 28, 2016

SUBJECT: RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD
Contract No.; H62G0003E / PIN 0760.81
Title: Traffic Signal System Operations Phase 4
Engineer's Estimate: $2,511,500.00
Bids Received On: March 22, 2016
The bids received for the above referenced contract have been examined and the bid submitted
by Welsbach Electric Corp of LI in the amount of $2,448,500.00 is acceptable as the lowest
responsible bidder.
Since the low bid is below the engineer’s estimate and adequate funds are budgeted in the
operating budget, it is requested that the Recommendation of Award be prepared for the

Commissioner’s signature and forwarded to the County Executive for his action.

Attached herewith please find a completed Staff Summary form for your ihformation and use.

A

Kenneth G. Arnold
Assistant to Commissioner

KGA:dmp
Attachment

c: Jeff P. Lindgren, Project Manager

K:ASupport StaffAuthor\Lindgren, JeffRecommendation of Award 0760 §1.doc
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COUNTY OF NASSAU

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

Inter-Departmental Memo

TO: Civil Service Employees Association, Nassau Local 830
Att: Ronald Gurrieri, Executive Vice President

FROM: Department of Public Works
DATE: December 23, 2015

SUBJECT:  CSEA Notification of a Proposed DPW Contract
Proposed Contract No; PW-H6200003E

The foliowing notification is to comply with the spirit and intent of Section 32 of the County/CSEA
contract. It should not be implied that the proposed DPW authorization is for work, which has "historically
and exclusively been performed by bargaining unit members."

1. DPW plans to recommend a contract/agreement for the following services:
Signal System Operations Phase 4
2. The work involves the following:
Séeking electrical contractor to provide personnel for the day to day operations of the County’s
Traffic Signal communications and I'TS system. Electricians must possess experience operating

and maintaining traffic signal systems of equal size and complexity. Personnel provided must have
firsthand knowledge of the County’s existing and legacy traffic control system, as well as traffic

signal timing,
3, An estimate of the cost is: $2,000,000
4, An estimate of the duration is: Thirty-six (36) months

Should you wish to propose an alternative to the proposed contract/agreement, please respond within fen
(10) days to: Department of Public Works, Att: Kenneth G. Arnold, Assistant to Commissioner, telephone
1-9607, fax 1-9657.

fon TP

Kenneth G. Armold
Assistant to Commissioner

KGA'WSN:AL:dmp
c: Christopher Fusco, Director, Office of Labor Relations
Brian Libert, Deputy Director, Office of Labor Relations
Keith Cromwell, Office of Labor Relations
William S. Nimmo, Deputy Commissioner
Aryeh Lemberger, Unit Head, Traffic Engineering Unit -
Patricia Kivo, Unit Head, Human Resources Unit
Loretta Dionisio, Hydrogeologist I
Jonathan Lesman, Management Analysis 11
Robert Campo, CSEA President
FlafElindgrenclidtfic Bughisei -

KASupport StaffAuthot\Lindgren, JefACSEA Notilication Letter - 0760 81.doc






PROPOSAL
To the County of Nasgsau

SIGNAY, SYSTEM OPERATIONS PHASE IV
P, I.N. 0760.81
H6200003E.

NASSRU COUNTY, NEW YORK

TO THE COUNTY OF NASAAU: -

Pursuant to and in compliance with your Advertisement for Bids and the
Instructions to Bidders relating thereto, the undersigned hereby proposes
to furnish all plant, labor, materiale, supplies, equipment and other
facilities necessary or proper for or incldental to the above Contract, as
required by and in striat accordance with the plans and gpecifications for
the amount named in the proposal hersinafter described.

In making this proposal the Bidder hereby declares that the Addenda
which has been igsusd by the County of Nassau and has been received by him,
that all provisions thereof have been complied with in preparing hie bids.,

Name of Bidder: \I\[ELF»T%M ELetrie 0@«-;7.&“—‘ L3,
#&me as case may ne)

Bidder's Address: oo i\(e:v(-ruvw ﬁ«D "ﬂ,mwnw, N}{ {1903
Telephone: (S'l&) tfst! PL23 Date: HW# 2z, .20!&_
FAX Tele: (51(;) 4sy.p2.82- /

NOTE: IF BIDDER IS A FIRM, FILL IN THE FOLLOWING BLANKS : e

Name of Partners Regidence of Partners

NOTE: TF BIDDER IS A CORPORATION, FILL IN THE FOLLOWING BLANKS:

Crganized under the laws of the State of: l\{&:\»’ k;}WC
- [
Name of President/ﬂ-!f—-"- \w":@“\?H T. wauo

President's Domicile:
F‘kﬁr.
Name of Vice Preg: LA 7&({.,;;11’%’

Vige Pred's Domicile:

A, T A
Corporate Qfficer: H\&Hé'b?i \[j\mmm Title:f*a%ﬁ%)eummuj_

Corporate Cfficer's Domicile:

: ‘ 55T :
Corporate Officer: \I(Am \'\(a,ﬂimb ,9#—. Title: VYieg fw’:maﬁ"
Corporate Officer's Dmicue:—_
as 1y DEY) 4307405 Contract No. HE2000-03E PIN 0760 81
igac e Rl Signal System OperatidnéiBae
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" The Following Paragraphs are Applicable to the Contract

THE BIDDER AFFIRMS AND DECLARES:

1.

That the above bidder isg of lawful age and the only one lunterested
in this bid; and that no other person, firm or corporation, -ezcept
thoge herein named, hag any interest in this bid or in the Contract
propoded to be entered into.

That thiz bid is made without any understanding, agreement ox in
connection with any other person, firm or corporatlon, making a bid
for the mame work, and is in all respectsg fair and without collusmon
or fraud.

That gaid bidder is not in arrears to the County of Nagsau upon debt
or contract, and is not a defaulter, as surety or otherwise, upon
any obllgatlon to the County of Nassau. :

That no officer nor employee of the County of Nagsau, or person
whose salary is payable in whole or in part from the Counbty Treasury
is, #hall be, or become interested directly, or indirectly as a
contracting party, partner, stockholder, surety or otherwise, in
thig bid, or in the performance of the contract, or in the supplles,
materlals, equipment and work or labor to which it relates, or in
any portion of the profits thereof.

That he has carefully examined the site of the work and that, from

~ hisg own dnvestigations, has satisfied himself as to the mature and

TTegAaticn  of Tthé T Work,  thHe dhAaracte¥, quUAlltyEdd guantity of
exleting materialeg, all difficulties likely to ke encountered, the
kind and extent of equipment, other facilities needed for the
performance of the work, the general and local conditions, and all
other items which may, in any way, affect the work or its
rerformance. .

The bildder alsc declares that he has carefully examined and fully
understands all the component parts of thig Contract, that he will
execute the Contract and will completely parform it in strict
accordance with itg terms for the following prices.

Whers the work performed under this Contract invelves a trade or
occupation licensed in the County of Nassau by the Towng of
Hempstead, Oyster Bay or North Hempstead or by the Cities Glen Cove
or Long Beach, the contractor shall ba reguired to have such a
iicenge. - C

WWB%@XD%W 44 of 405 Gantract No. H62000-03E Oﬁlg{i _0.%3,
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I,

INFORMATION FPOR BIDDERS

Rejection of Bids,

A. The Commigsioner may recommend a reject of bid if:

1. The Bidder fails to furnish any of the information recquired by
the bid documents; or .if

2. The bidder misstates or comceals any material fact in the bid,
or in the sworn written statement; or if

.3. The bid does not gtrictly conform to law or the requirements

of thig contract; or if

4. The bld is conditional; or iF

5, The bid on Unit Price Contracts, in the opinion of the
Commiggioner, contains unbalanced bid prices, where the unit
prive proposed for any item exceeds the estimated cost by more
than fifteen percent (15%), or if any lump sum item bid
exceeds the estimatsd cost by more than twenty-five percent
(25%); or if

6. A determination that the bidder is not responsible iz made in
accordance with law.

Rejection of all bide and waiver of informalities.
The Commlssioner, however, reserves the xwight to recommend to

reject all bids whenever he deems it in the best interest of the
County, and also the right tb walve any informalities in a bid,

II. Unit Price Contracts, Comparison of Bids.

Bids on Unit Price Contracts will be compared on the basis of
a total bid price, arrived at by taking the sum of the

IV,

Approximate” " guantities Of T TsucH T item  wultiplied by the

corregpondiuy Unit Price, and including any Iump Sum Bid on
individual itemp, in accordance wilith the items set forth in the
bid proposal.

Bidders are warned that the Approximate Quantities of the
varicus dtems of work and wmaterial i1s estimated only, and is
given sclely to be used ap a uniform basis for the comparison of
bids. The quantities actually required to complete the contracth
work may be more or legs than estimated.

Lump Sum Contracts, Comparison of Bids.

Bids on lump Sum Contracts will be compared on the basis of
the Tump Sum Price bid adjusted for alternate prices bid, if amy,

Apprenticeship Training Program
For all contracts 1in excess of &500,000 attach here
verification letter regarding your firm's having an approved
state off New York Apprenticeship Training Program,
hort At
Sgg oy ﬁ-’\’\’?‘]-ﬁ@f“\—
1oy D 4501 405 Contract No. HG2000-03E 750.81
%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ)&%ﬁﬂ %W Signal System Oparalio@sg‘r'ﬁﬁ.e%/
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INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOQOD
OF
ELECTRICAL WORKERS
Nassau-Suffolk Counties

To Whom It May Concern:

Ref: Woelsbach Electric Corp. L.L

This will confirm that Welsbach Electric Corp. Ll.isa sig}natory cohtractor in good
standing with Local Union #25, IBEW and employ$ Local Union #25 member
electricians and is affiliated with our New Yark State Reglstered apprentlc;eshlp

Very truly yours,
L. U. #25, IBEW
evin M. Ha )
: Business Manager
KMH/rfs '

- 370 Vanderbift Motor Pkwy ¢ P.O. Box 18033 » Hauppauge, NY 11788-8633 « (631) 273-4567 o Fax'(631) 273-4773 .
= I st
ATTACHMENT #1A



MINORITY AND WOMEN’S BUSINESS ENTERPRISE
UTILIZATION GOALS

MINORITY AND WOMEN’S BUSINESS ENTERPRISE
UTILIZATION REQUIREMENTS

The New York State Department of Tramsportation has established the following
Minority Business Hnterprise (MBE) and Womsn's Business Enmferptise (WBE)
utilization goals for this contract in accordance with §5102-21 of the New York Siate
Standard Specifications. The goals are expressed as a percentage of the total bid price,

Yor Clarification of Utilization Requirements refer to New York State Specification §102-21

Minority Business Enterprise Utilization Goal — 0 percent
Women’s Business Enterprise Utilization Goal — 0 percent

Directories and/or information related to the current certifieation status of Minority and
Women’s Enterprises, can be obtained by contacting the;

New York State Department of Economic Development
Division of Minority and Women's Business Developmont
~ Albany, New York 12223
{518) 473-6442

Minority/Women’s Business Enterprise Officer

. The Bidder shall designate and enter below the name of a Minority/Women's Business
Enterprise Officer who will have the responsibility for and must be capable of
effectively administeting and promoting an active Minority/Women’s Buginess
Bnterprise Program and who must be assigned adequate authority and responsibility to

do so.
Bidder Designated M/WBE
Officer %/ M
stk T, feneo (Name, Tifle) ~Pras want /e.. 0.
Telephone Number C 51 &«') YsY.p023
RETURN THIS PAGE WITH BID
Nassau County DPW 47 0f 405 Contract No, H62000-035 PIN 0760.81
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DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE GOALS
Signal System Operations Phase 4 - 760,81

The following Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) goals have been established
for this project, The goals are expressed as & parcentage of the total bid price.

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Goal -3 percent

Since there is littls .opportunity to meet or exceed the DBE goals for this project, the
contractor shall identify a list of DBE supplier/vendors that will be used in the event
purchases need to be made relaied fo this project. Prior to equipment or supplies

© purchase the contractor shall researchthe availability of said product from an approved -
DBE supplier and if aveilable, make the purchase thru the DBE supplier.

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Officer
The Bidder shall designaie and enter below the name of a Disadvaniaged Business

Hoterprise Officer who will have the responsibility for and must be capable of
.. Stfeciively_administering and promoting an active Disadvantaged Business Enterprise

Program and who must be assigned adequate authority and responsibility to do so.

Bidder Desighated DBE Officer

)@MH P. Froass (Name, Title) “#rezipant /6 E.0.

Telephone Number ( =1 {@,) Lfgl{ , 0023

RETURN THIS PAGE WITH BID
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Maintenance and Protection of Traffic
Traffic Control Plan
Signal System Operations Phase IV

The work included in this project is related to Traffic Signal System Operations, and
therefore 1oad or lane closures will not be required for the duration of the project,

With that being said, Title 23 of the Federal Highway Administration, Department of
Transportation Code of Federal Regulations Part 630 section 1010 does not apply relating
to the need for a Maintenance and Protection of Traffic layout scheme or & Traffic
Control Plan, '

Naszau County DPW 49 of 408 Contract No: HG2000-03E PIN 0760.81
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Signal System Operations Phage IV
PIN 0760.81

NASSAU COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY CERTIFICATION

The Contractor shall certify that all work performed under this contract shall be on
Nassan County right-of-way only. At no time chaell the Contractor’s personne! or
equipment be permitted on private property. This certification shall remain In effect for
the duration of this contract.

Bidder

e Ot s o e M
J’b%ﬂ—&(ﬁ Gbue (Nams, Title) ’f’mﬁé'wr/&aa.

Telephone Number [ 51 ‘fb"-f 0023

RETURN THIS PAGE WITH BID
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BID SCHEDULE

Bids wiil be compared as stated in the proposal for bids, and as provided by law, The bldder ls referred to Division 2., Section 1.,
of the spoolfications for an interprotation of wotk performed and bid, and Divlslon 2., Section 2., for & description of the various
items delineated below, The cost of performing other kinds of work and furnishing other Idnds of materlal required and necessary
to fulfill ail the provisions of this contract in thelr present form for which no ltem is provided In the schedule below, SHALL BE
DEEMED TO HAVE BEEN INCLUDED AND DISTRIBUTED IN THE ITEMS OF THIS SCHEDULE.

OFERATIONS ITEMS:

ITEM ~ APPROX. ' FACTOR  UNITBID N

NO.  QUANTITIES DESCRIPTION (Months) PRICE AMOUNT BID

1AAB 1 Computer Hardware & o, ©e
Aneillary Equlpment %36 X (1,-:{' 5‘5’. =4 ‘2 '7' 3, { g0,

UNIT PRICE MUST BE WRITTEM IN WORDS

For S %ww:ﬁ Sealtn wwﬂ .gl%t{'}vt luéus w&ﬂﬂw MJJE

Dollars H {Cenls

o =
2828 900 Field Communication Units x 36 v 53.% =5 1 939 Ze0.
UNIT PRICE MUST BE WRITTEN IN WORDS '

Bk el dellos sd) poo pods

UDollars | Canta

et ee
3 100 M Camera Equipment %36 X Lb/ - =4 g q HT0.
UNIT PRICE MUST BE WRITTEN I WORDS

For EVL 2o/ j,ﬂa,u; cwﬁ e (LLAS

Tpoltars Cents

4 ¢ Travel Time Equipment x36 % 1 b, =g Z . e,
UNIT PRICE MUST BE WRITTEN [N WORDS

For c‘%-bw /)QWI[M ﬂ»ﬂ e ﬁ&uz'ﬂ"$

Dollars Cents

|7 %0
5 it Veriable Message Slgns x38 x ' =8 \ ; 700, —
UNIT PRICE MUST BE WRITTEN TN WORDS

For (DML rﬂl”a.ug da-eo o Ca&qS

Dailars Cents
6 LS As Ordered (furnish squipment) g 100,000.00
. e [l
7 4 Trailer Mount VMS 8lgns %36 X 42.0 - =3 ét 2, L} 0.

UNIT PRICE MUST BE WRITTEN IN WORDS

ror Fous hudeed otk dles oo mo aeads

Dollars } Cents

PIN -D76081  Page 1
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BID SCHEDULE

> =
8 1 Forklift %36 i 290, -5 12 &%
UNIT PRICE MUST BE WRITTEN [N WORDS

Por “Thice hoodued &‘6%{ Qs adl po ceds

Dollars Cenls

TIVE AND MATERIAL TTEMS:

Biddets pte harshy notified that the listing of all electrivally aperated traffic control devlees and miscellaneous devices are under
the Jurisdistion of'the Department of Public Works, and may b seen by contacting the Englreer.

Time: e \/\,.\_.ﬁ,\.uxg
20
$60,000.00 x 120 ey f e, $ 42, vop, =
{Overhead & Profit % + 100%4)
Material: O M%Lc&;%q .
s2000000  x 10  tew fer = 5. 2L, 70D,

{Overhsad & Profit ¥4+ 1009%4)

94, spo.
Subiotal of Time and Material =§ !

B
el -~ L
Subtotal of Operations Trems $ A , 37 "{ , o 6D,
- 74,000
Subtotal of Time and Material $ D00,

. eo
TOTAL BID $ Z, Yy 8 sv0.

TOTAL CR GROSS BID MUST BE WRITTEN I WORDS

o Tove pollis fone hodiad Losty ot Honon ) e bkl Jlos o
| pels ) fpots o kS

NOTE: The figure in both the Time and Matetial pareentage are not indicative of an estimate price. This figure s merely inseried
ns % hasls for bidding purposes.

PiM -07808]  Page 2
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PROPOSAL: For all work in accordance with the drawings
specifications: '

.W&‘)ﬁﬁt‘/ﬁ Fleertiie (\awga OF LT

(Erdivicual —Flem.or Corporation, as case may be)

and

Individual's Soclal Security Number _

Plem-ex Ucorporation's Federal ID Number |\ 255425}

Eixm—er- Corporation's Municipal License ID Number l0°34
§

Municipal Licensing Agency CNWWP

By W Date: l’!,w.a-& 2z, 2o\le

&

(Print). \osgert T Fomo Title: Vm;pmr/a.g,a.
7

WHERE BIDDER I8 A CORPORATION, ADD:

LML“MM——‘

ATTEST: i
- S e DT A"‘i‘i"’!’ SecTotary
{CORPCRATE)
(SEAL)
agsau County DR 55 of 408 Goniract No, H62000-03E BIN 0760.91
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Page 1 of 4
COUNTY OF NASSAU

CONSULTANT’S, CONTRACTOR’S ANID VENDOR’S DISCIOSURYE, FORM

1, Name of the Bntity: \l\[({lﬁﬁﬁw Blettlis 0@11,‘?% L,
Address; Foo Newtbuw (LP

City, State and Zip Code; /l7um~(~f e, l\f\f 1\ 903

2. Entity’s Vendor Identification Number: \1.2.3 5‘-! 25|

3. ‘Type of Business: X Public Cotp . Partnership . Joint Venture -
Litd, Liability Co Closely Held Corp Other (specify)
4, Llst names and addresses of all principals; that is, all individuals serving on the Board of

Directors or comparable bady, all partners and limited partnets, all corporate officers, all parties
of Jolnt Ventures, and all members and officers ef limited liability companies {attach additional
sheets if necessary):

] pli /#J.r_'_ e

3. List names and addresses of all shareholders, membets, or partners of the firm, Ifthe
shareholder is not an individual, list the individual shareholdres/pariners/members, Tfa Publicly
held Corporation include & copy of the 10K in lieu of completing this section,

S% kriackge EHton Q,MU-# e, Z6\F Avuac Qawwr

\J\(QSW L tATAL &aw L3 % b u)\’fbwv} DONED %E‘ADIM

Nassau County DPW 57 af 405 Centract Ne, H62000-03E PIN 0760.81
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Page 2 of 4

6. List all affiliated and related companies and their relationship to the firm entered on line
1, above (if none, enter “None®), Attach a separate disclosure form for sach affiliated or
subsidiary company that may tale part in the performance of this contract. Such disclosure shall

be updated to include affiliated or subsidiary compantes not previously disclosed that partictpate
in the performance of the contract,

g‘% ‘A’T‘l"ﬁa-yg'ﬁ) TH Lo (}(wug NG Z0VS Adr{uau ag,pau’

Uﬁww B'LP'W& Cw«r Ll L._, Lé A N}'l‘bl-w o»dmrD Q‘-ﬂ%wmwt}

7. List all lobbyists whose services were utilized at any stage in this matter (i.¢., pre-bid,
bid, post-bid, etc.). The term “lobbyist” means any and every person or organization retained,
—employed or designated by any-clisnt to-influence ~ or promote amattor- before - Nassan County; -
its agenoles, boards, coramissions, department heads, logislators or commitiess, including but not
limited 1o the Open Space and Parks Advisoty Committes and Planning Commission, Such
matters include, but are not limited to, requests for proposals, development or improvement of
real property subject to County regulation, procurements, or to ofherwise engage in lobbying as
the ferm Is defined herein, The term “lobbyist” does not include any officet, director, trustee,

employes, counse} or agent of the County of Nassau, or State of New York, when discharging
his or her official duties.

(@  Name, title, business address and telephone number of lobbyist(s):

Mowe
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(b)  Describe lobbying activity of each lobbyist, See page 4 of 4 forn complete
description of lobbying activities.

N fre

(c)  List whether and whers the person/organization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g.,
Nassau County, New York State):

Nong

8. VERIFICATION: This section must be signed by a principal of the consultent,
-centractor or Vendor avthorized as a signatory of the firm for the purpose of executing Contracts,

The undersigned affiring and so swears that he/she has read and undsrstood the foregoing
statements and they are, to histher knowledge, true and accurate.

Dated: %fm 22, 261l Signed: Wﬂ *

Print Name; é»o%‘f’t—l- T Vcbﬁﬂ-m

Title: 4@%’1 Povy” / t.g€.0.
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The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to infinence: any determination mede by the
Nasgsau County Legislature, or any membar thereof, with respect to the introduction, passage,
defeat, or substance of any local legistation or resolution; any determination by the County
Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any local legislation or resolution, whether
or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any determination by an
glected County official or an officer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement
of goods, services or construstion, including the preparation of contract specifications, including
by not limited to the preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or
administcation of a contract or with respect to the solicitation, award or administration of a grant,
loan, or agreement involvlng the disbursement of public monies; any determination made by the
County Executive, County Legisiature, or by the County of Nassau, s agencies, boards,
comumissions, department heads or committees, inchiding but not limited fo the Open Space and
- Parks Advisory Committes, the Planning Commission, with respect to the zoning, use,
development or improvement of real property subject to County regulation, or any agencies,
boatds, commissicns, department heads or committees with respeot to requests for proposals,
bidding, procurement or contracting for services for the County; any determination made by an
elected county official or ag officer or employes of the county with respect to the terms of the
gequisition ot disposition by the county of any intetest in real propetty, with respect to-a license
or permit for the use of real property of or by the county, or with respect to a franchise,
concession or revocable consent; the proposal, adoption, amendment or rejection by an agency of
amy rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any rate

~ any determination regarding the calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing;
the issuance, repeal, modification or substance of a County Executive Order; or any
determination made by an elected county official or an officer or employes of the county to
support or oppose any state or federal legislation, rale or regulation, including any determination
made to support or oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rle or
regulation, whether or not such legislation has been formally introduced and whether or not such
rule or reguletion has been formally proposed.

Naésau County DPW .
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' COUNTY OF NASSAU

LOBBYIST REGISTRATION AND DISCLOSURE FORM

1, Name of lobbyist{s)/lobbying organization: The term “lobbyist™ means any and every
persol or organization retained, employed or designated by any citent to inflyence - or promote a
matter before - Nassau County, its agencies; boards, commissions, depariment heads, legislators
ot committess, including but not limited to the Open Space and Parks Advisory Committee and
Planning Commission; or to otherwise engage in lobbying activities as the term is defined herein,
Such matters include, but are not limited to, requests for proposals, developiment or improvement
of real property subject to County regulation, procurements. The term “lobbylat” does not
include any officer, director, trustos, smployoo, sounsel or agent of the County of Nassau, or
State of Wew York, when d1sohargmg his or her official duties,

P(?N‘g

2 List whether and where the person/arganization is registered as a lobbyist (e.g., Nassau
County, New York State):

e

3 Nams, address and telephone number of client(s) by whom, or on whose behalf, the
lobbyist is retained, employed or designated:

i

Nessau County DPW - plofa0s Contract No. H62000-03E PIN 0760.81
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4, Describe lobbying activity conducted, or to be conducted, in Nassau County, and identify
client(s) for each activity lisicd. See page 4 for a complete description of lobbying activities,

P//fl*

5. The name of persons, organizations or governmental entities before whom the lobbylst
expects to lobby:

e
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VERIFICATION: The undersigned affirms and so swears that he/she has read and
understoed the foregoing statements and they are, to histher knowledgs, true and aceurate.

Dated: %ﬁ"-w 2z, 20l Signed; W

7
Print Name: }eéﬂ’H P, froso
Title: 47 NG5 0eT / (€0,
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The term lobbying shall mean any attempt to influence: any determination made by the
Nassay County Legislature, or any member thersof, with respect to the introduction, passage,
defeat, or substance of any local legislation or resolution; any determination by the County
Executive to support, oppose, approve or disapprove any local legislation or resolution, whether
or not such legislation has been introduced in the County Legislature; any determination by an
elected County official or an officer or employee of the County with respect to the procurement
of goods, services or construction, including the preparation of contract specifications, including

: by not limited to the preparation of requests for proposals, or solicitation, award or

‘ administration of a contract or with respsct to the solicitation, award or administration of & grant,

{ C T ToEn, o agieemsnt nvolving the diskursemsnt of public toties; any determination made by the—
Coutity Executive, County Legislature, or by the County of Nassau, its agencies, boatds,
commissions, department heads or coramittess, ncluding but not limited to the Open Space and
Parks Advisory Commitiee, the Planning Commission, with respect to the zonlng, use,
development or improvement of real property subject fo County regulation, or any agencies,
boards, cormmissfons, department heeds or committees with respect to requests for proposals,

* bidding, precurement or confracting for services for the Coluty; any determination niade by an
elected county official or an-officer or employes of the county with respect to the tetms of the
acquisition or disposition by the county of any interest in real propsrty, with respect to a license
or permit for the use of real property of or by the county, or with respect to a franchise,
concession or revocable consént; the proposal, adeption, amendment or rejection by an agency of
any rule having the force and effect of law; the decision to hold, timing or outcome of any rate
meking proceeding before an agency; the agenda or any determination of a board or commission;
any determination regarding the calendaring or scope of any legislature oversight hearing;
the issuance, repeal, modification or substance of 4 County Executive Order; or any

T determination made by anelottied ooty 6fﬁéi‘aﬂ"0f‘an“o‘fﬁcér"0"1‘“"e‘m‘pone'e"of'th'a"county't0" T T e ——

support ar oppose any state. or federal legislation, rule or regulation, including any determination
made to support or oppose that is contingent on any amendment of such legislation, rule or
regulation, whether or not such legisiation has been formally introduced and whether or not such
rule or tegulation has been formally proposed.

.::.".-f\léssaucbunty'DPW ’ -
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Business History Form

In addition to the submission of bidsfproposals, as applicable, each bidder/proposer shall complete and
submit this questionnaire. The questionnaire shall be filled out by the owner of a sole proprieforship or by
an authorized representative of the firm, corporation or partnership submitting the bid/proposal.

(USE ADDITIONAL SHEETS IF NECESSARY TO FULLY ANSWER THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS).
Date: }’!{M—QM 12, 2ol

1} Bidder's/Proposer's Légal Name: \J\(Etﬁévﬁbﬁ AR =g WHS daij oE LI,

2) Address of Place of Business: Zoo  Nevmouwn (e Yimvie N'-If {1803

List all other business addresses used within last five years:

[\( NG
3) Mailing Address (i differsnty___ N/&
Phone : /5‘1@ L!S'Ll. poZ%
Does the business own or rent its facilities? g@ﬁ’
4) Dun and Bradstreet number___ 0. Z3%- 3169
5) Federal LD. Number: \l.2.3 5‘;}}?3
6)  The bidder/proposer is a (check one):. Sole Proprietorship Partnership

Corporaticn _& Other (Describe)

7) Does this busingss share office space, staff, or equipment expenses with any othar business?
Yes __ No _i If Yes, please provide details;

8) Does this business control one or more other businesses? Yes __ No /i If Yes, please provide
details;

9} Does this business have one or more affiliates, and/or is it a subsidiary of, or controflad by, any other
business? Yes_}Q No ___ If Yes, provide details, \Welssatd wiaraue long o€ L0 15 &
wmw; pwieEd %eﬁamﬁm}; - SrLa t&g.ou,ﬁ, I v

10) Has the bidder/proposer ever had a bond or surety cancelled or forfeited, or a contract with Nassau
County or any other government entity terminated? Yes ___ No If Yes, state the name of
konding agancy, (if 2 bond), date, amount of bond and reasan for such cancellation or forfeiture: or
details regarding the termination (if a contract).
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11) Has the bidder/proposer, during the past seven years, basen declared bankrupt?' Yes ___ No _é
If Yes, state date, court jurisdiction, amount of liabilities and amount of assets

12) In the past five years, has this business and/or any of its owners and/or officers and/or any affiliated
business, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/ora civil anti-trust investigation by any
faderal, state or local prosecuting or investigative agency? And/or, in the past b years, have any
owner and/or officer of any affiliated business been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a
civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or local prosecuting or investigative agency, where
such Investigation was related to activities performed at, for, or an behalf of an affiliated business.
Yes _ No _X If Yes, provide detalls for each such investigation.

13) in the past 5 years, has this business and/or any of its cwners and/or officers and/or any affiliated
business been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to
federal, state and local regulatory agencies? And/or, in the past § years, has any owner and/or officer
of an affiliated business been the subject of an investigation by any government agency, Including
but not limited o federal, state and local regulatory agencies, for matters pertaining to that
individual's position at or relationship to an affiliated business. Yes ___ No_A.  [f Yes, provide
details for each such investigation.

14) Has any current or former director, owner or officer or managerial employee of this business had,
efther before or during such persan's employment, or since such empleyment if the charges
pertained to events that allegedly occurred during the time of employment by the submrttmg
~business-and allegedly related to the-conduct-of that-business:. R - S

a) Any felony charge pending? No _}i Yes __ If Yes, provids detalls for each such
charge.
b) Any misdemeanor charge pending? No —ﬁ Yes _ If Yes, provide details for each

such charge.

c) Inthe past 10 years, you been convicted, after trial or by plea, ¢f any felony andfor any
other crime, an element of which relates to fruthfulness or the underlying facts of which
related to the conduct of business? No _& Yes __ If Yes, provide details for each
such conviction '

d) Inthe past & years, been convicted, after trial or by plea, of a misdemeanor?
No _}i Yas W Yes, provide details for each such conviction.

@) In the past 5 years, been found in violalion of any administrative, statutory, or-
regulatory provisions? No _ﬁ Yes  If Yes, provide details for each such
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158) In the past (5) years, has this business or any of its owners or officers, or any other affiliated
business had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceadings with respect
to any professional license held? No_¥.  Yes_ : If Yes, provide details for each such
instance.

16) For the past (5) tax years, has this business failed to file any required tax returns or failed to pay any
applicable federal, state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water
and sewer charges? No_X Yes___ If Yes, provide details for each such year. Provide a
detailed response to all questions checked 'YES'. [f you need more space, photocopy the
appropriate page and attach it {o the questionnaire. '

Frovide a detailed response to all questions checked "YES". If you need more space, photocopy the
appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire.

17) Conflict of Interest;
a) Please disclose: i\(/ s

(i) Any material financial relationships that your firm or any firm employee has that may
create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in acting as collection
_.agent on behalf of Nassau County.

(i) Any famity relationship that any employee of your firm has with any County public
servant that may create a cofiflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest in
acting as collection agent on hehalf of Nassau County.

(iify Any other matter that your firm believes may create a conflict of interest or the
appearance of a conflict of interest in acting as a collection agent on behalf of Nassau
County.

b) Please describe any procedures your firm has, or would adopt, to assure the County that
a conflict of interest would not exist for your firm in tha future.

" Nassau County DPW 60 6f 405 Contract No. H62000-03E PIN 0760.81
Signal System Operaticns Phase IV




- NassauCounty DPW -~ -

NO TEXT ONTHIS PAGE -

Signal System Operations Phase IV

- Gontract-No. HBéODD-DSE' PIN 0760.81 -



Atiachments io Business History Form

Please provide any other information which would be appropriate and helpful In determining the
bidder's/propaser's capacity and reliability to perform these services.

A. Include a resume or detailed description of the bidder's/proposer's professional qualifications,
demonstrating extensive experience in your profession. Any prior similar experiences, and the results
of these experiences, must be identified.

Should the bidder/proposer be other than an individual, the bid/proposal should include;
) Date of formation;

i) Name, addresses, and position of all persens having a financial interest in the company,
including shareholders, members, general or limited partner,;

iiiy Name, address and position of all officers and directors of the company;
iv)  State of incorporation (if applicable);

G brrporer eves e N Q-a@am—-oz

Newspiy ceoruc log. 3 bE0 18 A
wH‘vWI PN Cﬁ}wﬁvam;}—t\j.

v)  The number of employees in the firm;
vi') ' Anﬁua! revenue bf firm; -
vii} Summary of relevant accomplishments
vili}y Copies of all state and local licenses and permits.

B. Indicate number of years in business. (up Jeats

C. Provide any other information which would be appropriate and halpful in determining the

. bidder's/proposer's capacity and refiability to perform these services,
D. Provide names and addresses for no fewer than three references for whom the bidder/proposer has

provided similar services or who are qualified to evaluate the bidder's/proposar's capability to perform

this work, |
Company \l‘(m \yom QI’ME‘ k).o."r.
Contact Person ANéMﬂf HWK—Q‘
f

Address 1‘1{0 Mol (o
City/State %mﬂomg&g , N\! 194
Telephone (&3 17 457 4333

Fax # ((a%ﬂ 234-36%%

E-Mall Address a@k’!wmm@ Yor e N}!. us
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Company }‘[W ‘IM gmnz Y.o.13

Contact Person STANE CA{fu:r’b

Address 220 Grompwopd , Swre. 204
City/State ‘AM‘r‘ff\f g :N

Telephone (&34'7 ‘{7’3}*’3 -flfgoﬁl

Fax# (£34) 5487907

E-Mail Address LLagure_ @ Yor.Srare, v, us

Company__- -f\(ﬁéﬁm Ceww DD ..

{
Contact Person %m Mmm

Address ll‘?L‘! puqﬁﬂm &vg,g.me'l“ﬁ?

City/State \n(a’%“\%w!l , N\? usqo
Telsphons ( 516) g42-04es

T (ﬂ@ﬁ”q%g -
E-Mail Address Spucsct @ Nissiu auum'\;‘f m{{. 05
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CERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION
WITH THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY
NOT RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID/PROPOSAL OR FUTURE
BIDS/PROPOSALS, AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE FALSE
STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL CHARGES.

l, l«ow‘fH T. fonte , being duly sworn, state that | have read and understand all the
items contained in the foregoing pages of this questionnaire and the following pages of attachments; that
I supplied full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my knewledge, information and
belief; that I will notify the County in writing of ahy change in circumstances occurring after the
submission of this questionnaire and before the execution of the contract; and that all information
supplied by me is true to the best of my knowledge, information and belief. | understand that the County
will rely on the information supplied in this questionnaire as additional inducement to enter into a contract
with the submitting business entity.

. . v 3 EQ . : o . .
Sworn to before me this 22" day of VWW 20 e

‘DARLENE KUMMER
Notary Public, State of New Yorit

No. 01KUG096716

Notary{Public” ' jified in Suffolls County
WL/ Gmnﬁlm Elxpims August 4, 2012

Name of submitting business: \J‘(E\—W ELetri e &""‘%75‘: L.
By: &v%‘?ﬂ 3. Fonie _

Print pame -

%/A/%

$fanature

4&6@(9@#?/0_.&—.0.
Title

05; 22 2o0{lp

Date
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PRINCIPAL QUESTIONNAIRE FORM

All questions on these questionnaires must be answered and the answers typewritten or printed in ink. If you
need more space to answer any guastion, make as many photocopies of the appropriate page(s) as necassary
and attach them to the guestionnalre.

GOMPLETE THIS QUESTIONNAIRE CAREFULLY AND COMPLETELY. FAILURE TO SUBMIT A
COMPLETE QUESTIONNAIRE MAY MEAN THAT YOUR BID/ PROPOSAL WILL. BE REJECTED AS NON-
RESPONSIVE AND [T WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED FOR AWARD

&m‘&.‘fH Y. fionto 7&?5:0@1\47/{1-6.0.

1. Principal Name

Date of birth

Home address

City/state/zip

Business address Zeov wewnwy Lo
City/state/zip __ Vunfwl@f_, Ny . 1!?}03
‘Te[ep.ho.ne { 51) Ysy. oof'z,?-
Other presant addrass{es) {owe
City/state/zip -

Telephone -

List of other addresses and telephone numbers attached

... Posliions held insubmitting.business.and starting .date.of each (check.zll.applicable) ..o

President _oZ / 15 1266 2Treasurer I

Chairman of Board / / Shareholder / /
Chief Exec. Officer _o- /15 2002-Secretary il
Chief Financial Officer _!l 1 §~ II?Q‘? Partner [
Vice President_% /_[ / 1942 I
(Othen) :

3. Do you have an equity interest in the business submitting the questionnzire?
NO _(»é_ YES ___ If Yes, provide details.

4.  Are there any outstanding loans, guarantees or any other form of security or lease ar any other type of
contribution made in whole or in part between you and the business submitting the questionnaire? NO
X YES __ If Yes, provide detalls,

5. Within the past 3 years, have you been a principal owner or officer of any business or not-for-profit
organization other than the one submitting the guesticnnaire? NO ﬁ YES ___; If Yes, provide details,

6. Has any governmental entity awarded any contracts to a business or organization listed in Section 5 in
the pasi 3 years while you were a principal owner or officer? NO % YES ____ lf Yes, provide detalls.
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NOTE: An affirmative answer is required below whether the sanction arcse automatically, by operation of law,
or as a result of any action taken by a government agency.

Provide a detalled response to all questions checked "YES". If you need more space, photocopy the
appropriate page and attach it to the questionnaire,

7. Inthe past (5) years, have you andfor any affiliated businesses or not-for-profit organizations listed in
Section 5 in which you have heen a principal owner or officer:

a. Been debarred by any government agency from entering into contracts with that agency?
NO x YES If Yes, provide details for each such instance.,

b. Been declared in default and/or terminated for cause on any contract, and/or had any contracts
cancelled for cause? NO _ X YES____ If Yes, provide details for each such instance.

¢. Been denied the award of a contract and/or the opporiunity to bid on & contract, including, but not
limited to, failure to meet pre-qualification standards? NO 7& YES ___ f Yes, provide details
for each such instance.

d. Been suspended by any government agency from entering into any contract with it; and/or is any
action pending that could formally debar ordtherwise affect such business's ability to bid or propose
on cantract? NO g YES ___ If Yes, provide details for each such instance.

8. Have any of the businesses or organizations listed in response to Question 5 filed a bankruptcy petition
and/er been the subject of involuntary bankruptcy proceedings during the past 7 years, and/or for any
portion of the last 7 year period, been in a state of bankruptey as z result of bankruptcy proceedings
initiated moere than 7 years ago and/ot is any such businass now the subject of any pending bankruptcy
proceedings, whenever Initiated? If 'Yes', provide details for each such instance. (Provide 2 detailed

--response fo all guestions checked "YES™" If-you need more space,-photocopy the appropriate page-and- -~~~

attach it to the questionnaire.)

a) Is there any felony charge pending against you? NO _’}é YES __ If Yes, provide details for
each sugh charge.

b) Is there any misdemeanocr charge pending against you? NO X YES __ If Yes, provide
details for each such charge.

c) s there any administrative charge pending against you? NO ‘é YES ___ I Yes, provide
details for each such charge.

d) Inthe past 10 years, have you heen convicted, after trial or by plea, of any felony, or of any other
crime, an element of which relates to truthfulness or the underlying facts of which related to the
conduct of business? NO _ﬁ YES __ If Yes, provide dstails for each such conviction.

e) Inthe past 5 years, have you been convicted, after trial or by plea, of @ misdemeanor? NO X
YES __ fYes, provide details for each such conviction.

f} In the past 5 years, have you been found in violation of any administrative or statutory charges?
NO _¥ YES___ IfYes, provide detalls for each such accurrence.

R R SURREY RSN RS
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10.

11.

12,
-federal, state or local taxes or other assessed charges, including but not limited to water and sewer

In addition to the information provided in response to the previous questions, in the past 5 years, have you
been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation by any federal, state or
local prosecuting or investigative agency and/or the subject of an investigation where such investigation
was related to activities performed at, for, or on behalf of the submitting business entity and/or an affiliated
business listed In response to Question 57 NO __X__ YES __  If Yes, provide details for each such
investigation.

In addition to the information provided, in the past & years has any business or organization listed in
response to Question 5, been the subject of a criminal investigation and/or a civil anti-trust investigation
andfor any cther type of investigation by any government agency, including but not limited to federal, state,
and local regulatory agencies while you were a principal owner or officer? NO YES_ - IfYes;
provide details for each such investigation.

In the past 5 years, have you or this business, or any other affiliated business listed in response to
Question 5 had any sanction imposed as a result of judicial or administrative proceedings with respect to
any professional license held? NO_}S__ "YES ___ If Yes; provids details for each such instance.

For the past & tax years, have you failed to file any required tax returns cr feiled fo pay any applicable

charges? NO 2§ YES __ If Yes, provide details for each such year.
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GERTIFICATION

A MATERIALLY FALSE STATEMENT WILLFULLY OR FRAUDULENTLY MADE IN CONNECTION WITH
THIS QUESTIONNAIRE MAY RESULT IN RENDERING THE SUBMITTING BUSINESS ENTITY NOT
RESPONSIBLE WITH RESPECT TO THE PRESENT BID/PROPOSAL OR FUTURE BIDS/PROPOSALS,
AND, IN ADDITION, MAY SUBJECT THE PERSON MAKING THE FALSE STATEMENT TO CRIMINAL
CHARGES.

l, 5(0957 HT. G—DMD , being duly sworn, state that | have read and understand all the items
contained in the foregoing pages of this questionnaire and the following pages of attachments; that | supplied
full and complete answers to each item therein to the best of my knowledge, information and bafief; that | will
notify the County in writing of any change in circumstances occurring after the submission of this questionnaire
and before the execution of the contract; and that alf informaticn supplied by me is true to the best of my
knowledge, information and belief. | understand that the County will rely on the information supplied in this
questionnaire as additional inducement to enter info a contract with the submitting business entity.

: p
Sworn to before -methisﬁ-"ﬂ"'day of %MM 20k

@Q/K,/ "DARLENE KUNMER

Motary Public, State of bew York

Nota bl 7 Mo. 01KUB096716
’ U Qualitisd in Suffolk County

Commiosion Expires August 4, 2019

\P(ae@n—w ELECCMA &w. of LT,
Name of submitting business

\MH V. oo

o %W -

Signaturs

‘/i"w'%wm /ﬂ-é.o.
Title /

0% , 22 ; 20l

Date
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PROPOSAL

MacBride Fair Employment Principles

NONDISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT IN NORTHERN IRELAND:
MACBRIDE FAIR EMPLOYMENT PRINCIPLES
in accordance with Chapter 807 of the Laws of 1382 the bidder, by submission of this
bid, certifies that it or any individual or legal entity in which the bidder holds a 10% or
greater ownership interest, or any individual or legal entity that holds a 10% or greater
cwnership interest in the bidder, either; (answer yas or no to one or both of the following,

as applicable),
(1) have business operafions in Northern [reland,

Yes __ No TX_

(2) shall take lawful steps in good faith to conduct any business operations they
have in Northern lreland in accordance with the MacBride Fair Employment
Principles relating fo nondiscrimination in employment and freedom of
workplace opportunity regarding such operations in Northern retand, and
shall permit independent monitoring of thelr compliance with such’ F’rmmpf

if yes:

Yes __ No__
\I‘(’%aw AV am-x W LT
{Contractor's Signature) (Nama of Business) — © . -
éms@m V. frone
Ve \Dé‘“’/a‘g‘o
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PROPOSAL

IRAN DIVESTMENT ACT — CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to New York State Finance Law §165—a, Iran Divestment Act 0f 2012, the Office of General
Services is required to post on its web site hitp://www.ogs.11y.gov/about/regs/docs/I istofBntities.pdfa
list of persons who have been determined to engage in investment activities in Iran (“the List™), as
defined in that Act. Under Public Authorities Law § 2879-c, Iranian Energy Sector Divestment, the
Authority, may not enter into or award a Contract unless it obtains a certification from a Bidder, who
shall check the box and make the certification in Subparagraph a, below, that they are not on the List.
If that certification cannot be made, the Authority may consider entering into a Contract, on a case by
case basis if the Bidder checks the box and makes the certification in Subparagraph b, below, that their
Iran investment is ceasing.

For purposes of this provision, a person engages in investment activities in Iran if: (A} the person
provides goods or services of twenty million dollars or tnore in the energy sector of Iran, including a
person that provides oil or liquefied natural gas tankers, or products used to construct or maintain
pipelines used to transport oil or liquefied nataral gas, for the energy sector of Iran; or {B) the person
is a financial institution that extends twenty million dollars or more in credit to another person, for
forty-five days or more, if that person will use the credit to provide goods or services in the energy
sector in Iran.

The Certification is as follows:
a. Certification that the Bidder is not on the List: Each person, where person
means natural person, corporation, company, limited liability company, business
association, partnership society, trust, or. any ofher nongovernmental entity,
. organization, or group, and cach person signing on behalf of any other perty, .. . ... ..

certifies, and in the case of a joint bid or proposal or partnership each party thereto
certifies as to its own organization, under penalty of perjury, that to the best of its
Jnowledge and belief that each person is not on the list created pursnent to peragraph
(b) of subdivision 3 of section 165-a of the State Finance Lew, or,

b. Certification that the Bidder’s invesiment in Iran is ceasing: The person
cannot make the certification in Subparagraph &, above, but asks the Authority to
congider them for award of the Contract by certifying, under penalty of perjury, that
the person’s investment activities in fran were made before April 12, 2012; the
person’s investment activities in fran have not been expanded or renewed after April
12, 2012; and the person has adopted, publicized and is implementing a formeal plan
to cease its investment activities in Iran and to refrain from engaging in any new
invesiments in Iran.

W H&%H’?/Z Aol Leeeu? Fronio mewr/ﬂ-aa

Signature/Date Print Name and Positicn
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U.S, DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE |
OFFICE OF JUSTICE PROGRAMS
QFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER

~ Certification Regarding
Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion
Lowser Tier Covered Transactions
(Sub-Recipient}

This cerfification is required by the regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment
and Suspension, 28 CFR Part 87, Section 67.510, Particlpants' responsibilities. The regulations
ware publishad as Part VIl of the May 26, 1988 Fedaral Reglster {pages 19160-18211).
(BEFORE COMPLETING CERTIFICATION, READ INSTRUCTIONS ON REVERSE)
(1) The prospective lower tier parilcipant certifies, by submisslan of this propasal, that nelther It
nor its principals are presenfly debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, daclarsd
lnellgible, or voluntarly excluded from parficipation In this transaction by any Federal
department of agency.
{2) Where the prospaective jower ter participant is unable to cerfify to any of the statements in
this cerﬁﬁcgﬂon,_ sugh prcs_spective particlpant shall attach an explanation fo th[s prpp_osal. .

\'m\’ﬂ 7. ﬁoMo 4&,@519@41*/@.(5.0.

Nams and Tile of Authorized Representative / iy
/ -
3/&#0! 4
Dats

Signature®”

\J‘(E'L‘;‘r’&ﬁw BleeaMe. Haw 06 LI ST S

Name of Drganizatlon

ﬁ.oo I(G.‘W‘rbmf ﬂ.p Tbﬁqn(‘amf N\/ 11505

Address of Organization

manae OJP FORM 4061/1 (REV, 2{89) Previous edltions are obsolete
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Instructions for Certification

1. By signing and subniitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier participant Is providing the
cetiffication set out below,

2. The certification in this clause is a matsrial representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when
this transaction was entsred Into. If it is later determined thet the prospective lower tler participant
knowingly rendered an erroneous cartification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal
Government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available
remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

3. The prospective lowsr tier particlpant shall provide immediats written notice to the person to which thls
proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its cerlification was
erronecus when submitted or has become erronsous by reason of changed circumstances.

4.- The terms "covered fransaction," "debarred," "suspanded," "inaligible,” "lower tier covered transaction,”
"particlpant,” "persen,” "primary covered transaction,” "prinmpal " "nroposes,” and "voluniarly excluded,” as
used In this clause, have the meanings set out In the Definitlons and Coverage sections of rules
Implementing Executive Order 12549,

5. The prospective lower fier participant agrees by submiltting this proposal that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall nat knowingly enter Into any lower tier covered transaction with
a person who Is debarred, suspanded, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered fransaction, unless authorized by the department or agerncy with which this transaction eriginated.

6. The prospective lower tler pariicipant further agrees by submitfing this proposal that it will include the
clause titled, "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, naligiblifty and Voluntary Exclusion — Lower
Tler Covered Transaction," without medification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations
for lower tler covered transactions.

.7, A participant In a covered iransagiion may rely upoh a. cert:ﬁca’uon of a prospective partlcipant inalowsr

tler covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, inelighle, or voluntarily excluded from the
covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A -participant may decide the

method and frequency by which it determines the eligibliity of its principals, Each participant may check the
Nongrocurement List,

8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of reports In
“order to render in good faith the certification required by this clausa. The knowledge and information of a

participant is not required fo exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
sourse of business daalings.

8. Except for transactions: authotized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a cavered
transaclion knowingly enters info & lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended,
debarred, ineligible, or voluntary excluded from participation in this transaction, In addition to other
remedles available to the Federal GCovernment, the department or agency with which this transaction
originated may pursue avallable remedies, including suspension and/or debarment,
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PROPOSAL: For all - work in accordance with the drawings and
specifications:

\!(’Le‘r@m—f et daa-,p BF |
(Endrvtduai—Fam or@w as case may be)

Individual's Soclal Security Number -

Firm or Corporation's Federal ID Number . 23s5Y25
I

Firm or Corporation';s Municipal License ID Number l&z?tf
Municipal Licensing Agency cHg‘Meeﬂsz
By': ,1fﬁfi€/¢fii§2f Date: Fkhu4iiqékﬂQ
. B . . . I L ' - T
(Print) \/ﬂ%VH‘ T. Fuefbw Title: '?Mmmﬂ”/m
li

WHERE BIDDER IS A CORPORATICN, ADD

e i nns e Laiemsd e e s e e o) e @ s e fled B 4T i e T LS e S e e = e ATTEST -
74{3!’ Se‘ecreta.ry

Miere Az

(CORPORATE )
(SEAL)

DP 93 of 405 Contract No. HG2000-03E 760,
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. QUALIFICATION STATEMENT

Note: All blankg in the form are to be filled in. Where blanks are not
applicable to your firm, so indicate in each instance.

1. How many years hag your Eirm been in the business under your present
buginess name? 0 Ygias

2, How many years experlence in the construction work of a similar

type ae this contract has your f£irm had;

a. a8 a Prime Contractor {20 YERnG

b, as a Subcontractor [0 om5
3. Liet below the comstruction projects your firm has under way as of

this date:
Contract Class Percent Name and Address of Ouwner

Amount - of work Completed or Contracting Officer

Sew Wﬁm’*l

{uge additional blank gheets if additional space iz necespary)

4. List the projects which your firm as a firm has performed in the
past few years which you feel will gualify you for this work:

Contract Class Peraent Name and Address of Owner
TrrTAmount ol work T T Conplated dr”ContractiﬁgWOfficer”““”““““

\ 42, 200," C,w.&mm A1 NTEN A SLE q NASS AU

151,207 Hiszms

(]
L5, §e2.” " tﬁ? ot fondc-
?fz‘ { * N
ff !a{? [ku

.
526,560,
(uge additional blank sheets if additional gpace is necessary)

5. Have you:
- a. ever failed to complete any work awarded to You? ND
If go; identify the project, the owner, the contract amount,
the circumstances and date of all such faillures to complste.

bh. ever besen defaulted on a contract? 4]
If so; identify the project, the owner, the contract amount,
the circumstances and the date of all default actions

T L XL RNy

Ct)nlract No. HBZGUU 03E %I %{
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ever been declared a non-regponsible bildder by any
municipality or public agency? No

If go; identify the project, the owner, the contracdt amount,
the circumgtances and the date of all sguch declaraticns

ever been barred Ffrom bidding municipal or public
contracktg? 0

If go; ildentify the municipality oxr public agency, the
clrocunstances, date and term of digbarment for all debarments.

{uge additlonal blank sheets if additional space is necessary)

6. Hag any officer, partner or primcipal of your firm ever bean on
cfficer, partmer or principal of sgome other firm:

2,

that failed to complete a constructilon contract? Nb
If so, state name of individual and identify the name of firm,
the project, the owner, the contract amount, the clrcumgtances
and the date of all such.fallures to compTete for all

principals of the firm,

that has ever been defaulted on a contract? No

If go; state the nmame of the individual and identilfy the
name of the firm, the project,; the owner, the contract amount,
the circumstances and the date of all default actiong for all
principals of the firm.

that hag ever been declared a non-responsible bidder by any
municipality or public agency? 0

If so; state the mame of the individual and ldentify the name
of the firm, the project, the owner, the contract amount, the
circumgtances and the date of all such declarations for all
principals of the firm.

ﬁﬁé%ﬂ§8ﬁ¥g§10ﬁﬁbyq o esordos ConhactNorHSZOOODSE 5%¥% %
ase IV
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d. that has ever been barred from bidding wmunicipal. or public
contracts? No
If sc; state the nams of the individual and identify the name
of the firm, the municipality or public agency, the
circumstances, date and term of debarment for all debarments
for all principals of the firm,

(uze additional blank sheets if additional space is necessary)

7. Has any officer or partner of your firm ever failed to complete a
congtruction contract handled im bis name? 0

If po, state name of individual, name of owner and reason therefor:

8. Discloge amy and all wviolations of the Prevailing Wage and
Supplemental Payment Regulrements of the Labor Law of New York

State.
Nowe

9. Disclose any and all other Labor Law Violationg, including, but not
limited to, child lebor wiolations, failure to pay wages, or
unemployment imgurance tax delinquencies within the past five vears.

Nm!(é

10. In what other lines of business are you financially ilnterested?

Nowe . WersBaon Beerml- Cosvf. W LT 15 R u')\—\vu)7 DG

%mmswwr«j of a«laoﬂ_, C&«mﬁ,mc.

=208 of 495 - T
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11. Wwhat is the construction experience of the prineipal individuals
of your Filrm?

Pregent Years of Magnltude In
Individual's Pogition or Construction and type what
Name Office Experience of work Capacity
gfa%‘m Y. fiepuo 7m:pm/ag.o. 79 Jenns Glﬁ’tf\;fi;ﬂfﬁtr[’)@ﬁ’% f:lwhﬁw/u T
) . {
v, Ve Sr. o Vg et 5T Yo g P “‘k“‘“/ e
g !
1tz et 22 4epns “
Dinc e T Fues Mo
i WA
Aﬁw@fcy/kmsum L9 a5
ka \(W?m ’ L/o femﬁ n Elestrm b LA&MC,'

W \Kw‘@“] Fugamreeent

{use additional blank sheets if additional space is necessmary)

T2, Ligt below'the‘eduipment that you own that ig available for the
proposed work, giving present location where it may be imgpected:
Item Degcription, 8ize Years of Pradernt
Capacity, Yeaxr, etec, Sarvice Location

See vamﬁt

(use additional blank sheets if additionsl space is necesgary)

NOTE: Should the equipment be moved from the above menticned location,

the submitted hereby agrees upon request of the County to state
the new location where same may bs found,

13, If any of the above equipment 1s covered by chattel mortgage,
conditional bill of sale, lien, or like encumbrande, gtate the
complete detalls as to nature and amount of encumbrance, the name
and addregs of the holder, ecta.

A

ﬂ;-n-4u3emaddit1@naln

wb@f@flfiiiﬁ%-ﬁé?ébé’?@ijﬁ--ﬂaddi—'t-i'onaih-r—e:e—p-ée&e5=i-é;=‘-‘-3i=1’-e-ci e'fs-s-a-ﬁy’
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VWELSBAUH ELEG ITRIUG COURF. OF L.1.

- Equipment and Vehicle List

Vehicle # Description Vehicle 1D #
2 2002 FORD PICK, RD 1FDWF36L.22EAB4229
3 1998 MITSU FLAT, WH JWEBBF1H3WL001578
4 1989 FORD PICK, BLK 2FTHF26H7KCB55280
B 1997 FORD SUBN, WH 1FTJE3ALOVHAB2602
7 1997 FORD VAN, WH 1FTJE34LBVHABG646
12 2004 FORD VAN, WH 1FTSE34L34HA10870
14 1990 INTER VAN, WH THTSDTVYNT7LHZ28704
15 2000 FORD VAN, WH 1FTSS34LTYHAT4506
16 2001 FREIG UTIL, WH 1FVABTBVE1HF86187
17 2000 FORD UTIL, WH 1FDAF5658YEE28482
18 1985 INTER UTIL, WH 1HTLDUXP5FHAB3588
21 1997 GMC UTIL, WH 1GDM7H1J5WI510568
22 2001 FORD VAN, WH 1FTSE34L11HAZ6027
23 1987 FORD VAN, WH 1FTJE34L7VHAS7090
24 1897 FORD VAN, WH 1FTJE34LOVHAST092
25 1997 FORD VAN, WH {1FTJE34LEVHAS7095 -
26 1888 INTER FLAT, WH THTLCCENSJHE38161
27 1888 INTER FLAT, WH THTLCCENSJI538163
26 1992 FORD PICK, WH 2FTHF25H2NCA0568
29 1992 FORD VAN, WH " 3FCLF59MINJAQ1646
31 2002 FORD UTIL, WH 1FDAFB7F42EBB3513
32 1999 FCRD UTIL, WH 1FDXFAGFOXEES7201
3 1996 FORDUTILWH
35 2002 FCRD VAN, WH 1FTSE34L42HA43194
37 1997 FORD VAN, WH JFTJEIALAVHAS70S1
39 2003 FORD VAN, WH 1FTSE34L53HC06274
40 2010 FORD VAN, WH 1FTSE3EL4ADA12693
41 2004 FORD UTIL, WH 1FDXFABS44EDB4763
42 1980 INTER UTIL, WH 1HTSDZZN7LH261380
43 2002 FORD VAN, WH 1FTNE24L12HB06BA48
44 1998 GMC UTIL, WH 1GDM7HI1J7TWI501060
45 2008 INTER FLAT, WH THTMMAAL4BHE70717
48 1897 FORD VAN, WH 1ETJE34L2VHAST093
47 1997 FORD VAN, WH 1FTJE34LAVHASTO94
48 2001 FREIG UTIL, WH 1FVABTBV41HF 86186
49 2002 FORD SUBN, WH 1FTSE34L72HB24786
50 1992 FORD PICK, GY 1FTEF25YBNLA4T040
51 2000 FORD VAN, WH 1FTSE34L7YHAZ29608
52 2000 FORD VAN, WH 1FTSE34L3YHAZE735
53 2000 FORD VAN, WH 1FTSEL2YHAT5418
54 1997 FORD FLAT, WH 1FDKF37F1VEBS2666
55 1997 FORD VAN, WH 1FTHS2428VHA32734

03/20/2016, 10:16 PM

JFTIESAHTTHBEB867
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- Equipment and Vehicle List

WELSBACH ELECTRIC CORP. of L.I.

2000 TO/BR TRLR, BK

03/20/2016, 10:16 PM

Vehicle # Description Vehicle 1D #
56 1935 GMC DUMP, WH 1GDM7H1J05J500381
58 1995 NTER UTIL, WH 1HTSDAAP5SHB05959
60 1997 FORD FLAT, WH 1FDKF37F5SVEBG4384
63 2000 FORD VAN, WH 1FTNE24L3YHB25790
65 2001 FORD VAN, WH 1FTSE34LOTHA41098
66 2001 FORD VAN, WH 1FTSE34L91HA41087
67 2000 FORD VAN, WH 1FTSE34L1YHB317268
68 2000 FORD VAN, WH 1FTSE34L3YHB31744
70 2003 MITSU DELY, WH JWECPG1SX3L008358
72 2002 FORD SUBHN, WH IFTSE34LX2HAS2092
73 2001 FORD VAN, WH 1FLSES5L41HBOB0ST
74 1998 WE/CA TRLR, WH TWC200E2XW1080989
75 1999 FORD VAN, WH 1FTSE34LXXHB 18343
76 1995 FORD FLAT, WH 1FDKF37F4SEA5S0837
77 2000 FORD VAN, WH 1FTS834L2YHBAT7365
78 2004 FORD FLAT, WH 1FDWF36LO4ECSE122
79 1997 FORD SUBN, WH 1FDKF37FOVEB42485
80 1983 CUSTOFLAT, YW 405183
81 2003 FORD VAN, WH TFTNE24WE3HRB31323
82 2004 FORD VAN, WH 1FTNE24WT4HAD1638
83 2001 GMC UTIL, WH 1GDJG31RE11198387
84 2008 FORD UTIL, WH 1FDAFS7RX8EB74138
B8 e e YT FORD UTIL-WH e
86 1997 FORD UTIL, WH 1FDNF80CEYYAD3390
87 1998 INTER UTIL, WH 1HTSEAANEWHAL31646
89 2004 FORD VAN, WH 1FTSE34LI4HATTE31
90 2000 GMC UTIL, WH 1GDM7H1CaYJ505828
&1 1999 FORD UTIL, BK 1FDAFS6FOXEC49242
92 1999 INTER UTIL, WH 1HTSCAANOXHB50543
93 2001 INTER UTIL, WH THTSDAANGT1H3IBE810
94 2001 INTER UTIL, WH THTSCABN21H283403
95 1992 GMC RBM, WH 1GOM7HTJ5NJ519576
a6 2001 INTER UTIL, WH 1HTSCABNB1H320638
97 1997 INTER UTIL, WH 1HTSDAAR1YVH488659
98 1984 FORD UTIL, WH 1FDXK87UIEVATB409
99 2000 FORD PICK, WH 1FDWF36SXYEBBS690
102 1997 FORD DUMP, WH 1FDKF37F4VEAS2384
103 1897 FORD DUMP, WH 1FDKF37FOVEAT 2095
104 1997 FORD DUMP, WH 1FOKF3TFAVEALZ390
105 2001 INTER UTIL, WH 1HTSDAAR41HI69823
106 1888 CURTI FLAT, YW 881056212E
{TBUTO716WV002611

L AEDNEBOCIVVADZ095- - e e e
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VVIELW LW T Ll T WAy

PRSI =

~oo o Equipment and Vehicle List -

Vehicle # Dascription Vehicle ID #
110 1999 FRHT UTIL, WH 1FVEHFBAXXHAA3047
112 1966 TRUCC TRLR, YW 1728
1156 1993 FORD VAN, WH 1FTNE2420XHB18124
117 2000 FORD VAN, WH 1FTSE34LXYHB26864
118 2001 INTER UTIL, WH THTSCABNI1H333284
119 2008 FORD UTIL, WH 1FDXF46R18ECA5666
120 1989 BELSH FLAT, YW 18JFO1215K 1020736
121 2006 JTC TRLR, WH JTC200671.5685R 181
122 1988 CURTILTRL, YW 881063912
123 2000 SHERM TRLR, YW 123WM1528Y1T24088
124 2006 JTCS TRLR, NG CL JTC20067L5685R 153
125 2001 INTER UTIL, WH 1HTSCABNG1H333270
126 1894 FORD UTIL, YW 1FDLF47MXREA44238
128 1999 INTER T/CR, WH THTSCABNBXHE38584
129 2001 INT UTIL, WH {HTSDAANO1H356208
130 2006 FORD VAN, WH' 1FTSE34L46HB44032
13 2006 FORD VAN, WH 1FTSE341.26DB45655
132 2008 FORD VAN, WH 1FTSE34L88DA41643
134 2062 FORD VAN, WH 1FDXF47552E011839
180 2004 FORD VAN, WH 1FTRE14W14HA14915
160 2001 FORD 408D, GL 1FAFPS3UB1A161747
163 2001 FORD PICK, GR 1FTNF21L01ECB2248
171 1992 CUSTO TRLR, OR NY42003
177 2003 FORD VAN, WH 1FTSE34LX3HB80500
178 2003 FORD VAN, WH 1FTSE34L13HBE0465
179 2003 FORD VAN, WH 1FTSE34L53HB6005E
166 2012 FORD SUBN, BK 1FMCUSDG5CKAT6566
187 2014 FORD SUBN, GY 1FMCUSGB3EUE32085
188 2014 FORD SUBN, WH 1FMCUSGX2EUEDN5085

0372042016, 1016 PM
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DATE (MMDDIYYYY]

B Raips TR o , . e e
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE - 0015

THIS CERTIFICATE I$ ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY ANMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE GOVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S) AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUGER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPCORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION I8 WAIVED, subject to
the terms and condlilons of the policy, certain policles may require an endorsement. A statament an this certificate does not confer rights to the
certlflcate holder In lleu of sush endorsement(s).

PRODU CONTACT
ER NAME!
MARSH UBA, INC. PHONE | EAY
1156 AVENYE OF THE AMERICAS | [AJC, No, Bxtlt . {AIC, Na):
NEW YORK, NY 100 E%‘t}a‘éss-
Atz Emiar. Cerlrequesl@marsh com/Fax: 203-229-6767 ' *
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIG i
134579-Welsh-CON-15-18 7 INSURER A ; Continental Gasualty Compeny 20443
INSURED . Ity Compeny Of Raading, P
WELSBACH ELECTRIC CORP.OF LI, - sures o : Amercan Castally Compeny Of Reading, Pa 20427
300 NEWTOWN ROAD INSURER ¢ ; Transporlation insuranca Co 20404
PLAINVIEW, NY 11603 WSURER B :
INSURER B |
INSURERF : .
COVERAGES CGERTIFICATE NUMBER: WYC-007137262-07 REVISION NUWMBER:1

THIS 1S TO GERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANGE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOGUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES. DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS QOF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUGED BY FAID CLAIMS.

k ADDL|SUBR] o]
iy TYPE OF INSURANGE INSD | WvD POLICY NUMBER OOy 45»15‘['3%% LIMITS
1A | X | COMMERCIAL SENERAL LIABILITY GL 4025758461 - {1oodRols (100162018 EACH OCCURRENCE i3 2,000,000
3 DAMAGE TO RENTED
JCLATMS—MADE OCCUR PREMISES (Ea coourence) | § 1,009,000
- MED EXP (Any one persan) 5 26,000
| PERSONAL & ADVINJURY | § 2,000,000
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE 5 6,000,000 |
rovoy | X 58% [ ]ice , PRODUGCTS - COMPIOR AGG | 5 14,000,000
OTHER: ' P §
A | AUTCMOBILE LIABILITY BUA 4025756492 102112015 [10/01/2016 G[E%'\gg‘:g" EPmSINGLE LIMIT 5 2,000,000
X | anyAUTO BODILY INJURY {Per pafson) § §
| ALL OWNED SCHEDULED
: AUTngi,,,,,_‘ - AUTOS e || BODIY IIURY (Peracddent)i S
% Y| NON-OwsED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
|7 | HIRED AUTOS AUTCS (Per eccldent)
Auto Physlcal Damage 5 Included
| UMBRELLA LIAR || OCCUR EACH (XSCURRENGE 3
EXCESS LIAB GLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE 3
DED | |RE|'ENTION$ $
B |WORKERS COMPENSATION WC 4025756380 (ADS) 1000772018 10/0172016 ¥ g‘%ﬁm‘rﬁll ngiH_
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YiIn 2016
B ANYIPROP,E%%W;%[EEFSEXEGWWE NI WC 4025756384 (CA) 1000172015 1001720 E.L EAGH ACCIDENT $ 1,000,000
G ?h;:nﬁggm s NE1 F}{ t WG 4025756377 (AZ, OR, Wi} foniRols  [10RU201E | g1 pisease - E4 EMPLOYEE] 5 1,000,000
b T
RSN o o OPERATIONS below EL. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 1,000,000
T

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS ! LOCATIONS | VEHICLES {ACORD 404, Additional Remarhs Seheduls, may be attached IF mers space is required)

RE: JOB NQ. 277 - TRAFFIC 8/GNAL S5YSTEM OPERATIONS PHASE I - CONTRACT #H8200001E
ADDITIONAL INSURED UNDER ALL POUIGIES {EXCEPT WORKERS COMPENSATION & EMPLOYERS LIABILITY} WHERE RECUIRED BY CONTRACT; COUNTY OF NASSAU, ALL MUNIGIPALITIES,

MURICIPAL SUB-DIVISIONS & FEE OWNERS OF PROPERTIES ON WHICH WORK 15 DONE

CERTIFICATE HOLDER : CANGELLATION
NASSAU COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
BUREAU OF REAL ESTATE INSURANCE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NCTICE WILL. BE DELIVERED IN
1 \WEST STREET ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS,

MINEQLA, NY 11501

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
of Marsh USA Inc.

o - T PR, [

Y i Sisimelstér iR = .&!Wm{eg
E R STt 2.1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATICON: Al rights resewed -
ACORD 25 (2014/01) The ACORD name and iogo are reglstered marks of ACORD :ﬂ;

gm,\(lq | '-_cﬂ.mwﬂw




14, In what manner have you inspected this proposed work?
Explain in detadil,

\A)cz (L«waﬂﬂ- AlTas THE sTEH. VaNTeENANLE \MD% H’(QZ-ODDD(G‘
A,{p @Kmu J,Mmafmf» Unperst ’fu&z,foaz,l-’

(use additional blank shests 1f additional space is necegsary)

15, Explain your plan and lay-out for performing the proposed work.

fu wobke 1o e Y ol Assspme T e Gurser Dosun
—-A‘ND “THe W Qﬁw&akﬂoﬁ NOQWW’D WTH THE (': TAAST

' 1&. If a contract ls awarded or a permit ig issued, to your firm, who
wilill have the personal gupervigion of the work? Attach regsume.

Ao Be Wp@'ﬁ ot A‘wm?

17, Insurance carrled by your firm:

%quf*g

e TN it R e VS e AR

1o~ -Contract No, HE2000-03EPIN 0760.81 . ==» = ==
Signal System Operfﬁ) asiﬁ)\/



18, The unders;gned hereby declares: That the foregoing information
contained in this bid ig a true statement, including, but not
limited to, the financlal condition of the individual Firm herein
first named ag of the date herein gilven; the undersigned has read
that portion of the Imstructionz to the Bidders entitled
"Qualifications and Reasponsibility of Bidders" and that the
bidder acknowledges its affirmative obligation to transmit with
this statement any watters relevant and material to those
contractor cualifications and respongibillity standards; that this
statament ig for the express purposae of inducing the party to
whom it 1ls submitted to award the submitted a contract orx
isguance of a permlt that any depository, wendor or other agency
herein named is authorized to supply such party with any
information necessary to verify this statement; and that it
understands and agrees that any material mlsrepresentatlon oxr
onlssion of material fact may be deemed grounds for
digqualification of the bidder as "not responsible," and may also
gubject the bidder to future debarment, penalties, and sanctilons,
to the extent permitted by law.

A
;MH"\; fLaso

ﬂﬁkbﬁ 22, 2olle

ssau CounniDP%W 99 of 405 Contract No H62000 OS%PIN 076 81
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'NOTE: The bids shall be sworn to by the person signing them, in one
of the following forms:

(Form of affidavit wheare Bidder ig a corporation)
STATE OF NEW YORK )
)88 .1
COUNTY OF WASSAU )

semt 1. FioUﬂ Being duly sworn, deposes and says:
That he regides at N e Street,
in the City of &mA that he is the Rmﬁhvamﬂaam of
-n.ewwewb:xc Lo LT

the corporatlon descr bed in and which executed the foregoing
instrument; that he knows the seal of said corporatiom; that the geal
affixed to the said instrument is such corporate seal and was affixed
by order of the Board of Directors of sald corporation; that he slgned
his name thereto by like order; and that he has knowledge of the
geveral matters therein gtated and they are in all respects true.
Subgeribed and sworn to before me

this 7@ day of 4#Lbﬁ‘ ;201 .

DARLENE KUMMER
Notary Public, State of New Yo
pNo. 01KUB036716
nSuffolk County
mpires Avgust 4, 1

: {Form of Affidavit where Bidder is a firm)
STATE OF NEW YOREK )

VB,
COUNTY OF NASSAU )

Being'dﬁl§.swornl deposes

That he ig a_-membatr of
the firm desoribed in and which executed the foreg tnig bid; that he

Tduly subscribed the name of the firm hersunto on kehalf of the fizrm;
and that the several matters therein stated are-in all resgpects true,
Subscriked and sworn to before me
this day of 20

I

Notary

(Ferm of Affidavi
STATE OF NEW YORK )

Yse.

where Bldder is a individual)

COUNTY OF WASBAUT

Being duly sworn, deposes and saye:
That he i1g the reon described in and who executed the foregoing bid
and that the g&veral matters therein gtated are in all respects true.
Subscribed &nd sworn tc before me
thig day of . 20

Notary |

AL s et el e St e R A e
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NOTICE OF AWARD

Contract No. H62000-03E PIN 0760.81
Signal System Operations Phase IV
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BID BOND
FORM OF BID BOND
IMPORTANT The hidder shall instruct the Surety Company to USE THIS

FORM PROVIDED as the use of ANY OTHER FORM may cause rejecticn of the
bid.

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS,

that we, the undersignedWelsbach Electric Corp. of LI, 300 Newtown Road, Plainview, NY 11803

as Principal ,-' and Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America as surety, who
is Licensed to do business in the State of New York, are hereby firmiy
bound unto the County of Nassau in the penal sum of

Ten Percent of the Amount Bid dollars (% 10% of Amt Rid ) for the payment
of which, well and truly to be made, we hereby jointly and severally
bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors and
asslgns.

Signed, this {4th day of _ March , 2016

The conditions of the above obligation is such that whereas the
Principal has submitted to the County of Nassau a certain Bid attached
hereto and hereby made a part hereof, to enter intc a contract in
writing for the work under Contract No. H82000-03E/PIN 0760.81 for the

Signal System Operations Phase 1Y

NOW, TEEREFORE, the conditions of this obligaticn are such that if the
Principal shall not withdraw saLd proposal except by mutual consent of

the County of Nassau within a period of forty-five (45) days after the -

opening of bids and in the event of acceptance of the Principal's
proposal, if the Principal shall,

a. when notified by the County, execute all necessary counterparts of
the contract as set forth in the contract documents in accordance
with the proposal as accepted; and

b. furnish bonds and other security as specified in the contract
documents for the faithful performance and proper fulfillment of such
contract, which bonds or other security shall be satisfactory in all
respects to the County; and

c. in all respects, comply with the provisions set forth in the
invitation to bid; or if the County of Nassau shall reject the
aforesald proposal for a reason other than the Principal's fallure
to satisfy the County that he has the necessary skill, experience
and liguid assets required for the contract as stated in the
deocuments aforesaid, then this obligation shall be null and void:
otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

Page 1
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Provided, however, that this bond is subject to the following additicnal
condltlons and limitations.

a. In the event that the Principal falls to submlt a £inancial
statement when requlred by the County or in the event that an
examination of the Principal indicates to the County that the

“Principal does not meet the financial requirements required by the
County, the undersigned will, wupon demand, pay to the County of
Nassau, as liquidated damages for the Principal's failure to meet
such requirements, a sum equal to the amount that would have been
required by a certified check if the same were delivered in
accordance with the provisions of the contract documents and
specifications hersin stated.

b. In case the Principal shall default in the performance of any
provigion the undersigned will upcn demand pay to the County of
Nassau the full amount cf the damages sustained by the County of
Nassau by reason of such default, except however, it is expressly
understood and agreed that the liability of the surety for any and
all claims hereunder shall in no event exceed the amount of this
obligation as herein stated.

The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that the
obligation of said Surety and its bond shall be in no way impaired or
affected by any extension of time within which the County of Nassau may
accept such Bid; and said Surety daes hereby waive notice of any such
extension. :

Page 3
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety have hereunto set
their hands and seals, and such of them as are corporations have caused
their corporate seals to be hereto affixed and these presents to be
signed by their proper officers, the day and year first set forth above.

Welsbach Electric Corp. of L.l

Contractor

ffﬁﬁﬁ? {Corporate seal of
by &

(L.8L)
f/ﬂ\.@swm /C-GIO-

Contractor
Title if a corporation)

by (L.S.)
Title
by (L.S.)
Title
Travelers Casualty and Sutety Company of America
One Tower Square, Hartford, CT 06183
Surety
/ e
bY fu Ko Loex €7 oo g (L.5.}
. Titleyof OFficer
Rita Sagistano, Attorney-In-Fact
e A . (Corporate seal
DEGEE Witness: %MM% (L.S.) of Surety)
e
Page 5
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{Acknowledgment by Contracter if a ccecrporation)

STATE OF I\(zl,( ‘/DMC- )

55.
COUNTY OF lfM SAHA }

on this Z2*% day of FkﬁﬁH' , 20le  , before me personally
came 6€TH’P,FH£aLD tc me known,

who, belng worn, did depose and say for himself, that he
resides in :
that he is th 1ENT of the Welshach Electric Corp. of L.I.

the corporation described in, and which executed the foregoing
instrument; that he knows the ssal of said corporation; that the seal
affixed to said instrument 1s such corporate seal; that it was so
affixed by order of the Board of Directors of said corporation, and that
he signed his name theretoc by like order.

Notary Pﬁblic

(Acknowledgmenﬁ by Contractor if a partnership) 'DARLENE KUMMER
' Notary Public, State o;:ﬂaew York
No. D1KU6096
STATE OF ) Qualified in Suffol

ounty
Cowmmission Expires Aubust 4, 2019

55.:
COUNTY OF ' )

On this day of ; 20 ;b me personally
came to known and known
to me to he a member of
the firm described "1 and which executed e foregoing bond or

subscribed the name of

obligation, and he acknowledged to me that »
" for the purpose “therein

said firm theretc on behalf of said fi
mentioned.

Notary Public

{Acknowledgment by Contractor AT an individual.)

STATE OF
)
S5. %
COUNTY OF
On this day of , 20  before me personally
came to me

known and own to me tc be the person described in and who executed the

instrument, and he duly acknowledged that he executed the

Notary Public

Page 7

Nassau County DPW 31 0f 405 Cantract No. H62000-03E PIN 0750.81
Signai System Operations Phase IV



{Acknowledgment by Surety Company)

STATE OF New York )

SS. !
COUNTY OF Nassau )

On this 1{4th day of March , 2016 ; before me personally
came Rita Sagistano to me
Known, who being by me duly sworn, did depose and say that he resides

in Nassau County, NY

that he is the Atomeydn-Fact of the Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America , the
corporation described in and which executed the within instrument; that
he knows the seal of said corporation; that the seal affixed to said
instrument is such corporate seal:; that it was so affixed by the order
of the Board of Directors of said corpcration, and that he signed his
name thereto by like order; and that the liabilities of said company do
not exceed its assets as ascertained in the manner provided by the laws
of the State of New York, and the said Donna Marie Spielman further said

that he is acquainted with Rita Sagistano and knows him
to be the Attorney-In-Fact of said company; that the signature
of the said Rita Sagistano subscribed to the within instrument is

in the genuine handwriting of the said Rita Sagistano
and was subscribed thereto by like order of the Board of Directors, and.
in the presence of him, the said Donna Marie Spiglman

.. DOMNA MARIE SPIELMAN .. . -
Sotary Public, Stale of New York
No. 015P6248741

Qualified in Nassau.Cou
Cominizsion Expires 09/19/2019

Page &
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STATE OF NEW YORK
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

CERTIFICATE OF SOLVENCY UNDER SECTION 1111 OF THE NEW YORK
INSURANCE LAW

It is hereby certified that

Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America
of Hartford, Connecticut

a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Connecticut, and duly
authorized to transact the business of insurance in this State, is gualified to
become surety or guarantor on all bonds, undertakings, recognizances,
guaranties and other obligations required or permitted by law; and that the said
corporation is possessed of a capital and surplus including gross paid-in and
confributed surplus and unassighned funds (surplus) aggregating the sum of .
$2,114,657,475.(Capital $6,480,000.} &s is showh by its sworn financial
statement for the year ended December 31, 2014, on file in this Department,
prior to audit.

" The said "c'orpora'tibn“cannot'Iawfu,llyj*exp‘ose‘itself‘tO‘"Io.Ss on emyonerlskor T mm———————

hazard to an amount exceeding 10% of its surplus to pdlicyholders, unless it shall
be protectéd in excess of that amount in the manner provided in Section 4118 of
the Insurance Law of this State.

R =
o RGN In Witness Whereof, | have here-
AR unto set my hand and afiixed the
| AT ]‘g, official seal of this Department
5 3 at the City of Albany, this 27th
AR ?}ﬁ’f day of April, 2015.
N
erm Benjamin M. Lawsky

Superintendent

i&line Catalfamo
Special Deputy Superintendent



St

. WARNING: THIS POWER OF ATTORNEY 1S INVALID WITHOUT THE RED BORDER

o : POWER OF ATTORNEY
TR AVE LE RS J Farmington Casualty Company ) St. Paul Mercnry Insurance Company
Fidelity and Guaranty Insurance Company ‘Iravelers Casualty and Svurety Company
Fidelity and Guaranty Insurance Underwriters, Inc. Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America
Sti. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company United States Fidelity and Guaraniy Company

St. Paul Guardian Insurance Company

Attorney-In Fact No. Certiticate No. 0 U 6 6 3 6 7 0 1

229701

ENOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That Farmington Casualty Compagy, St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Compeny, St. Paul Guardian Insorance
Company, St. Paul Mercury Insurance Company, Travelers Casualty and Surety Company, Travelers Casualty and Surcty Company of America, and United States
Fidelity and Guaranty Company are corporations duly organized under the laws of the State of Connecticut, that Fidelity and Guaranty Insurance Company is a
corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Jowa, and that Fidelity and Guaranty Insurance Underwrilers, Inc., is a corporation duly organized under the
laws of the State of Wisconsin (berein collectively called the “Companies”), and that the Companies do kereby make, constitute and appoint

" Thomes Bean, Rita Sagistano, Gerard 5, Macholz, Susan Lupski, Robert 'T. Pearson, Camille Maitland, George C. Brewster, Colette R. Chisholn,
Vincent A. Walsh, Lee Ferrucci, Desiree Cardlin, Nelly Renchiwich, and Mia Woo-Warren

of the City of _ Uniondale , State of New York , their true end lawful Attorney(s)-in-Fact,
each in their separate capacity if more than one is named above, to sign, execute, seal and acknowledge any and all bonds, recognizances, conditional nndertakings and
other writings cbligatory in the pature thereof on behalf of the Companies in thelr busmess Df guaranteemg the fidelity of persons, guarantesing the performance of
contracts and executing or guaranteemg bonds and vndertakings required or

IN WITNESS WHEREQT, the Companies have caused this fnst 27th
day of January 2016 ¢
- " StiPail Mercary Ihnsurance Codpany T
pany Travelers Casualty and Snrety Company
F idelity and Guaranty Il]suram:e Underwrlters Inc. Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America

St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company
St. Panl Guardian Insurance Company

State of Connecticut By: WafAs
City of Hartford ss. Robert L. Raney, gfm'or Vice President

On this the _ 27th day of __January . 2016 pufore me personelly appeared Robert L. Raney, who acknowledged himself to
be the Senior Vice President of Farmington Casualty Company, Fidelity and Guaranty Insurance Company, Fidelity and Guaranty Insurance Underwriters, Inc., St. Paul
Fire and Marine Insurance Company, St. Paul Guardian Insurance Company, St. Paul Mercury Insurance Company, Travelers Casualty and Surety Company, Travelers
Casnalty and Surety Company of America, and United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, and that he, as such, being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing
instrument for the purposes therein contained by signing on behalf of the corporations by himself as a duly authorized officer.

¢, JFrould

C. Tetreault, Notary Public

heA

In Witness Whercof, [ hereunte set my hand and official seal, “E:L Y

My Commission expites the 30th day of June, 2016,

58440-8-12 Printad in U.S.A.

WARNING: THIS POWER OF ATTORNEY =] ]NVAL?D WITHOUT THE HED BDF\DEH

e



WARNING: THIS POWER OF ATTORNEY 15 INVALID WITHOUT THE RED BORDER

'

This Power of Attomey is granted under and by the authority of the following resclutions adopted by the Boards of Directors of Farmington Cagualty Comparny, Fidelitj;
“and Guaranty surdhes Company, Fidelity add Guaranty Insufance Undérwritets, Ine., St. Paiil Fire dhd Matine Tngurarice Cdmpany, St. Pail Guardidn Insurance
Company, St. Paul Mercury Insurance Cempany, Travelers Casualty and Surety Company, Travelers Casvalty and Surety Company of America, and United States
Fidelity and Guaranty Company, which resolutions are now in full force and effeet, reading as follows:

RESOLVED, that the Chajrman, the President, any Vics Chairman, any Executive Vice President, any Senior Vice President, any Vice President, any Second Vice
President, the ‘Treasurer, any Assistant Treasurer, the Corporate Seeretary or any Assistant Secretary may appofnt Attorneys-in-Fast and Agenis to act for and on behalf
of the Company and may give such appointee such authority as his or her certificate of authority may prescribe to sipn with the Company's name and ssal with the
Company’s Seal bonds, recognizances, contracts of indemnity, and other writings obligatory in the nature of & bond, recognizance, or conditional undertaking, and any
of said officers or the Board of Directors at any tHms may remove any such appointee and revoke the power given him or her; and it is

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chainman, the President, any Vice Chairman, any Executive Vice President, any Senior Vice President or any Vice Presidant may
delegate all or any par of the foregoing authority to one or more officers or employees of this Company, provided that each such delegation s in writing end a copy
thereof is filed in the office of the Secretary; and it is

FURTHER RESOLVED, that any bond, recognizance, contract of indemnity, or writing cbligatory in the nature of a bond, tecognizance, or conditional undertaling
shall be valid and binding upon the Company when (&) signed by the Prasident, any Vice Chairman, any Executive Vice President, any Senior Vics President or any Vice
President, any Second Vice President, the Treasurar, any Assistant Treasurer, the Corporate Secratary or any Assistant Secretary and duly attested and sealed with the
Company's seal by a Secretary or Assistant Secretary; or (b} duly executed (under seal, if required) by one or more Attorneys-in-Fact and Ageats pursnant to the power
presexibed in his ot her certificate or their certificates of authority or by one or mors Company officers pursuant to a written delegation of anthority; and it is

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the signature of each of the following officers: President, any Bxecutive Vice President, any Senior Vice President, any Vice President,
any Assistant Vice President, any Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, and the seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile to any Power of Attorney or to any
certificate relating thersto appointing Resident Vice Prasidents, Resident Assistant Secretaries or Attorneys-in-Fact for purposes only of executing and attesting bonds
and undertakings and other writings obligatory in the nature theraof, and any such Power of Attorney or certificate bearing such facsimile signature or facsimile seal
shall be valid and binding upon the Company and any such power 3o executed and certified by such facsimile signature and facsimile seal shall be valid and binding on
the Company in the future with respect to any bond or understanding to which it is attached.

1, Kevin E. Hughes, the undersigned, Assistant Secretary, of Farmington Casualty Company, Fidetity and Guaranty Insurance Company, Hidelity and Guaranty Insurance
Underwriters, Inc,, St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company, St. Paul Guerdien Insirance Company, St. Pavl Mercury Insurance Company, Travelers Casualty and
Surety Compeny, Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America, and Unite 1S gj:s'Fic;e]é:l%ﬁand ueranty Compeny do hereby certify that the ahove and foregoing
is a true and correct copy of the Power of Attorney executed by said Comp B W] 3 il for__g\:é il ‘effect and has not been revoked.

Chfpanies this 14th__ day of _March L2016,

& Kevin E. Hughes, Assistant Seciary

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOY, T have hercunto sst my hand and, iﬁﬁv d the-stals of"géid'

tin
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o A 6‘{‘:&':' H _f '{bﬂ"u""‘?ﬁ"‘% 3 mmq
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To verify the authenticity of this Power of Atiomey, call 1-800-421-3880 or contact us at www.travelershond com. Please refer to the Attorney-In-Fact number, the
-above-pamed individuals and the details of the bond o which the power is attached.

WARNING: THIS POWER OF ATTORNEY IS INVALID WITHOUT THE RED BORDER
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TRAVELERS GASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY OF AMERICA

HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT Cafes

FINANCLAL STATEMENT AS OF DECEMBER 31,2014

CAPITAL STOCK § 6,480,000

AGSETS

LIABILITIES & SURPLUS

GASH AND INVESTED CASH

RONDS :

5TOCKS

INVESTRIENT INCOME DUE AND ACGRUED

OTHER INVESTED ABSETS

PREMILIM BALANCES

NET DEFERRED TAX ASSET

REINSURANCE REGOVERABLE

SECURITIES LENDING REINVESTED GOLLATERAL ASSETS
RECEIVABLES FROM PARENT, SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES
OTHER ASSETS

§ 127,107,206
3,419,436,097
326,931,679
45,277,102
4,010,416
209,982,904
62,639,844
17,307,751
8,224,504
2,057,189
3,078,655

UNEARNED PREMIUMS

LOSSES

LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES

GOMMISSIONS

TAXES, LICENSES AND FEES

OTHER EXPENSES -

CURRENT FEDERAL AND FOREIGHN INCOME TAXES

REMITTANGES AND ITEMS NOT ALLCCATED

ABMOUNTS WITHHELD / RETAINED BY CCMPANY FCR OTHERS

RETROAGTIVE REINSURANCE RESERVE ASSUMED

POLICYHOLDER DIVIDENDS

PROVISION FOR REINSURANGE

ADVANCE FREMIUM

PAYABLE FOR SECURITIES

PAYABLE FOR SECURITIES LEMDING

CEDED REINSURANCE NET PREMIUMS PAYABLE

ESCHEAT LIABILFTY

OTHER AGCRUED EXPENSES AND LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

CAPITAL STOCK
PAID N SURPLUS
DOTHER SURPLUS
TOTAL SURPLUS TQ POLICYHOLDERS

$  B55349,712
880,188,443
358,911,923
34,142,045
11,534,866
40,097,405
24,133,580
11,082,862
41,744,806
853,430
7,376,859
3,416,505
1,327,118
4,590,760
8,224 894
26,084,142
1,138,046
491,157

§ 2110576180

3 6,480,000

433,803,760
1,674,373,715

% _2,114,667,475

TOTAL ASSETS §_4 226233 665 TOTAL LIABILITIES & SURPLUS 5 _4.376,233,668
STATE OF CONNECTICUT ‘ )

“"GOUNTY OF HARTFORD ™ ™~ ) 88/ .
CITY OF HARTECRD )

MICHAEL J. DOODY, BEING DULY SWCRN, SAYS THAT HE |$ SECOND VICE PRESIDENT, OF TRAVELERS CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY OF AMERICA,

AND THAT O THE BEST OF HiS KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF, THE FOREGOING 15 A TRUE AND CORREGT STATEMENT OF THE FINANCIAL GONDITION OF SAID

' COMPANY AS QF THE 28T DAY OF DECEMBER, 2014,

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TQ BEFORE ME THIS
19TH DAY QF MARCH, 2015
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SECOND VICE PRESIDENT, &7
»
NN it VA, TOR s
NOTARY PUBLE
SUSAN M. WEISSLEDER.
Nolary Publie

My Cormisston Explres November 30, 2047
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